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T orrance County Commissio

Regular Meeting to be Held at:
Administrative Offices of Torrance County

AGENDA Commission Chambers

October 24™, 2018 205 South 9" Street
0:00 A.M. Estancia, NM 87016
Please Silence All Electronic Devices
Call Meeting to Order
Pledge of Allegiance
Invocation

Approval of Minutes:  October 3, 2018 Special Meeting ~ October 10%, 2018 Regular Meeting
Approval of Meeting Agenda
Approval of Consent Agenda:

1. Approval of Checks

Public Requests:
At the Discretion of the Commission Chair. For Information Only (No Action Can Be Taken). Comments are limited to three (3) minutes per person on any subject.

ACTION ITEMS*:
ITEMS TO BE CONSIDERED AND ACTED UPON
Public Comment, each item: At the Discretion of the Commission Chair. Comments are limited to two (2) minutes per person.

*Commission Matters:

1. Torreon Acequia Memorandum of Agreement
2. EVSWA Vacant Exempt Denial, Appeal(s)

*Public Relations:

3. Updates: a. Various County Departments b. Commission c¢. County Manager d. Other Boards or Land Grants (upon request) e. Forest Service

* Department Requests/Reports:

4. Sub-Grant Agreement 201 Emergency Management Performance Grant (EMPG) Ratification - Martin Lucero, Emergency Manager

5. Professional Services Agreement between Torrance County and Ware Resources to Facilitate the Boys Council Program — Jenea Ortiz, Estancia
Valley Youth & Family Council Continuum Coordinator

6. Award Invitation for Bid A17.15 for Torrance County Animal Shelter Addition — Noah Sedillo, Chief Procurement Officer

7. Resolution 2018-47 Fourth Quarter Report Adjustment — Amanda Tenorio, Finance Director

8. Resolution 2018-48 Budget Adjustment — Amanda Tenorio, Finance Director

9. Resolution 2018-49 Line Item Transfers — Amanda Tenorio, Finance Director

10. Resolution 2018-50 Budget Increase— Amanda Tenorio, Finance Director

11. Resolution 2018-51 Budget Procedure — Amanda Tenorio, Finance Director

12. Emergency Reporting Contract Ratification — Lester Gary, Fire Chief

Public Requests:
At the Discretion of the Commission Chair. For Information Only (No Action Can Be Taken). Comments are limited to three (3) minutes per person on any subject.

EXECUTIVE SESSION:
As Per Motion and Roll Call Vote, Pursuant to New Mexico State Statute Section 10-15-1, the Following Matters Will be Discussed in Closed
Session:
a) Limited personnel matters pursuant to NMSA 10-15-1 H (2) related to the Operation Manager Position

*Reconvene from Executive Session:

Pursuant to Open Meetings Act, Section 10-15-1(J), Commission Report from Closed Meeting:
a) Consider and Act upon, if appropriate, Limited Personnel Matters related to the Operation Manager Position

*Adjourn



Minutes



DRAFT COPY
TORRANCE COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS
SPECIAL COMMISSION MEETING
OCTOBER 31, 2018

COMMISSIONERS PRESENT: JULIA DUCHARME-CHAIRMAN
JAMES FROST-MEMBER
JAVIER SANCHEZ -MEMBER

OTHERS PRESENT: BELINDA GARLAND-COUNTY MANAGER
YVONNE OTERO-ADMIN ASST

CALL MEETING TO ORDER

Madam Chair DuCharme calls the October 3™, 2018 Special Commission Meeting to order
at 3:02 pm.

Pledge lead by Lester Gary
Invocation lead by Lori Archuleta

APPROVAL OF THE OCTOBER 3", 2018 SPECIAL COMMISSION MEETING
AGENDA

Madam Chair DuCharme asks for a motion to approve the October 3", 2018 Special
Commission meeting agenda.

ACTION TAKEN: Commissioner Sanchez makes a motion to approve the October 37, 2018
meeting agenda. Commissioner Frost seconds the motion. No further discussion, all
Commissioners in favor. MOTION CARRIED

ACTION ITEMS*:

ITEMS T0O BE CONSIDERED AND ACTED UPON
(Public Comment, each item: At the discretion of the Commission Chair, Comments are
limited to two (2) minutes per person)

*Commission Matters

1.) Consider and act upon whether to offer to purchase and enter purchase agreement if
offer is accepted for real property and improvements located at 903-A State Highway 41,
Estancia, New Mexico-Lester Gary, Fire Chief

Lester Gary states that the fire department has increased in size within the past year and has
outgrown the current space at the communications center aka dispatch. As the department has
grown we have found a need to increase our space. The office staff has increased, we now have
2 assistant Fire Chiefs, 4 department coordinators, started the Fire Fighter 1 classes, and EMT

1



classes. With this growth a few months back we began looking at a few places that the Fire
Administration could possibly move into. We found the building at 903-A Highway 41 which
is the Summer’s building. We went in and looked at the building, looked at our finances,
looked at the GRT’s, to see where we could up with funding to purchase a building.

We began looking at the Summer’s building. We have had the building appraised, have done
some inspections on our own as well as with Nick Sedillo and Belinda Garland. Mr. Gary
states that he is coming before the Commission for approval to move forward to get a purchase
agreement to purchase the building, with some stipulations. We would like to get a formal
inspection of the building, do a phase I environmental survey, and also a title search to make
sure everything is free and clear with the building.

Commissioner Frost states that this is just an approval to continue with your current process,
is that correct?

Lester Gary replies, yes, that is correct. Once Mr. Gary has received the approval from the
Commission to move forward, he will get a purchase agreement drawn up. Mr. Wallin has also
been working on this to find out what the next steps will be. There was some thought that this
may have to go through New Mexico Taxation and Revenue or through DFA, but with the
monies that will be used to purchase this property we will not have to go that route. Once the
purchase agreement has been made and accepted, the next step will be to purchase the
property.

Commissioner Frost states that has Mr. Gary mentioned at another meeting, the department
already has the funds to makes this purchase. Is that correct?

Lester Gary replies, yes, that is correct. The funds will come from the GRT fund, which
currently have a total amount close to $500,000.00 in it.

Commissioner Frost asks if using this money will take away from other things you made need
such as equipment or training fees.

Lester Gary replies, no, it will not impede anything. This money is from the Gross Receipts
Tax that we get from the sales of goods throughout the community. This money has not been
utilized for the past 3-4 years so it has been built up. Once we purchase this property we will
let it build back up again. We also have other GRT funds such as the communications/911 tax
that we use. Using this fund will not impeded any other funds that we will need to run the fire
department on a day to day basis.

Commissioner Frost states that what Mr. Gary is stating is that the money for equipment and
so forth comes from a different source, correct? We just want this to be clear, not only for us,
but so the public understands as well where the money comes from.

Lester Gary replies, yes, that is correct. We have a Gross Receipts fund that we use, but we
also have the fire protection fund that each individual district receives from the state Fire
Marshalls Office. That money is designed for supplies, equipment (not large like a fire truck),



but it will allow us to continue our day to day operations. This will not interfere with any of the
fire districts, their funding will not be touched.

Madam Chair DuCharme asks Mr. Gary when the building was built.

Lester Gary replies, the building was built approximately 12 years ago.

Madam Chair DuCharme states that there should not be a problem with lead or asbestos, or
any other type of hazardous chemicals.

Lester Gary replies, no, not that we are aware of. That will be something that we look closer
at when we get the formal building inspection done, and that will give us all the information in
detail.

Belinda Garland states that she did a walk through yesterday and there were no real problems
other than a few spots on the ceiling, but don’t really know where those spots came from.

Nick Sedillo states that one huge plus on the building is that it is fully ADA compliant and will
not require any additional money to bring that into compliance.

Commissioner Frost asks how much space will bet left over from spillover from this building.

Lester Gary states that about a third of the building will still be free once the fire department
has moved in. One room will be made into a break room, no gas lines or stoves will be put in.
What we will be doing is putting in a counter and have a convection oven, a microwave, some
hot plates, etc. so that we will have a place to prepare our lunches. There is also another room
that will be made into a training room for everyone not just the fire department.

Commissioner Frost states that he likes the bits of information that Mr. Gary gave.
Commissioner Frost also states that in the past there was some mention of flood plain issues
that maybe Nick Sedillo can address.

Nick Sedillo states that he does not think that area is not in the flood zone even though it is in
the city limits, but he will go get a map so that he can be sure and give everyone the correct
information.

Belinda Garland states that we may be able to put a clause in the contract about liability.

Lester Gary states that he did mention in the purchase agreement about the inspections.

Madam Chair DuCharme states that the property can be found on the FEMA flood zone map
and it gives a number.

Lester Gary states that as County Manager Garland stated all of Estancia is in the flood plain
but not sure about this area.

Commissioner Frost doesn’t doubt that it is not in the flood zone but wants to be sure.
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Madam Chair DuCharme states that the county also owns the two buildings next to this
building as well.

Lester Gary states, that is correct. The county owns the judicial complex as well as the
Esperanza health clinic, so with the purchase of this building the county will own all of that
area now. It is close to the county administrative offices and if there is over flow they will have
the ability to be placed here if need be.

Madam Chair DuCharme asks for a motion to approve to offer to purchase and enter
purchase agreement if offer is accepted for real property and improvements located at 903-A
State Highway 41, Estancia, New Mexico. Ms. Garland states that the motion should include
how much they are going to offer. Commissioner Frost states that the motion needs to be
worded correctly and that from what he was told by Mr. Wallin, we cannot make a lowball
offer. Lester Gary states that the appraisal came in at $270,000.00 so that is the offer we can
make, we just can’t go lower than that.

ACTION TAKEN: Commissioner Sanchez makes a motion to offer $270,000.00 to purchase
and enter purchase agreement if offer is accepted for real property and improvements located at
903-A State Highway 41, Estancia, New Mexico. Commissioner Frost seconds the motion.
Madam Chair DuCharme asks if there is any further discussion. Commissioner Sanchez
asks if this will satisfy some of the growing pains that we are having with all the new personnel
we have been hiring and if there are any plans to move staff over there. Belinda Garland
states that once the building is purchased she would talk to the Commission to see what they
feel should be moved to that location. She mentions that there are a couple of offices that
would be perfect for the full time attorney and paralegal or assistant based on what the
Commission decides to do. Commissioner Sanchez asks, how much additional staff can be
housed over there? Belinda Garland states that on the north side of the building near the west
end, there is a very large room where desks can be added and partitions can be put up and one
space can be made into a meeting area. Lester Gary states that is just depends on the type of
office that would be placed there. Cubicles can be placed there and can estimate that 2-3 desks
can be placed in the different offices putting in maybe 5-6 people there. Commissioner
Sanchez asks Mr. Gary how many people will he be bringing in. Lester Gary states that within
his department his office will be there, the administrative assistants office will be there, 2
assistant chiefs, 1 room will be set up as a quarter master supply, where all the EMS supplies
will be kept, also all equipment that is shipped in will go there before it is sent out to the
different districts. Belinda Garland states that it all depends on what the Commission wants to
do with the extra space. Do you want to make meeting rooms or training rooms, move a
department there, there are a lot of different options. This would be a great area for the attorney
and the assistant because they will have lots of room, they are secluded, and they will be close
to the judicial complex. Commissioner Sanchez states that he would like to see a Grants
Coordinator, Economic Developer, and if we ever take over the billing for the EVSWA they
can be housed in that area. Commissioner Sanchez asks Mr. Gary what will happen to his
rooms at dispatch and EOC. Lester Gary states that the rooms the fire department currently
houses at dispatch will be growth for them. A while back they were needing a storage shed for
records storage, with us moving out it will help them with their records storage. The larger
office they will be able to set that up as a meeting room. The EOC will also remain at dispatch.
Commissioner Frost asks what they will be doing as far as safety. Lester Gary states that he
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has been in contact with company that did the security counters here to do the same things at
the new building. In the future Mr. Gary states that they will look at securing that building with
a chain link fence as they are doing at dispatch and have security gates and security lighting.
Commissioner Sanchez asks how much money will be left in the fund after the purchase.
Lester Gary states that close to $250,000.00 will remain in that fund. Belinda Garland states
that some money will have to be taken out for improvements. The floor at the building does
need some work. Lester Gary states that it is a cement floor and we will need to seal that floor
just like we have done at dispatch. Madam Chair DuCharme asks Mr. Sedillo to explain the
map he just handed out. Nick Sedillo states that the area is out of the flood plain and explains
the map. Madam Chair DuCharme states that in the appraisal booklet, it states that the
building is located in the unincorporated area, is that correct? She also asks why this office has
to be within the city limits, when you have dispatch and the animal shelter not placed in the
city limits and they are part of the county. Nick Sedillo replies, no, that is incorrect because the
judicial building is within the city limits and can only be housed within the city limits of the
county seat per state statute. The appraiser will need to be informed that this information is
wrong. Mr. Sedillo states the location of the county seat has to be placed within the city limits
by state statute, the offices such as dispatch and the animal shelter do not have elected officials
and that is why they can be housed out of the county seat. No further discussion, all
Commissioners in favor. MOTION CARRIED

Belinda Garland wants to make sure that the Commission did approve the $270,000.00. The
Commission replies, yes, that is correct.

Lester Gary states that he will get with the realtor in the afternoon and get started on the
purchase agreement and have her send it to Mr. Wallin’s office to be reviewed.

Commissioner Frost asks if this is or is not our final decision on this topic.

Belinda Garland states that it is if they accept the offer of $270,000.00 and it clears all the
inspections. Mr. Wallin will make sure that everything is done correctly and that we are
protected.

Nick Sedillo addresses Commission Frost stating, if he recalls that when we purchased the
vacant land a few years ago, we are required to get an appraisal. That appraisal protects us
from the seller and prevents them from asking us for more than what the land was appraised at.
We are giving them fair market value. This is all similar to the land acquisition a few years
back.

Lester Gary states that he mentioned earlier about the contingencies in the purchase
agreement, being inspections, phase I environmental, the survey entitlement, etc.

Madam Chair DuCharme asks about the value provided in the appraisal being based on the
market value.

Nick Sedillo state that it is based on the fair market value on similar properties in the
surrounding area. This is an appraisal done outside of what the county does by a commercial
appraiser.



2.) IFB 2018-01 Cold Mix Bid Award-Leonard Lujan, Road Superintendent

Leonard Lujan states that he and Noah had to go out for bids for the cold mix for the state
projects he is trying to complete. Two bids were received, one from ABQ Asphalt at $58,900
and the other from Mountain States in the amount of $34,200.00. We went out for bid on 475
tons of product and are requesting that you approve the bid be awarded to Mountain States.

ACTION TAKEN: Commissioner Sanchez makes a motion to approve the IFB 2018-01
Cold Mix Bid Award to Mountain States. Commissioner Frost seconds the motion. No further
discussion, all Commissioners in favor. MOTION CARRIED

3.) IFB 2018-02 HFE 100P Bid Award- Leonard Lujan, Road Superintendent

Madam Chair DuCharme asks Mr. Lujan to decode the language being used.

Leonard Lujan states that this is oils that will be used on the chip seal projects. We had to go
out for bid on this as well because we couldn’t use state contract due to some missing wording
in the contract. We received one bid from Holly Frontier for 200 tons in the amount of
$125,800.00. We are requesting that you award the bid to Holly Frontier.

ACTION TAKEN: Commissioner Frost makes a motion to approve the IFB 2018-02 HFE
100P Bid Award to Holly Frontier. Commissioner Sanchez seconds the motion. No further
discussion, all Commissioners in favor. MOTION CARRIED

4.) Ratification of Custom Module Development Agreement between Torrance County
and Data Management (Time Clock Plus)-Belinda Garland, County Manager

Belinda Garland states that this is between Data Management Incorporation and Torrance
County for the upgraded custom module development agreement. This is the new Time Clock
Plus system that was presented and approved by the Commission 2 meeting back by Kristin
Oliver. Ms. Garland singed the agreement based upon the Commission’s approval and is
requesting her signature be ratified.

ACTION TAKEN: Commissioner Sanchez makes a motion to ratify the custom module
agreement between Torrance County and Data Management. Commissioner Frost seconds the
motion. No further discussion, all Commissioners in favor. MOTION CARRIED

5.) 5-Person Commission Re-Districting Work Session

Madam Chair DuCharme states that they are presented with 2 plans, plan D-2 and plan D-3.

Linda Jaramillo states that she listened to a previous a meeting that she was not able to attend
and some of the Commissioners requested information from her office. She has gathered that
information and would like to present that to the Commission at this time. Ms. Jaramillo states
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that Commissioner Frost asked about the voting on moving forward and requested the
documentation on that. Commissioner Sanchez requested information on how long we have
been a 3 member Commission. Ms. Jaramillo searched through the old books and we have
been a 3 member Commission since 1937. Ms. Jaramillo also did some other research and
found some election proclamations which shows that we used to have 26 precincts and thought
it might be of some interest to the Commission to see how the elections were handled back
then.

Ms. Jaramillo also states that all these years that she has been running elections, her precinct
workers and herself have a great relationship. A precinct worker of hers, Lupe Lucero-Lujan,
was in a terrible car accident last week on highway 41 and this morning she passed away. For
the record Lupe was a great person, not only as a precinct worker but as a lifelong friend. She
was great to work with and she will be missed.

Commissioner Sanchez states that it looks like we have had a 3 member Commission since
the beginning.

Madam Chair DuCharme states that there are 2 plans to discuss. Part of the packet also
includes two brochures created by the Manager’s office per Commissioner Sanchez’s request
that we can discuss today as well.

Belinda Garland would like to clarify that one brochure was made in the Manager’s office
and the other by Commissioner Sanchez.

Madam Chair DuCharme states that she requested additional options and by looking at these
2 plans and remembering what they discussed at the last commission meeting, D-2 looks to be
the most favorable, as it will not divide communities. Looking at plan D-3 it will divide
communities.

Commissioner Sanchez states that plan D-2 is a good plan and we can take questions on D-2.

Belinda Garland states that they may need to make a motion if this is the plan that they are
wanting to go with.

Commissioner Sanchez states that we do not need to make a motion on this right now. Some
changes may occur and he would hate to have the commission commit to something right now
and then later need to make a change. We can decide to focus on this plan and then make
changes if necessary.

Madam_Chair DuCharme states that we are presented with several plans and if we are
presenting only one plan it would be better if we make this decision more official. If we need
to make changes to this map we can vote again later on the changes.

Commissioner Sanchez states that the Commission has demonstrated consistency throughout
this process. The notice of intent was voted on and contract directive was given. If we vote, we
are showing an inconsistency, and we don’t need to do that. We are not adopting this plan
today. This is an informal plan, and is subject to change. Commissioner Sanchez believes that
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there will not be a unanimous vote on any plan. All we need to do is agree that plan D-2 is the
one we are going to focus on.

Linda Jaramillo states that when she spoke with Michael Sharp, and he said that in other
places all plans are presented to the public. It can be tedious work and they stayed hours at
meetings until everyone came to an agreement on one specific map. Ms. Jaramillo states that
the public should have more than one map to look at.

Commissioner Sanchez states that if we zero in on one map that has the spirit of what we are
aiming to accomplish, then we can take the publics input on that plan and piece it together. If
we need to make adjustments to that plan then we can do so. In his opinion presenting more
than one map to the public would not help things and there would not be an agreement on just
one map. Being presented with multiple maps would just confuse the issue.

Linda Jaramillo states that is true, but the public would have their input.

Commissioner Sanchez states that the public will have their input either way. If given to
many choices it will confuse the issue. We need to just focus on D-2 and we get the public’s
input we focus on D-2 and that is it.

Leonard Lujan states that they Commission is talking about splitting the entities. If you look
at the map you are placing all of the entities into District 5. You are placing Manzano, Willard,
Punta, Mountainair, Corona, Encino, Duran, and Clines Corners (which isn’t even an entity)
into one district. This map is splitting Manzano in half as well as Punta. Estancia and Tajique is
in one area because that is all they want to take care of and McIntosh won’t have anything.

Commissioner Sanchez asks Mr. Lujan what he mean by entities.

Leonard Lujan states that this map splits Manzano and Punta and they are the ones that are
wanting this change. They have come to meetings and have stated that they are not getting
enough representation in the county. You will have two Commissioners for those towns. The
town itself may not be split but the community itself is.

Commissioner Sanchez states that there is no split for the town or community. The lines are
pretty close to the land grant lines. We can give or take on all these boundaries if we need to.
This map is just a general idea, and Manzano and Punta de Agua are all in one district. There is
not that much population there and if we need to we can move the line one street up. There is
no community that is split up. Commissioner Sanchez asks Mr. Lujan why he states Manzano
is split.

Leonard Lujan states that you are just looking at the village itself. That is not Manzano,
Manzano is much bigger than just where the chip seal is. You all are trying to make it equal
and then suddenly you are placing everything into District 5.

Commissioner Sanchez states that there will have to be one big district. Encino doesn’t have
the population to be in a separate district.




Madam Chair DuCharme tells Mr. Lujan that all those communities are in the same district
right now.

Leonard Lujan states that Encino is part of District 2 not District 3, and Moriarty is split
between districts 4 & 2 right now.

Belinda Garland states that this goes back to what Madam Chair DuCharme was talking about
at the last meeting. You have a Commissioner covering territory from one end of the county
north to south and east to west. From this map there is also a Commissioner that is representing
a heavily populated are in the North. This issue was one of your concerns, and she doesn’t
think one Commissioner can handle all of this area.

Linda Jaramillo states that it is a big district for one person to handle. As she recalls they
didn’t want for one person to cover such a huge arca. It’s a larger area than what the
Commissioners have now and this is with 5 Districts.

Madam_Chair DuCharme states the Commissioner Sanchez addressed her concerns and
doesn’t want to repeat his explanation. According to this plan, in her opinion, we will not have
all representation in the heavily populated area in the north.

Leonard Lujan states that you will have 3 Commissioners in the north, 1 to the south and just
one for Estancia.

Madam Chair DuCharme states that we have very populated areas in District 5, in the
southern area. It doesn’t mean that the Commissioner from District 5 will be somewhere up
north.

Leonard Lujan states that what he is trying to point out is District 1, 2, and 4 will all be in the
north. He understands what they are saying but what is being done is that another
Commissioner is being placed to the north and split Estancia all by itself and you are pushing
Mountainair and all the others to be by themselves. You are placing all the little towns with
just one Commissioner by themselves.

Commissioner Sanchez states that what Mr. Lujan is saying, is that it isolates communities
and in what way,

Leonard Lujan states that it is pushing the towns further south. The Commissioner will have
to cover all the way from Aceves Road all the way to the eastern part of the county all the way
back to the northern part and then all the way back almost to Moriarty. This map is really
breaking things up and all the power will be to the north and all of the little towns will get
nothing.

Discussion goes back and forth between Commissioner Sanchez and Leonard Lujan about an
area in the western part of the county near Fourth of July Road not being populated.
Commissioner Sanchez states that no one lives in that area and Mr. Lujan states that there are
homes up there. Just because the map doesn’t show it doesn’t mean there isn’t anyone up there.
Commissioner Sanchez states that the lines can be adjusted in that particular area and become

9



district 3. According to Mr. Sharp moving that line will not alter any population so if we need
to make that tail part of district 3 we can.

Belinda Garland states that you will have a Commissioner covering a large area along with a
densely populated area in the north. This is a large area and that Commissioner will spend
more time in the Moriarty area. The people to the south will be forgotten. This plan breaks up
communities. It is awful to see Manzano and Punta being broken up. The people don’t just live
in one area the people populate a vast area.

Madam Chair DuCharme states that according to the map, nothing is being broken up. By
creating those districts some areas will be divided. What we don’t want divided is where the
population is concentrated.

Belinda Garland would like to refer the commission back to map A. This map keeps all of the
communities together

Commissioner Sanchez states that maybe it would eliminate confusion to place that little tail
end of Precincts 3 & 4 into District 3. This might eliminate the misconception that Leonard
mentioned earlier.

Madam Chair DuCharme ask Ms. Garland why she thinks Plan A is the better choice.

Belinda Garland states that it keeps the populated areas together and is even. You have 3
Commissioners in heavily populated areas to the north, not 4. These are merely things she is
trying to point out. Ultimately the choice is up to the Commission on the map that will be
chosen.

Madam Chair DuCharme states that this still doesn’t eliminate her concern that one district
is disproportionally larger than the rest. In the case of plan A, it would be District 3 that is very
large. Plan A also divides Moriarty and Estancia and this is what we are trying to avoid.

Belinda Garland states that she is trying to keep 4 Commissioners from being with in a 20
mile radius of each other in the North. She is merely pointing things out and making a
suggestion.

Commissioner Sanchez states that this could be true of Plan A as well. Districts 1, 5,3 & 2
meet in the 4 corners in the middle. He does not understand the arguments being made, they
are inconsistent. In plan D-2 there is also the possibility the Commissioners can live within a
20 mile radius of each other. Commissioner Sanchez states that he is trying to point out the
inconsistencies in the argument in hopes that logic will say that it is true. There is no logic in
the determinations being made.

Madam Chair DuCharme asks how the Commissioners would like to proceed.

Commissioner Sanchez states that we need to pick one of the options, agree on it, and use that
map as the point from which we start to collect public input with the intent to make some
changes. This is not the be all end all.
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Linda Jaramillo states the on D-2 it does give the Commissioner from District-5 a chance to
come up to represent the people in Moriarty plus the people in the south. This Commissioner is
representing a lot of the county and not just the north. This Commissioner will have to take
into consideration his Moriarty people, the people in the mountains, and maybe with this it will
bring all of the people together.

Leonard Lujan asks how you can pick 2 maps when you haven’t even had any input from the
public. It’s you and Madam Chair DuCharme picking what you want and not getting any
public input. You need to visit with the public, see what they like, and then pick a plan.

Leann Tapia states that she would like to reiterate again that you need 3 unanimous votes in
order to do this. You have a Commissioner sitting next to you that has clearly stated he will not
vote for this. It needs to be done when the new Commission comes in. You are wasting the
time of the County Manager and employees to push a certain plan, which isn’t going to matter
because Commissioner Frost has stated that he is not on board to do any of this. Why do you
want to continue pushing this topic? Leave this to the next Commission.

Commissioner Sanchez asks Ms. Tapia if she is making assumptions about his intentions.
What are his intentions?

Leann Tapia states that his intentions are to push this. You need to let this rest and leave it to
the next Commission. You cannot move forward

Commissioner Sanchez states that he is not pushing this, this is a false assumption that she is
making.

Leann Tapia states that Commissioner Sanchez needs to let this rest and leave it up to the next
Commission. You are worried about the public, where are your public meetings? Have any of
the districts done a public meeting on a personal basis? Ms. Tapia states she has not seen any
information in her district about public meetings. If there would have been a meeting she
would have shown up to give her opinion. This has been talked about in previous years, even
when she was County Commissioner. We don’t need a 5 member Commissioner, other than for
personal gain.

Commissioner Sanchez states that he is not sure what Ms. Tapia means by personal gain.

Leann Tapia replies that Commissioner Sanchez knows exactly when she means. If not, she
will spell it out for him. When January 1% comes he will be sitting next to 2 new
Commissioners and he will be a sitting duck as Commissioner Frost is the sitting duck right
now. You are Torrance County Commissioners and you are here for the County and not a
district. You are not representing just District 1, 2, or 3. The decisions you make effect the
county as a whole and not just a specific district. Let this rest and leave it for the new
Commission to decide.
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Commissioner Sanchez states how this argument can carry any weight when we started this
process in February, way before any one declared to run for the Commission positions. There
is no push.

Madam Chair DuCharme states that this is very troublesome to hear your predictions that
one Commissioner that represents a very large district will be a sitting duck come January 1%.

Leann Tapia tells Madam Chair DuCharme that she went to the Association of Counties
training, just like she did. When we went to that training they stressed specifically that the
Commissioners are policy makers. You are looking out for the county and not just the district.

Madam Chair DuCharme states that thinking is behind every vote we make here.

Commissioner Sanchez states that he doesn’t understand how any of this is district specific.
This issue is not dead.

Leann Tapia replies, exactly, so let this topic rest until January when you may have the
possibility of 3 votes.

Madam Chair DuCharme states that the Commission has the right to discuss this issue to at
least make an attempt to move forward with a 5 member Commission.

Leann Tapia states that you are picking a map today to present to the public. The public isn’t
going to have any options because you are picking the map for them. Herself as a constituent
would like to be presented with all 5 maps and then be able to say she likes one or the other.
Choosing just the one map is not fair to the public.

Commissioner Sanchez states that is the exact opposite of what he said. He stated that they
cannot vote on this because they have not had any input from the public. We cannot vote on
this when we don’t even have an ordinance in place.

Madam Chair DuCharme states that it was her suggestion to vote on a map because she
thought the Commission needed to be clear what is being presented to the public.

Leann Tapia states that 2 maps should be presented to the public. You are all about open
government, so present more than one map to the public.

Madam Chair DuCharme states that we are still in the discussion phase and Ms. Tapia your
input will be take into consideration.

Leanna Tapia states that she wants it to be know that this Commission does not have a 3™
vote, let this rest until January, and bring it back up then. If they decide they want to move
forward with this, then you can proceed at that time.

Madam Chair DuCharme states that it is unfortunate that Commissioner Frost is making this
decision before hearing any input from the public.
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Leann Tapia states that he is making this decision because he feels it is a big enough issue
better left for the new Commission to decide. If this is decided on before the new Commission
comes in, it will be something that they will have to live with, being that they did not have any
input on the decision.

Commissioner Sanchez asks if he has mentioned to anyone that he has set a date to decide on
this. He tells Ms. Tapia that she is assuming that he is trying rush the vote before the next
Commissioners come in. He has never stated that this has to be done by December 31%,

Leann Tapia states that she is no longer going to argue, she has let her voice be heard, and this
just needs to be put to rest until the new Commission comes in.

Madam Chair DuCharme would also like to state the Mr. Jeff Laird said that he has been
constantly reminding the Commission that the county needed to update its comprehensive land
use plan. And he pointed out that in this current plan, the Mid Region Council of Governments
who prepared this plan, recommended the county move to a 5 member board.

Commissioner Sanchez states that he has not said how he is going to vote. When this is all
said and done he may vote no. At no time during this process has he stated how he is going to
vote. We are still in the process. Back in February there was a unanimous vote of our intentions
to move forward with the process to move to a 5 member Board. We gave the county manager
direction to move forward with the redistricting via contract, which has been accomplished,
and suddenly there is a turnaround in September. To him that is a major inconsistency.

Commissioner Frost makes a motion to adjourn.

Commissioner Sanchez states that there is no need to make a motion to adjourn. He simply
asked a question and would like an answer.

Linda Jaramille states that during the proceedings of this Commission meeting and deciding
an whether or not to go to a 5 member board, Dennis Wallin continued to state that the only
vote that will require the unanimous vote will be the last one. When the Commission decided
to move forward Commissioner Irost could have said no, but Madam Chair DuCharme and
Commissioner Sanchez could have moved forward.

Commissioner Sanchez states that the first vote for us to move forward had to be unanimous
as well. The reason we are at this point is because all Commissioners voted yes to move
forward.

Madam Chair DuCharme states that she recalls that the only vote that needed to be
unanimous was the last vote as well.

Linda Jaramillo states that she can pull the minutes to make sure, but she recalls that Mr.
Wallin stated the only vote that needed to be unanimous was for the Ordinance, which is the
last vote.
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Madam Chair DuCharme addresses Commissioner Sanchez and states that we should present
all the plans to the public to avoid any accusations or questioning.

Commissioner Sanchez states that he does not believe that there will be any questioning or
accusations. We have not committed to plan D-2, we have not stated the D-2 will be the final
plan. We want public input on this plan, it is our responsibility as leaders in the community to
identify a certain vision. It is within the Commissions role to identify the intentions on which
this Commission intends to move forward. He has injected his philosophy into plan D-2. We
need to go out in the public and get their input. He believes plan D-2 is not the be all end all,
but it the spirit of what he thinks is essential to the county. If the Commission feels likewise,
this is the plan we should seek public input on.

Madam_Chair DuCharme addresses Commissioner Sanchez asking if he thinks this is
enough to instruct Ms. Garland to prepare this plan to present to the public.

Commissioner Sanchez replies, for his part he believes that this process, from which
Commissioner Frost is abstaining from, and is entitled to do so, is being done the right way.

Commissioner Frost states that he asked for recognition a few minutes ago and was talked
down to. He wanted to make a comment and one of his fellow Commissioners talked over the
top of him not allowing him to make his comment, so Commissioner Frost let him talk. As we
grow older and mature, we learn to be respectful of each other. What he wanted to say is that
this is all hypothetical and this does need to go before the new Commission to decide to go to a
5 member Commission. This is what he said a few meetings ago and does not think he needs to
repeat himself. This needs to go to the new Commission, they are the ones that are going to
approve the funding for this and the county. Close to $100,000.00 will be going towards the
Commission for the 2 new members. Some of the people that want this 5 member board and
spend this money per year, are the same ones that complain about the road when it rains. With
this money we could hire a couple of new road employees or deputies for the Sheriff’s
department.

Madam Chair DuCharme thanks Commissioner Frost for his comment.

ACTION TAKE: Commissioner Frost states that he would like to again make a motion to
adjourn. Madam Chair DuCharme asks if there is a second. Commissioner Sanchez states
that we are not finished yet. MOTION DIES

Commissioner Sanchez thinks that due to the fact that the Commission is not united on the
idea of moving to a 5 member Commission, we should not delegate the responsibility for the
promotion on an idea that the Commission is not unified behind. The burden of effort is on us
and we shouldn’t put the county employees in the middle of all this. This does not seem like a
county matter since the Commission is not unified on this. He would hate to put any of the
offices or employees in a difficult position, we need them to be A-Political and remain neutral.
We need to give them the opportunity as well to voice their opinions and concerns as well. As
a split board, if we give the manager’s office directive to prepare these maps, but they don’t
agree, it would not be right to force them to prepare information if they don’t agree on it. The
issue seems to have become political and we need to divorce this from official county business.
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Madam Chair DuCharme states that she strongly disagrees with what Commissioner
Sanchez has to say. She states that it is the manager’s office responsibility to carry out the
decisions of the Commission regardless if they agree with them or not. We need to decide if we
want to go further and have the public hearing on this issue or not. It is not a personal issue and
per state statute we as Commissioners are required to make a decision and vote on it. It is not
political in anyway and is no different than any other decisions we are making. We need to
have clear vision on this and decide if we want to bring this to the public or just stop here.
Madam Chair DuCharme thinks it is not her personal responsibility to move forward. The
plans are prepared and we need to set a date for the public hearing and vote on this.

Belinda Garland states that the Manager’s office does whatever the Commission directs them
to do. If she sits there and points on issues with the maps, she is not being argumentative, she is
just pointing out things for the Commission to think about. The votes you make are your
decisions and you have to live with them. Ms. Garland merely points out things for the
Commission to think about and that is her job to be in the middle and be on both sides. If the
Commission decides to move forward with the public hearing, then we will prepare whatever
packet you want us to.

Commissioner Frost states that the public hearing should not happen until the new
Commission comes in. Commissioner Javier will be a part of that Commission and all of them
should hear what the public has to say on this issue.

Commissioner Sanchez states that we are discussing the hearing, the map, and the brochures
all at once. He states that the public outreach should not be done during one hearing.
Commissioner Sanchez would like to do some public outreach in his district and have meetings
with the communities in his district. He does not want to set a date for the public hearing, he
cannot commit to a timeline. We need to decide on a plan, decide on the brochure, not set a
date, and have each Commissioner do some public outreach within their district as they see fit.
No information should be put on the county website. We have one Commissioner that is not for
this and we need to respect his decision, placing the information on this could prove to be
problematic.

Belinda Garland states that it only takes a vote of 2 to move to the public hearing and then
give the directive to the manager’s office on what to do next. The Ordinance is the only item
that will require the majority vote.

Commissioner Frost asks if there is a particular order in which the public hearing and voting
on the ordinance must take place.

Belinda Garland states that the public hearing will need to happen first and then the ordinance
will be presented after.

Commissioner Sanchez states that he recommends the manager’s office remain posted on a
date for the public hearing. Once we have completed what we need to, then instruct the
manager’s on a date for the public hearing.
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Madam Chair DuCharme asks if the ordinance should be presented at the public hearing.

Belinda Garland states that is what part of the public hearing is about, the wording of the
ordinance.

Commissioner Frost states that he has no opposition at all in having a public hearing or voting
on the ordinance. He sticks to his opinion that this should be left to the new Commission. The
new Commissioners are the ones that will have to work the decision that will be made. He
doesn’t understand why there would be any opposition in leaving this decision to the new
Commission. We have gone many years with a 3 member Commission, waiting a few more
months to make that decision shouldn’t be an issue.

Commissioner Sanchez asks Madam Chair DuCharme what her strategy will be for public
outreach within her district.

Madam Chair DuCharme states that her plan will be the same as Commissioner Sanchez by
having meetings with the public as well as placing a lot of the information on her Facebook

page.

Commissioner Sanchez asks Ms. Garland why she feels so strongly about plan A and if she
would like to elaborate more on them. Commissioner Sanchez states that if he at any time shut
anyone down during the meeting today, he didn’t mean to. It got a little contentious for a bit
and it is difficult to maintain ones composure. He would like to hear more from anyone on
their comments from plan A or any of the other plans.

Belinda Garland states that she is good and has no comments.

Madam Chair DuCharme would like to remind everyone that this Commission is one that
started this process, why should we have the next Commission make the decision? We started
this process and we should at least try to finish it.

Commissioner Sanchez believes this issues has merit. There are a lot of benefits that can
come from a 5 member Commission. He is looking forward to the discourse that will come
from it. Commissioner Frost is against this, people from the public are against this, and he is
looking forward to the input these people have on this topic. We need to take our time and
make sure that the issue is not rushed.

Linda Jaramillo states that for the sake of the public, when you have these meetings, and you
are only presenting one map, questions will arise as to why they are only seeing this map. If
you don’t present them with other maps to explain why you came to the decision to focus on
the one map, people will ask why. Michael Sharp has given us the maps, if you present them to
the public you can explain to them why you chose one map over the other. You are going to
have to do this all over again with the public. Very few people come to these meetings, and
when they do they are here for other reason and then end up leaving before this item comes up.
The public hasn’t seen the maps or presentations. Put the maps up for your sake when you start
to have the public meetings. If you want the public’s input then you will need to present them
with all the maps and explain to them why you came to the decision of proposing map D-2.
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Commissioner Sanchez states that if you place 5 maps for the public to view, how can you get
everyone to agree. There will be too many view points and you can’t get any traction. How can
you avoid that?

Linda Jaramillo replies that you cannot avoid that. The reason for the public hearing is to hear
from the public. If it takes you 9 hours to get public input, then that’s what it takes. You have
to give the public their due process. Ms. Jaramillo states that Michael Sharp went to a meeting
where all maps were presented and it took hours upon hours to hear from the public. If you
want public input and public hearings, it is going to be long, tiring, and hard. Their opinions
and input on the maps and the 5 member board should matter. My office will have to do the
minutes for those meetings, we are the keeper of the record, and are here for the duration to
listen to everyone speak. You need to have your due process for the public. The public should
influence you on your decision in the end it is ultimately your decision, but you need to give
the public their voice. If you are basing your decision on what the public says, then they should
be able to view all the maps.

Belinda Garland states that if you don’t want to present the public with 10 maps then pick 3
that are all different and then present those to the public. With that option you will get better
input from the public by seeing that 15 liked this map but then 100 liked this other map.

Commissioner Frost states that he has always interpreted the term Public Hearing as meaning
public hearing. It is not a Commission hearing. We listen to the public and then make our
decision based on that.

Madam Chair DuCharme states since public money was spent on these maps, then all of
these maps should be available to the public.

Commissioner Frost states that it would be good, but why go to that expense until you find
out if the new commission is going to redistrict or not.

Madam Chair DuCharme states that there will be no expense if the maps are placed on the
county website for the public to view.

Commissioner Frost states that there are a lot of people that do not have access to the county
website.

Madam Chair DuCharme states that this is one way to present information to the public, not
the only way.

Belinda Garland comments that if we have a public hearing, we will have to have material for
the public. As she mentioned in the past it costs money for every color copy that we make. If
we make copies for the packets for the public, which we should, it’s going to cost a lot of
money, and we need to find a printer for that.

Commissioner Sanchez states that we can plan for the public hearing when we are ready to
proceed with it. He would like to do public outreach in his district and present them with map
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D-2. He states that he will have a better outcome in presenting this map to the people in his
district. He cannot present a map to his constituents that he doesn’t think is any good. He wants
to present a map that has meaning, and for him that is map D-2.

Madam Chair DuCharme tells Commissioner Sanchez that he can provide the other maps if
they ask him about them.

Commissioner Sanchez replies, yes, he will definitely do that.

Commissioner Frost states that he only represents district 1 and that is such for the other
Commissioners, but as a Commission we represent the whole county. He gets public input on
this topic almost every day and has been for quite some time. A lot of the input he gets from
the public is not only from his district, but from districts 2 & 3 as well.

Commissioner Sanchez states that he has public input on a daily basis. While he was
campaigning, the most enjoyable part was doing the outreach and talking to the people door to
door. There are a lot of people that are coming to his mind that he has not seen since then, and
he would like to go out and visit with those people. It’s not about who is going to come to you
and voice their opinion it’s about himself going out and getting that input from the public as
well. He is not committed one way or the other, there are assumptions that are very ingenuous.
He cannot make a decision from a 9 hour public hearing, the only way he feels that he can
achieve a decision is by spending 8 hours a day speaking to the people in his district.

Linda Jaramillo states that if you have a 9 hour meeting, you don’t have to make a decision
right then and there. Go back and watch the video. She listens to the video at least 3 times
when checking the minute for accuracy. You don’t have to make that decision right away, go
back and sit in front of the computer, take notes, and then you can determine by the next time
that a person or persons had a good idea. You can’t just listen to everyone one time, you do,
but when it comes to something like this, you need to take the time and listen to it more than
once, then make a more concise decision. This video is available for you to watch and listen in
depth. In her opinion she doesn’t know why we have commission districts, as the County
Clerk, Treasurer, Assessor, Sheriff, we represent the whole county, maybe we should be
revolutionary and say we are going to do away with districts and just represent everyone.

Commissioner Sanchez states that if you don’t have districts then there is a possibility that all
Commissioners could be from Estancia. The idea is to balance power.

Madam Chair DuCharme asks the Commissioners for a time frame on how long they will
need to do their outreach.

Commissioner Sanchez states that he would like to do outreach through Thanksgiving.

Commissioner Frost again states that he thinks it should go until January that way the new
Commission will have an ear on what is happening.
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Commissioner Sanchez would like to invite those Commissioners to the public outreach that
way they can see what is going on. Commissioner Sanchez asks Commissioner Frost if he
plans on doing any public outreach.

Commissioner Frost replies that he has not given it any thought.

*Adjourn

ACTION TAKEN: Commissioner Sanchez makes a motion to adjourn the October 37, 2018
Special Commission Meeting. Commissioner Frost seconds the motion. No further
discussion, all Commissioners in favor. MOTION CARRIED

MEETING ADJOURNED AT 6:00 pm

Madam Chair DuCharme Yvonne Otero-Administrative Assistant

Date

The video of this meeting can be viewed in its entirety on the Torrance County NM
website, Audio discs of this meeting can be purchased in the Torrance County Clerk’s
office and the audio of this meeting will be aired on our local radio station KXNM,
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DRAFT COPY
Torrance County Board of Commissioners
Commission Meeting
October 10, 2018
9:00 AM

Commissioners Present: JULIA DUCHARME — CHAIR
JAVIER SANCHEZ - MEMBER
JAMES FROST - MEMBER

Others Present: BELINDA GARIAND — COUNTY MANAGER
ANNETTE ORTIZ — DEPUTY COUNTY MANAGER
DENNIS WALLIN — COUNTY ATTORNEY
GENELL MORRIS — ADMIN ASSISTANT

Call Meeting to order

Madam Chair DuCharme: Calls the October 10, 2018 Commission Meeting to order at
9:02 AM

Pledge lead by Belinda Garland
Invocation lead by Commissioner DuCharme

Approval of Minutes: September 19th, 2018; Special Meeting September 24th, 2018;
Special Meeting September 26th, 2018 Regular Meeting

Commissioner Frost: Motion to approve September 19th, 2018 Minutes
Commissioner Sanchez Seconds the motion.
All in favor: MOTION CARRIED

Commissioner Frost: Motion to approve Special Meeting September 24th, 2018 Minutes
Commissioner Sanchez: Seconds the motion.
Allin favor: MOTION CARRIED

Commissioner Frost: Motion to approve Special Meeting September 26th, 2018 Regular
Meeting Minutes

Commissioner Sanchez: Seconds the motion.

All in favor: MOTION CARRIED

Approval of Meeting Agenda
Commissioner Sanchez: Motion to approve Meeting Agenda
Commissioner Frost: Seconds the motion.




Madam Chair DuCharme: Request to move Consent Agenda after a break to have time
to review.

Commissioner Sanchez: of course

Belinda Garland — County Manger: The consent agenda included in the packet,
included dates that have already been approved. There is nothing in there that you
haven't reviewed. There were no dates added to the end, just some extra dates added
to the beginning.

Madam Chair DuCharme: Why are we approving it today?

Belinda Garland — County Manger: The one you are approving is with the correct dates.
We printed a new one with the dates you have previously approved. Last Thursdays
when we were putting the agenda together everyone was off because we had to close
the building because the sewer lines backed up. The employee that normally prints the
consent agenda was not here that day, we printed one with extra dates. There was
nothing added that you have not reviewed.

Madam Chair DuCharme: The amount was different than previously approved.

Annette Ortiz — Deputy County Manger: The initial consent agenda was large $561,831,
because it was a larger date range than it should have been. The Corrected amount is $
201,149.62.Nothing new was added, it was taken away with the date correction.
Madam Chair DuCharme: Commissioners it this explanation sufficient enough for us to
move forward? .

Commissioner Frost: Yes

Commissioner Sanchez: Yes

*Consent Agenda was not moved.

All'in favor: MOTION CARRIED

Approval of Consent Agenda:

1. Approval of Checks

Commissioner Frost. Motion to approve Consent Agenda
Commissioner Sanchez Seconds the motion.

All in favor: MOTION CARRIED

Moment of Silence in memory of Equipment Operator Mr. Jake Tenorio and
Elections Employee Mrs. Mary Lupe (Lujan) Lucero

Madam Chair DuCharme: Our deepest condolences to their families and friends.




*ACTION ITEMS
ITEMS TO BE CONSIDERED AND ACTED UPON

*Commission Matters:

1. Memorandum of Understanding between Torrance County and Bernalillo
County for Fiscal Agent Assistance

County Manager Garland stated she has not received anything back from Bernalillo
County and requests to table item.

Commissioner Sanchez: Motion to table

Commissioner Frost: Seconds the motion.

All in favor: MOTION CARRIED

2. Resolution 2018-45, a Resolution relating to the proposed industrial revenue
bonds entitled Torrance County, New Mexico Taxable Industrial Revenue Bonds
(La Joya Wind, LLC Project), Series 2018; declaring the intent of Torrance County
to issue such industrial revenue bonds in an aggregate principal amount up to
$675,000,000 for proposed project as described therein; and directing the County
Clerk to publish Notice of Intent to consider an ordinance authorizing the
issuance and sale of the bonds in a newspaper of general circulation within
Torrance County.

Katherine McKinney — Modrall Law Firm: Representing Avangrid, is working with the
county in issuing these industrial revenue bonds. This resolution kicks off the process of
issuing the bonds and allows the company to begin purchasing equipment as an agent
for the county. From here we will provide a requisite notice to the taxing jurisdictions
within the county, then publishing notice of intent to adopt the bond ordnance and
waiting the 30 days for the limitation of action period to expire and closing the bond
issue.

Mark Stacy — Director of Development for Avanarid Renewables: We have gone
through this process before with the El Cabo project. We have been very active in New
Mexico for the past 10 years. This 2" project is called La Joya project, it’s in the same
area as El Cabo, between Encino and Willard, South of highway 60, El Cabo is mainly
north. The La Joya project is about 50,000 acres. This project is half private, half state
land, on the Lucy Ranch. We received the special use zone district for the La Joya
project in May of 2017. We are planning this project being from 160 megawatts to 350
megawatts, 160 megawatts construction will start a year from now. We have a purchase
power agreement with PNM to serve the Facebook facility in Los Lunas. This project will
use the new BB2 line, power will flow from the La Joys project to the Clines Corners
substation built for EI Cabo then to Albuquerque. The economic benefits provided by El
Cabo will be similar to this project, depending on its size. For Example: El Cabo
employs 17 full time employees (operations and maintenance facilities) at the peak of
construction 400 people were employed. Under industrial revenue bonds for the El




Cabo project and pilot payments, we end up paying about a million dollars per year into
Torrance County, divided up between the county and school districts. We have not
negotiated yet, we will begin negotiations soon. We respectfully request approval of this
resolution.

Dennis Wallin — County Attorney: This is an inducement resolution, it doesn’t bind the
county to pass the bond ordinance. It's says it's our intent to move forward with the
process. Avangrid is paying all the costs and legal fees for both bond council and my
time. | will also take off my lawyer hat and say Avangrid has been a great citizen of the
community. We appreciate that.

Commissioner Frost: Makes motion to approve Resolution 2018-45
Commissioner Sanchez: Seconds the motion.

Michael Godey — Tajique: Based on the concerns for Mountainair, the transmission lines
going through people’s property. The use of enumerate domains. The lights that are on
the windmills, | think they are excessive. | think you could have a third as many. Is there
a way to get the Feds to change their light system?

Dennis Wallin — County Attorney: We have to have a public hearing before the
Ordinance is entered. The appropriate time for that discussion is at the
Ordinance/Public Hearing. The transmission for this facility does not affect Mountainair.
Mark Stacy — Director of Development for Avangrid Renewables: The transmission lines
for this project goes nowhere near Mountainair. It goes 10 miles west of Encino to
Clines Corners north. We don’t have powers of emanate domain, we have agreements
in place with willing land owners. The FAA lighting, those are federal regulations that we
have to abide by for aviation safety.

Madam Chair DuCharme: There is a new technology that doesn’t have constant
flashing. Are you aware of that new technology? It is a problem for people that live in
that area.

Mark Stacy — Director of Development for Avangrid Renewables: | think you are talking
about lights that come on when it senses an approaching aircraft. I'm not sure if it's
commercially available.

Myra Pancrazio — EVDA: Patten Energy brought that up at the Planning and Zoning
Meeting last week. We are looking into it and the Federal government is also looking
into it but not have reported that technology yet. They are still experimenting with it.
When the federal government gives the go ahead it will be available to the wind
projects.

Madam Chair DuCharme: Which agency is responsible for that?

Myra Pancrazio — EVDA: The FAA.

Madam Chair DuCharme: What is that?

Myra Pancrazio — EVDA: Federal Aviation Administration

Marcie Wallin- Torrance County Fair Board: Thanks Mr. Stacy for helping the Torrance
County Fair.

Andrew Homer — Citizen: Maybe a glow in the dark paint on the blades of the turbines,
might be an option instead of a flashing light.




All in favor: MOTION CARRIED
3. EVSWA Vacant Exempt Denial, Appeal(s)

Belinda Garland — County Manger: At the last meeting the new definition for vacant
exempt was approved. | need directive on how you want to handle the appeals that
came in before you that you tabled. How do you want us to proceed with the new
definition? It's too late to start it now because of the billing system has already went out
for the last quarter. It's beneficial to start the new definition at the beginning of 2019.
Then we can allow people within the next 2 months to come in, complete the forms and
start the new definition. You had appeals brought before you, we need to know what
you want to do with those?

Madam Chair DuCharme: It should be applied immediately. The new definition should
be applied to those appeals.

Belinda Garland — County Manger: Are you telling us, all of the appeals that came
before you are going to be vacant exempt?

Madam Chair DuCharme: According to the new definition. We asked those people to
wait while we review the issue.

Belinda Garland — County Manger: Correct, We asked them to wait and you made the
new ruling on the definition. We need to know all of the appeals that were brought
before you, you're going to allow them to be considered vacant?

Madam Chair DuCharme: This is my opinion, commissioners?

Commissioner Sanchez: | think they have to reapply and provide the backup information
to see if they qualify.

Belinda Garland — County Manger: Who is gathering that information and made that
decision, the County or Solid Waste Authority?

Madam Chair DuCharme: Solid Waste Authority

Belinda Garland — County Manger: | will set a meeting with them and workout the
particulars.

Annette Ortiz — Deputy County Manager: Do we notify them by letter informing them
they need to apply and recertify?

Commissioner Sanchez: It would be good to call them and inform them of the new
process.

Belinda Garland — County Manger: We will draft a letter, so they have it in writing.
Madam Chair DuCharme: It should be announced on the county and solid waste
websites.

Belinda Garland — County Manger: | don’t disagree with that. We did not set a date as to
when it starts. This is why I'm asking for directive. The billing cycle went out last month
around September 10", We can start the new process January 1st, this gives people
time to come in and complete the paperwork.

Commissioner Frost: We should do as the manager suggests, this is a common sense
approach. The people in question should reapply.

Belinda Garland — County Manger: We will have to develop forms, send out letters and
they will need to bring documentation. We need time to do this.

Madam Chair DuCharme: | think exception should be valid immediately. You can send
bills January 1%t in a different way. People can apply right now.




Belinda Garland — County Manger: I'm not saying they can’t apply, they have already
been billed for this quarter. They can bring in documentation and start with the next
billing cycle.

Madam Chair DuCharme: People who are appealing will be treated differently. They will
receive exceptions and others will not.

Belinda Garland — County Manger: The people who appealed were put on hold. We are
holding their statements and billing. Everyone else has already received bills. We need
to know when and how you are going to allow this to start.

Madam Chair DuCharme: The people asked for an appeal but have not received an
answer from the commission.

Annette Ortiz — Deputy County Manager: You tabled it for 30 days.

Madam Chair DuCharme: We asked them to wait for our decision, we made a decision
and should be effective immediately. This is my opinion.

Dennis Wallin — County Attorney: The staff needs a consensus from the commission.
Belinda Garland — County Manger: If you are going to make this effective immediately,
you going to have to think about the people that have already paid for this quarter. Are
you going to allow refunds? Are we going to hold them to what they have already paid?
This is going to become very convoluted if we are not careful. If you don’t make it
effective January 1%t, you may have all these people asking for refunds. This will cause
a lot of confusion with the Solid Waste Authority.

Madam Chair DuCharme: How many people paid?

Dan DeCosta — Code Enforcement: 53-54, 8-10 appealed, around 45 people | spoke to
and informed them of rules, they agreed. Out of 45, about 15 were clearly living on the
property. Around 30 people.

Dennis Wallin — County Attorney: You have to have a process that's applied universally.
You can't treat a group of people different. Whatever the definition is, however they
document there claim that they are exempt, needs to be followed in all the cases. You
can’t create a special class.

Commissioner Sanchez: These 10 are in the balance because we instituted a new
definition on September 26%™. Its inherent they are a special category. The other rate
category have been determined. A determination has not been made for these few.
Dennis Wallin — County Attorney: They haven’t submitted the paperwork, so they are
not a special class. They are only a special, if you make them a special class which you
should not do. They need to go back through the process. They need to submit the
paperwork to prove they qualify for your new definition of vacant/exempt. Ms. Garland is
asking you to allow the staff the time to get all the forms and paperwork together to do
this.

Belinda Garland — County Manger: Potentially 30 people could have qualified the same
way as the 10 people that qualified, they just didn’'t choose to appeal. You have the
potential for those 30 people to come back and say, you gave special privileges to these
10 people, | pay my bill, | want my money back. We should start this effective January
1st, we can gather there information. The new bills will go out around December 10t
Everyone should pay their bill, through this quarter and we can start with the new
definition with that new billing cycle.

Commissioner Frost: Makes motion to proceed as described by our County Manager.




Madam Chair DuCharme: Ms. Garland, when previous resolution was approved, how
was it applied?

Belinda Garland — County Manger: We did it the same way, | worked it out with the
Solid Waste Authority. At that time we didn’t have any appeals and we started that
process with the next billing cycle. We allowed that amount of time in order to get forms
in place and people advised of the new process. We did not start in the middle of the
billing cycle, I'm recommending we don’t do now.

Madam Chair DuCharme: When is the next billing cycle?

Belinda Garland — County Manger: Bills will go out the 10t of December, for the 1st
quarter of 2019. The bills went out the 10t of September for this quarter and you did not
approve this till the 26" of September.

Commissioner Sanchez: It remains for us to adjudicate those 10 appeals individually,
correct?

Dennis Wallin — County Attorney: Are you going to adjudicate under the previous
guideline? That's when they filed their appeals, those were the guidelines. They need to
refile and provide the proper documentation. They haven’t done this and haven't
appealed anything other than they were entitled to vacant exempt under your previous
guidelines.

Commissioner Sanchez: Would we have to adjudicate based on the criteria pre 26" of
September or post?

Dennis Wallin — County Attorney: Pre, that is what they appealed. Otherwise you are
created two separate classes of people. In fairness you need to put a date on it. You
have to judge the appeals based on the definition in placed at the time of appeal. They
are appealing the decision that was made based on whether or not there was furniture
in the house. They have the right now, since you have changed it and provide
documentation.

Commissioner Frost: | will restate my motion.
*No Second

Commissioner Sanchez: Motion to table, I'd like to give it a little more thought.
Madam Chair DuCharme: Seconds the motion.

Madam Chair DuCharme: Mr. Wallin, is it legal for the county to charge people based
on if they have furniture in their house or not?

Dennis Wallin — County Attorney: You can set the standard for how you want your
ordinance to be enforced, as long as you don't create separate classes of people.

All in favor: MOTION CARRIED



*Public Relations:

4. Around the County Presentation — Annette Ortiz, Deputy County Manager

Presentation with photos of 2 projects. Charlie Breckenridge Rd. and chip seal in
Estancia. '

Leonard Lujan — Road Department: We helped the Town of Estancia with the chip seal
road project near Allen Ayers, they received state funding. We help them save a lot of
money by us doing the project for them. They pay us to work on Fridays (our day off).
We also worked on Charlie Breckenridge Rd., we are putting base course on top and
then we will go back and make it a chip seal, should last a long time. This road goes
from Hwy 41 to Appaloosa Rd. Leonard answers an inaudible question. It cost too much
money and doesn'’t last very long to use acrylic. Acrylic is used for dust control.

5. Updates:
a. Various County Departments

Linda Jaramillo — County Clerk: Election update, early/in person voting has begun
yesterday. We had 30 people vote, sent out 172 absentee ballots. Registration closed
yesterday, it's too late to register unless you walk in a registration by Thursday dated on
or before October 9%. If we get any registrations post marked October 9t or before we
will enter those. If anyone has any questions about your absentee applications call 544-
4361 or if you have any question concerning registrations or polling places call 544-
4350. The Alternate site will open Saturday, October 20" 10am - 6pm at the Moriarty
Civic Center. The following week will be open Tuesday-Saturdays till the Saturday
before the election. Same here for the in person voting, will be open till the Saturday
before the election. | encourage everyone to return your absentee ballots as soon as
possible, we can accept them up until 7pm election day.

Annette Ortiz — Deputy County Manager: | want to invite the public to come to the
County building. The Torrance County Safety Committee is presenting pinktober.
Tomorrow we will be having door decorating contest for breast cancer awareness as
well as domestic violence prevention awareness. We invite everyone to look at our
doors.

Steve Guetschow — Planning & Zoning: At our planning and zoning board meeting last
week on October 3", we heard the application from Pattern Energy LP for an upcoming
wind farm. After hearing comment in favor and opposition to the board made a Do Pass
recommendation. By roll call vote: Harlan Lawson; Do Pass, Gail Langell; Do Pass, Max
Cabber; Do Pass, Cathy Lynch; Do Pass with condition Pattern Energy’s promise for
community involvement comes to reality, Ron Graham; Do Pass. The Public hearing
when this action comes before you for the final decision will occur on November 14%. |
have updated the public notice signs in that region and have newspaper ads in the




Independent for public notices. We are resending out the 240 public notice letters to the
residence of that area.

We met this week for our Mountainair collaborative for the Forest Service plan, we had
a deadline line of October 5™, to submit our comments to the Forest Service regarding a
new plan. The plan looks good from our perspective, | added to the management of the
forest where it stated to protect the local community from wild fire also include flash
flooding. We will be meeting again on October 25% to review the comments. The review
process will be coming out for Public comment on the Forest Service website, at the
end of December early January.

Martin Lucero — Emergency Manager: I'm working on getting my certification for
Emergency Management, | have one more course and will be able to apply for that
certification.

EMPG grant, this fiscal year we received our SGA. Once that is fully executed, we will
ask for ratification. The CRI grant is on the agenda for today for ratification. We are
receiving more funding this year in the amount of $3,000 provided by the Department of
Health.

On October 25™ we will be having an active shooter training and drill here at the county
building, two trainings at 9:00 am and 10:30 am with the drill at 2 pm. We purchased
trauma kits for the Admin offices. We are working on a mass notification procedure that
we can give to everyone and conducted some rap training throughout the offices.

On October 20, 9-2 pm we will be have a flu shot clinic at the Pumpkin Chunkin, first
come first serve. Please bring your Medicaid card if you have one otherwise its free.

In the next 30 days the PIO and policy group plans will be annexed into our emergency
operations plan. We are looking at a grant to get a mobile command unit that all
emergency services can use. The sheriff's department is assisting with this.

I'd like to remind everyone that winter weather is right around the corner, please make
preparations in your vehicles or homes. Our county website under the Emergency
Management Department you will find a winter weather bulletin.

Andrew Homer — Citizen: Do you have defibrillators in county vehicles?

Martin Lucero — Emergency Manager: Our fire department has two. We are not outfitted
for every vehicle to a defibrillator. They are looking at a contract to have one in the
admin building.

Lester Gary — Fire Chief: We are getting a contract to get an automatic defibrillator here
in this building. We have 2 AEDs with the Sheriff's Department and every fire apparatus
carries and AED. We are looking at new types of devices that are out that are better
than the AEDs, they are CPR devices. They are about $11,000. We may get one on
loan from an EMS medical supply vendor, so we can do a trial here in the county.

c. County Manager

Since October 1%t [ met with Marcie Wallin, Amanda Tenorio and Tracy Sedillo in
regards to issuing payments to the fair participants who sold items at the Torrance
County Fair. Grant Committee met in regards to grants for JUAC, Emergency
Management and DWI. All three grants were approved.



Met with Presbyterian on billing issues. Attended the Planning and Zoning meeting
regarding Pattern Wind and special commission meeting to discuss the 5 member
commission. The Torrance County administrative building was closed October 4" due to
sewer lines backing up. Interviews were done for the Operations manager on October
9. NM State Department of Health would like to move the public health office back to
Estancia. Space is available at the Project Office building.

* Department Requests/Reports:

6. Grant Agreement 19-CD-05-103 between the NM Dept. of Transportation, and
Torrance County for Community DWI Funding — Tracey Master, DWI Prevention
Coordinator

This agreement is in the amount of $2,689, no match is required. Funds are generated
by a $75 fee assessed to all convicted DWI offenders. Funds will be used for
promotional items such as key chains and coaster for the Smart Choice program. It has
met approval from the Grant Committee and has passed legal review.

Commissioner Sanchez: Motion to approve Grant Agreement 19-CD-05-103 between
the NM Dept. of Transportation, and Torrance County for Community DWI Funding
Commissioner Frost: Seconds the motion.

Allin favor: MOTION CARRIED

d. Other Boards or Land Grants (upon request)

Marcie Wallin — Fair Board: The County Fair was a huge success. We had an increase
in crowd participation from the various communities. The kids that participated enjoyed
all the new activities. We had a lot of positive comments from community members,
they enjoyed playing bingo. It was so successful they asked to play at unscheduled
times, vendors made donations for the prizes. We will have to have a bigger tent for the
next fair, it was too crowded. We had 10 queen candidates, Danielle Johnston did a
great job getting participation. The cost for running the fair was $19,500 our annual
budget. We got 52 buckles ($5,200), 21 plaques ($525), 12 medal signs ($1,800)
donated. The livestock auction (43 slots) was downsized due to CCA being gone, there
were a huge contributor, and total sale was $ 130,900, total add-ons were $21,654. We
are currently owed $20,430 and $3,024 for the add-ons. At the board meeting we
worked on the ICIP plans, as to how to move forward.
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7. Telephonic Workplace Injury Management Services Agreement between
Torrance County and Company Nurse, LLC — Kristin Oliver, HR Director

This was tabled till the country attorney was able to look at this, to make sure the county
was not liable for any wrong advice. He has reviewed and there is no liability to the
county.

Commissioner Sanchez: Motion to approve Telephonic Workplace Injury Management
Services Agreement between Torrance County and Company Nurse, LLC
Commissioner Frost: Seconds the motion.

Madam Chair DuCharme: How long is the county commitment?
Kristin Oliver - HR Director: We can back out at any time.

Allin favor: MOTION CARRIED

8. Ratification of Memorandum of Agreement (Cities Readiness Initiative) between
New Mexico Department of Health and Torrance County — Martin Lucero,
Emergency Manager

The only change from last year was we received an additional $3,310 to establish cold
chain management. The deliverables are different every year, other than that nothing
has changed. This has already gone before the Grant Committee, legal review and
have been approved.

Commissioner Sanchez: Motion to approve Ratification of Memorandum of Agreement
(Cities Readiness Initiative) between New Mexico Department of Health and Torrance
County

Commissioner Frost: Seconds the motion.

All in favor: MOTION CARRIED

9. Resolution 2018-46 Cash Transfers and Line Item Transfers between Funds —
Amanda Tenorio, Finance Director

Amanda Tenorio was unavailable Manager Belinda Garland presented. This is based
off the directive and the vote for the last commission meeting, moving funding form the
PILT fund to the Commission fund. In order to provide funding within the budget for 2
extra Commissioners. This is a new type of resolution in order to record your vote for
each resolution plus your signature. There are also spread sheets showing adjustments
to the current budget line items, for review. The 641 fund (wind PILT fund) shows an
adjustment out of the county buildings and improvements line item which was $150,000,
we removed $85,746 as directed. This leaves a balance of $64,254. An adjusted budget
was created from $438,500 to $350,754 in the wind PILT fund. There are line items
dedicated for the remaining balance budget for the rest of the year. $128,500 dedicated



to the schools. $100,000 for the grader equipment lease approved January 2017. In the
401 general fund shows the money coming in for the 2 additional commissioners.

Commissioner Sanchez: Motion to approve Resolution 2018-46 Cash Transfers and
Line ltem Transfers between Funds

Madam Chair DuCharme: Seconds the motion.

All in favor: MOTION CARRIED

*County Manager Requests/Reports:

10. Ratification of State of NM Aging and Long Term Services Department Fund
89200 Capital Appropriation Project - Belinda Garland, County Manager

This agreement is in the amount of $20,000, this fund will be used for vehicles for the
Senior Centers. This agreement has been reviewed by legal counsel. | signed it so we
can move our appropriation funds forward in order to start purchasing the vehicles.

Commissioner Sanchez: Motion to approve Ratification of State of NM Aging and Long
Term Services Department Fund 89200 Capital Appropriation Project

Commissioner Frost: Seconds the motion.

All in favor: MOTION CARRIED

Public Reguests:

Andrew Homer — Citizen: The counseling office regarding domestic abuse, Where is
that office? My suggestion is the county sets aside $1,000 a year to advertise the phone
number for the Domestic Violence office in the Enchantment published by the Central
NM Electrical Coop.

Belinda Garland — County Manger: The information to contact the domestic violence is
advertised on our website, on the front page.

EXECUTIVE SESSION:

As Per Motion and Roll Call Vote, Pursuant to New Mexico State Statute Section
10-15-1, the Following Matters Will be discussed in Closed Session:

a) Discussion regarding the purchase, acquisition or disposal of real property for
Torrance County operations, Sec. 10-15-1 (H) (8)

b) Potential litigation related to LeRoy Candelaria, v. Torrance County, Section 10-15-
1(H)(3)
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Madam Chair DuCharme: | need clarification on b), Is it ok to put it this way on the
agenda?

Dennis Wallin — County Attorney: | don’t know that | would have put Candelaria v.
Torrance County, but it is potential litigating between the two parties, so | think its fine.

Madam Chair DuCharme: Makes a motion to go into Executive Session.
Commissioner Frost: Second the motion

Roll Call Vote: District 1: Yes, District 2: Yes, District 3: Yes.

Executive Session starts at 10:40 am

*Reconvene from Executive Session:

Commission Frost: Motion to reconvene from Executive Session
Commissioner Sanchez: Seconds the motion
All in favor: MOTION CARRIED

Reconvened at 11:34 am

Pursuant to Open Meetings Act, Section 10-15-1(J), Commission Report from
Closed Meeting:

c) Consider and Act upon, if necessary the purchase, acquisition or disposal of real
property for Torrance County operations

Madam Chair DuCharme: We were updated, No decision made.

d) Consider and Act upon, if necessary, potential litigation related to LeRoy Candelaria
v. Torrance County

Madam Chair DuCharme: We were updated, directed County Manger to turn this matter
over to the Attorney General for further investigation.

*Adjourn

Commissioner Sanchez: Motion to adjourn Special Commission Meeting.
Commissioner Frost: Seconds the motion.
All in favor: MOTION CARRIED

Meeting adjourned at 11:35 AM
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JULIA DUCHARME — CHAIR Genell Morris — Administrative Assistant

Date

The Video of this meeting can be viewed in its entirety on the Torrance County
NM website. Audio discs of this meeting can be purchased in the Torrance
County Clerk’s Office and the audio of this meeting will be aired on out local radio

station KXNM.

14



Consent Agenda



OTTTP®S -1 Aoeir

"SMOEHD HSHHL SSADO¥WA OL INIWLNYAHA FINYNIA EHI FZINOHIOY A€8¥FH SIOQ ANV EIVAd SIHL NO
qINSST FE OL SADIHD ATAVAVA SINNODOY ISHHL d04 ISIXH SANAL INITOTIINS LVHL AITINHO A€H¥EH SHO0 WHANSVANL ALNNOD JANOISIIANA HHL

OTTTWeIer ®pUuUT] swxeyond eTTNL ZSYoues IaTARp 1§0Id M Sauep

A LSELLY JqINDIS

"ALNNOD HONYHYOL A9 AIVd NEEE SYH IdNVd ON IVHL ONY dEE¥9V SY QY ‘ITEYNOSYHM ‘ISOAL HIY QEWIVID SINDOWY

HHL IVHI ‘GENIWVXE NEZJE SYH ¥EHONOA SIHIL IVHI ‘dHJOdd aNV AYUSSHDEAN H¥Y XHHL LVHL ‘NISYSH SINNODOV RHI NI CQAIVIS SY AANEOITHEd

NIZE FAVH SHDIANAS HHL IVHI °NISNIH QIIVIS NOIIYSNEAWOD HHLI SATHDSY OL OOIXEW MAN 30 SHLOIVLIS FHIL 40 NOILALIISNOD HHI MAANN CELLILNT

ATIYDET HYY SNOSHHd TEWUYN NIHLIM SHL IVHL AJTLSSED EM - 8TOZ/LT/0T ONIANE JOI¥NAd HHI ¥Od FAOHY NMOHS SY SEDIAYES FHL Y04 &

-NT SNOILYDITHO 40 INOODDY NO 6% LLE‘99T 40 WOS FHL ¥04 ALNNOD HONVIMOL JO SANNJ FHI ISNIYOY SINVANYM HHL HZTHOHLOY Od ¥ QEMOTIV
dEACHIAY HNIM HAOHY QALVHEWONE SWIVTIOD HHL IVHLI AJTIYHED OQ SHENOTSSTHWOD 40 @IVOE ALNNOD HDNVHNOL HHI J0 SUIGWEK QINDISHIANN FHL

6L JHLNI¥ SAJFHD TYLOL

NOILYDIJZILYHAD
(T9DEHD) TO:¥¥:L 8T/LT/0T :®3eQ



BI0Z/€0/0T ONILIAZW

8T0Z/60/01
00°T2

"19 8T0Z/60/0T 81600102 S02Z-80-TO¥ qEY0d ONINOZ ONY ONINNYIJ ANTYEHIVD ‘HONAT TIBZSOT O TO
L0 89T HILNAD HOIVASIA-T1T6
8960TH#IODY S8LOOTHIDIOANT
XYL 8T02/60/0T
ONILSOH €3M 8T0Z J¥ALOLDO LO BPT
8% 8T0Z/60/0T 81600T8 TLZTZ-08-TT6 TIIE LANIIINI XTHLNOKW QLT SEOIA¥IES JLANNIINI O€H0T 08ZSOT ¥ TO
00°T9 ONINOZ ¥ ONINNVId
8102/60/0T
8T0Z/€0/0T ONILFEW QuVOd 00°19
"9 8T0Z/60/0T 8T600T¥C S022-80-TOV ONINOZ ONY ONINNYIg NVTHVH ‘NOSMYT 6LZSO0T O TO
00° 19 ONINOZ ¥ ONINNV'Id
8102/60/01
8T0Z/€0/0T ONILATW @uvOH 00°T9
) 8102/60/0T 81600722 SQZZ-80-TO% ONINOZ ANV ONINNYIL IIVD ' TTIEONYT 8LZS0T O TO
00°TS ONINOZ ¥ ONINNYIg
8T02/60/0T
8T0Z/€0/0T ONILIIN @IYOH 00°T9
"T9 8T0T/60/0T B8I600TEZ S022-80-TO0F ONINOZ dNVY ONINNYIA ZEHONVS ALYYW ‘ZEANVNITH LLEZSOT O TO
00°T9 ONINOZ ¥ ONINNYIL
8102/60/01T
8T0Z/€0/0T ONILIHW CIYOH 00°T9
"I98 8T0Z/60/0T 8T600TTZ S0CZ-80-TO¥ ODNINOZ aNW ONINNYIJ NOYd ‘WYHYED 9LZSOT O TO
98°T89 XYl SWH/SNOILYDINAWNWNOD
"S0T 0T0EE / 7/ 8%ZZ-€8-%09 S1009d IHOITOWL TT'S 8T0Z/60/0T
‘66€ 0TOoCE / /7 8%22-€8-%09 SLNVd Odd IHOITIOYL TT°S 98°189
"SLT 0TogE 8T02/60/0T 8T600TST 8%2Z-€8-%09 OT04 LHOIFMLHOIT FDU0d OVHL STYD DTT STTIYD SLZSO0T O TO
Ly S¢ YHLNED HOILY4ASIA-TITé6 00°%C APITO AINOOD
000-0€S6-09#1D0V
8102 Idds 8T0Z2/60/0T
-1 8T0Z/60/0T ST600IET 60ZZ-08-TT6 TIIE SYD TTVANLYN XTHLNOW LY 69
‘ve 8T0Z/60/0T 8T600TS 80€Z-02-CT9 000-08€9-0T#LODY NOILVIDOSSY SYD MW PLZSOT ¥ 10
¥6°008 HIINSYIAL ALNOOD
TELPIVZHIOOVY 00Z89THADIOANT
T68ZE (an 810Z/60/0T
T682Z¢ AOVd AMELIVE) S40 QDT 000T 76°008
Qo8 T68CE 8T0Z/60/0T 8T600T¥H 6TZZ-0E-609 LAVWS OUdLYYWS HLIT d4Tdl ONI JENNOD JEAINAMWOD €L2S0T ¥ 10
00°T9 DNINOZ ¥ ONINNVId
8T0Z/€0/0T 8T0Z/60/0T
DNILHEW qIvod 0019
TS 8T0Z/60/0T 8T600TET S0Z2Z-8B0-TO¥ ONINOZ NV ONINNYIZ XYW gEgdyD ¢LZS0T ¥ 10
Iy # od LIVA # 20TOAUT wajlr Lsurg uotadiaosaq aiNa

T :abeg

8T0Z

‘9T ¥IFOLD0-8TOZ

‘S WHFHOLDO

JALNTEd SADIHD ONILSTIT ¥OEHD {D32HHD)

€0 EPIL

#I0

81/LT/0T :e3eqQ



TICT L FLJIOY

8102/60/0T

€T0EE ¥TIOTAXE LI0Z LB 8¥
"8% £TOEE 8T0Z/60/0T 8TE00TE 1022-0E-T0% NOILDFASNI ¥ FONVHD 1IO SATYS O3 HOIH 062S0T ¥ 10
9L° €86 LNIWIOYNYN MSTH
ZF96 T8SHADIOANT
9562¢€ ONITANYH 3 ONIdAIHS 8T0Z/60/0T
9562€ HATINHDNI ALEIVS 9L° €86
“€£86 9562€ 8T0Z2/60/0T 8T600TLT 8%2Z-90-009 HINOW SSENIRMYMY JIONVD ILSYTId SNOILOWOH¥d HATLISOA 68Z50T O 10
15°6% WIOUNVI ALNDOD
8102/60/0T
W ‘FIN0IENONg IV TS 6%
34 8T0Z/60/0T 8T60TZ S0ZZ-0T-T0F% SHSSYID @DQE WOMI NMQLTY NILSIMI “¥dAITIO 88ZS0T ¥ 1O
S6°152 HEDYNYIW ALNNOD
810Z/60/0T
AINITIIIY UH §6°1s2
14 8T0Z/T0/0T 8TIOOTS S0ZZ-0T-TO0% WN 0SOQINY OL TIAVHEL NILSIW ‘Y¥HAITO L82ZSOT ¥ T0
8€°0L YIINED HOLYdSIQ-TI6
TEI6PBESOSHLIOY 8T0Z/60/0T
YTIWELLITS 8E° 0L
*0L 8T0Z/60/0T 8160019 LOZZ-08-TT6 TIIS INVLSIA ONOT ATHINOW SNOLILUYDINAWWOD SIN 982S0T ¥ TO
66°L8T NOISSIWWOD ALNNOD
9TLTHIOOY
SYDH
88 /7 602Z-5S0-TOF% JUELNED JOINIS JIVNIVINOOW 8102/60/0T
HALYM 66°L8T
‘66 8102/60/0T 8TE00TTIT 012Z-S0-TO¥% /UEINED JOINIS ATYNIVINQOW J0 NMOL ‘dIVNIVINNOW S8ZS0T O T0O
20TV NOTILNALILSTY WILJIA
PSSHIOOY
ZLSZE 180d4ns
[4X-143 WILOIA EONITOIA DILSEWOd ¥OI 810Z/60/01
ZLSZE SQO0D WHAAVd ‘SIONJOYd ENIHDXH 20 T%
"I TLSZE 8T0Z/60/0T 8T1600TL €8ZZ-8E€-169 HNINIWH ‘004 FTIYHSTEH-NON Sa00d ATNVINOW ¥8250T O T0O
8T°80¢ NOIIWDNAE 9H0¥a
TIYMQIVYH SI¥VH ‘HSNOHTHYM 8T02/60/0T
IDIAGEASACOS MIOUWVHS ‘€N'ID SWYS 8T 80€E
‘BOE 8T02/60/0T 8T600TOT LSZZ-68-%08 SWELT S ¥0d4 INAWASANGWIFY YNNY  ZENTISVH €8250T ¥ TO
15°952 WAINID HOIVASIA-TT6
090TPPTH#LOOV TOEPTESTHADITOANT 8102/60/0T
XYL SHTIYS JITJ0D 167952
‘952 8T02/60/0T BI600TST €02Z-08-TT6 GNHZIE-INFNAYE LOVAINOD JMNVE SSHENISNE NITIYH 28TSO0T O 10
00°'T9 ONINOZ 3 ONINNVId
g # od HIV4d  # 92TOAuUI w3 SUTT uotjdranssg aweN ALYA #10
4 1abeg 8T0Z ‘9T ¥YHLAOLDO-BTOZ ‘S WIEOLDO QAINTNA SYJEHD  ONTISTT YOEHD (09DFHD) €0:€¥:L  BI/LT/OT :33eq



Vo wuit

[4:]3 L69ZE 8T0Z/TT/0T S8TTTOTSE 122z-€5-21% ONISILHIAQY SYLLS0d YIEYHOIN NIETTY 86ZS0T O TO
$0°96¢ INFWLOTIY HTIIJ ALYLS
LSTTZ99S566# HIIOANT
ddA T 18I 81 14dS
"OTT 8T0Z/TT/0T 8TTTOTS 0€2Z-T6-90% Hd TYLNHES AHANITAD
ddpA € LSIA LTLI96ZZ #IDDV
1S8%899566# HOIOANI
8T I4dS
60T 8T0Z/TT/0T BITIOIS 0€ZZ-T6-80% TEA TYLNTY YHANITAD
TS8LBZZHIDDV 8T0C/ST/0T
9SZTZ99566# TDIOANI P0°96€
'SET 8T0Z/TT/0T SITIOTY 0€ZZ-16-50% 8T ILdAS HEJ TYINTI JFANITXD OTT ¥sN SYDIIY L6ZSOT O TO
02°2T%C SNOTLDETI
048281 PH#ADIOANT
AN ¥18ZE / / 6122-TZ-T0¥% XYL
‘08T PT8EE / / 6122-TZ-TO¥% ONITANVH ® ONIdLIHS 810Z/ST/0T
‘809 $T8ZE / /7 6TCZ-TE-TOV NOTAN uw8TXu¥®T OUS SNWIL IV1d 0Z 2TV
RASYS yigze 8T0Z/TT/0T 8TITTIOTE 6TCZ-TZ-TO0¥ ove ATddNS THAHM- ¥ 0D NIZATY Y 96250T 0O ToO
007000  EDILSAL TTINAANL QIXD
TET # ZDIOANI 8T0Z/60/0T
8102 YAAWALITS 00°000€
000€ 8T0Z/60/0T 8TE0TT ZLZZ-L9-S¢€9 09ZXSAYd €T A AIANQIS ‘HdUUM S62S0T ¥ TO
26°SE6 USLNTD HOIV4SIA-TT6
S8960TOL#LODY
‘ST S162E / 7 6T22-08-TT6 gY¥L LHOTY ¥NAAI0d HIId QUINS
‘99 ST62¢ / / 612Z-08-TT6 SELON SHEIMDOILS SATAYLS
‘689 ST162¢ / 7/ 6T2ZZ-08~-TT6 "yIGYd Ad0D 40 FSYD 8102/60/0T
ST6ZE NOISNUYAXE 26" 9t6
"¥9 ST162¢ 8T0Z/60/0T 8T600TST 61Z2~08-TT6 wZ/T-T YA@IOd HIId AYIWS IOYILNVAQY SSENISNE STTAVLS ¥6250T O TO
95°90% NOIIYONAH SNNd
S8LEOTOLAVHLOOY B8ELLIGEBEE
008SP9€E8EE ' 66LSPIEBEE ‘BELSPIEREE 8T0Z/60/0T
'LELSPIEBEE ‘9TTHZOEBECHADTOANT 95°90%
90V 695Z¢ 8T02/60/0T 8T600THT 6T22-68-708 SHAIULS ANV SUVILS ¥OJ SHATLNHINT IOUINYAQY SSHNISNE SHIAVIS €62S0T O TO
T6°0LE INIVW XETdWOD IYIDIAND T0°222T SADILI0 FATLVALSINIWAY
8T I1dds
T0LB / 7/ £0ZZ-9T-T0% IYIDIANL ¥O0d IOVHLNOD INIVIH 810Z/60/0T
8T I4d5 "9HAIL NINAY Z26°2602
“zeet 8T0Z/60/0T 8T600TZT £€022-ST-T10% JOod IOVALNOD INIWW SEADTATAS SWAI T6ZS0T - O TO
08 L6T IIId aNIM
0880¥%6 E#HLIDY 968 TOLOEHADIOANT
8T/¥1/6 HILYA EDIOANT BI0Z/60/0T
8T/TE/O0T-B8T/T0/0T 08°'L6T
“L6T 8T0Z/60/0T 8T600T6 ¥822-60-069 LNHWAYd DIAOINAd ONI ‘¥Sn HODIN T62€S0T ¥ TO
[i\+4 # od qIYA # 20TOAUTI wa3I SUTI uotadransag aweN TIVA #2310
€ :abeg 8T0Z ‘9T VIHOIDO-BTOZ ‘S VIAGOLDO JIINIYL SADHHD ONILSIT MDHEHD (09DEHD) €0 €%:L 8T/LT/0T :@3eva



097 LL YOSSISSY AINAOD

8T0Z ‘9T ¥IAHOLDO-8T0Z ‘S WAHOLIO UELNT¥d SMDIHD ONILSIT MDEHD

(09DEHD) E0:E€%:L

KN FZINdVINdNGTY 8T0Z/ST/0T
FONTIHINOD TTYS HAILYITIIIY 09°LL
LL 8T0Z/TT/0T 8TITOTIT S0ZZ-0¥-0T19 dOSSHSSY DHWN OL THAVIL ALIFE ‘YIGIVD €0€S0T O TO
08°9692 JATYHAHS ALNNOD
AYELLYI SL995008%2Z
XJALIVI S929008%22
AYILIVE 88Z2E£668P2Z2Z
6LLTE . W8T ILsSNONY "dINId
"6E9T 6LLTE 8T0Z/TT/0T 8TITOTFT T0Z2Z-0S-10% WHHSYM ‘SIAYIE WIIIM ‘SITELLIVE
GBZTB68YTZH 8T0Z/ST/0T
{3144 8T0Z A7 INL "QINIg 0879692
"950T ¥692Z¢€ 8T0Z/TT/0T BTTITOIETL TO0ZZ-05-TOV¥ YHHSYM ’‘SEAYIE Y34IM 'SITILLIVE "ONI ENOZOINY CO0ESOT O TO
LT 99 INIWLOTIV TIId AIVLS
6095TEZLZLBZHIDDY
8T0Z8Z60X6095T6TLZLBZHHADIOANT
8T/02/6 8T0Z/ST/0T
OL 8T/TZ/8 STOUYHD ATHLNOKW LT"S9
"89 8T0Z/T1/0T BITTOIZ LOZC-T6-LOT LOZZ-66L-SLS OTT ALIATIHOW I ® IV TOESOT O 10
09°LZ6PZ INIWLOTTY JdId FIVIS
SELYVIH# HDIOANI
0sLZE 90S0Z0O000WHS “ON ILDOVIILNOD I
0SLZE NAIWTNOE MATd INOYINONETY IO ALID
0sLzZE HOLINOW ¥ALSYW XdND¥dANW 30J
"66LE 0SLZE / 7/ 8P2C-16-8TF JLMIDVIE FOVHOLS NOWIV S000-9%%E
"66LE osLze /7 8%2Z-T6~-S0% -MAV¥ (9) ‘SAIL AIAOVYIS FTIITIAL NO
"BELE 0SLZE / /7 8PZ2-T6-607 WIV 86%Z-dV¥ (9) ‘MOTI ATIVISACAY
‘66LE 0SLZE !/ 7/ 8%Z2-T6-80% /M TTIZZON X¥MNOYAW oS Z NOWIY L¥
‘66LE 0sLZE /7 89ZC-T6-90% 1S-AV (9) ‘¥OLINOW HTISYINO4 000T
66LE 0SsLzZE 810Z/TT/0T BITTOTS 8%2Z-16-L0V YILSYW R¥ADUANW NOWIY 9vveE-NW (9)
£2259¢% EDIOANI
988BZ¢ 90S0Z20000¥HS ILOY
988C¢ WLNOD INAWAINDT HYIJd FNONINONETY
9882¢ "STENWd £/M INOMJ
‘oLe 988Z¢ /! / 8¥ZZ-16-90% LINITTH dFHIVAT 49 S NIIVD
9882Z¢ "WI¥
9882¢ L HALLDETAHY ‘IAITS S,NUWLSOd /M
988Z¢ ASVATHY ADINO XFWON ‘¥HCTIOH LNOH
9882Z¢ d JIDVE SSVHE AIA¥YD 49 'SAVINYH
9882¢ XEWON MOTTHA ‘¥WHENIT TENNVII ‘qa 9T0Z/ST/0T
988BCE YANYLS ‘SENN0G INYITAWOD YddaN/M 09°LZ6%2
988Z¢€ 8102/TT/0T BITIOIS 8¥2Z-16-50% LIAWIIH TYNOILIAYIL SNIIVD ONI INFWAINOE |ATL VISHINY 00ESO0T O TO
00°9L9 DONINOZ 3 ONINNWId
8TL# HOIOANI BTOZ/ST/0T
8962¢ " LSYId¥00 00°9L9
8962¢ 8T0Z/TT/0T STTIIOTL TZZZ-80-TO0% NO g¥¥ ‘SNDIS HOILON DJITand SINTId NIVINNOW ATJdY 662501 O TO
08°Z0€ YIVd ALNNOD
TOOTHIDIOANT 8T0Z/ST/0T
# o0d wsar SurTg uotadraosag [weN AINA $ID

8T/LT/0T :®3eq



IICLTLOTLLY

dlJlHdn 40 Sd'ldloNldd

SNOILYOITHNd NOLLOELOYd TIIdL

TTESOT O 10

PTO6CLHLIOVY
8T0Z'T IDO OL 8TOZ'% Id4IS

89°90T

LNAWLOTIVY JYId ZLYLS

8T02/ST/0T
89°90T

‘90T 8T0Z/TT/0T 8TTTIOTZZ 0TZ2Z-16-90% adAZ LSIA SEOUVHD XA'IHLNOW ‘ONI ‘¥AIYM Joddd 0TESOT © TO
€8°02T INFWLOTIY H¥Id ALYLS €L 9T JALTAHS TYWINY
EAY AYMOTTVD
¥8-000-0€Z9-TL# @I HONWA NONNYD
TIVD ¥P-000-0TSP-TLHLIDY ‘8TOC
‘59 / 7/ 60ZZ-T6-507 JIdES SADYVHD ATHINOW CIA S ISIA
000-089€-0L#IOOY AIAT
‘8¢ / 7/ 60ZZ-T6-907 15IA 8T0C Ld¥S SIOUYHD XTHINOW
TIVYL NOISSINW JITVYS
LSL-000-06€S-094#1DDY BIOZ LAHAS
"9z / /7 6022-T6-80% SHOUYHD ATHINOW TIAE ISIA
0T0850094#LIODY 8T0Z/ST/0T
8T LdES J0 HINOW HHILI ¥0d IDIAYHAS 95°'SPT
44 8T0Z/ST/0T 8TTITOTI9S 602T-28-TO¥ ATHINOW dHELTIIHS TYWINV OL NOILYIDOSSY SV MWH 60£S0T O 10
LZ 0TS XYL ESIDXE HIId %¥/T
TELPIPZHIOOY €8€89T#H HAITOANI
1I¥62Z€ "¥OIDILO¥d W04 LNAOKW
"8TT 1v6z¢e / / 6122-26-TT% ONITIHD AIND-INW-L{¥d SODOANT
1%62¢€ FOLOALOEd
43 iv6z¢€ / 7/ 6122-26-TT¥% ¥od FSYD DNIXMUVYD SNDOINT 8T0T/ST/0T
1¥62¢€ AOLOFALOEd LZ' 0TS
TLbE TveCE 8T0Z/TTI/0T 8TITTOTIZ 6TEZ-26~TTVP  HTIVLE0d dTId AXPLINI HSAD04 NI ONI ¥HENMOD ¥HALONAWOD BOESOT O TO
68" €E€T ONISSTIAAY TYENH
67S89TH# HOIOANI
ZTEGZE WA 00T - LIWM 00S - A 02T 8T0Z/ST/0T
TEGTE oY - 8dn 68" €ET
TEET ZE6ZE 8T0Z/TT/0T BITIOIONZ 8TTT-L0O-SLY - @21 00T O¥d T¥YWS HIIT JdTHL ONI JENI0D ¥ALONAWOD LOESOT O TO
00°CT JOSSHSSY ALNAOD
8T0Z/ST/0T
¥T6TE €0V# IINO 00°ZT
"zt PI6ZE 8T0Z/TT/0T B8TITIOTIST 1022-0%-019 YIVATS H¥IL Iv¥1d TASETIA ¥ HATLOWOLAY MNIALOD 90€£S0T O TO
06°86T INAWEOYNYH ISTT
96060000 EHLIDY
PLBSBLEOFBHIDIOANTI XYL 8T0Z/ST/0T
FATISHIAVAOY OS ‘TOAVHD FDIAMHAS 06°86T
‘B6T 1z92Z¢ 8T0Z/TT/0T 8TTTOTST 8¥22-90-009 HDIAYIS NOILYLS HSYM JXE ¢ "ON NOILWIOd¥OD SYINID S0€S0T O TO
0L°6992 ¥ SSOMD AWILNO TYLIIYD
000~88PL#IDDVY £906S26T# HDIOANT
"Z8LT 8T0Z/TT/0T 8TTTOTO® £€192-96-129 JIAYOT
000~0T889L0 #IDDOY 8T0Z/ST/0T
8T0Z2-0T-0T# FDIOANI 0L°5992
I 4:1: 8T0Z/TT/0T STITITOTST €T92-96-129 INFHAYd HOHMOVEA¥0D SOAS TYIDNUNIL JIVTIIJIELYD POESOT O TO
wy # od TAINA  # S9TOAUI wa3l auT] uotadtaossg auweN FIVA #2310
s 1ebeg 8T0Z '9T YHLOLDO-8T0Z ‘S JYIHOLDO JEINTIAL SHOTHD ONILSIT XDIHD (09DFHD)Y  £D:ePiL 8T/LT/OT :@3ed



IVLloLir LY TILE NI

;"T18LZ S68Z€ 8T02/TT/0T 8ITTOTZE €02Z-9T-T0%  YIATIOUILNOD WVNDONd ANY FOWIdTM
SLESTTEREZL-TH# HDIOANT 8T0Z/ST/0T
89LZE TYIDIANL LY OVAH HLIM 1% 8SED
"TOLST 89LZE 8T0Z/TT/0T 8TITOITE STZZ-9T-T0% WTIE0Yd JIVAEN ANV JLOOHSETHNOHL ONI STIONINOD NOSNHOL 8TESOT O TO
86°96 MEETD XLNAOD
6LV8BSZ 8T0Z/ST/01
-€CHLOOY TTLSTLTOZ# ADIOANT 8696
i"96 TELZE 8T0Z/TT/0T BITTOTOE 812Z-02-2T9 WIIJO¥OIN ¥0d A4 HOVHOLENAWADYNYN SAU0DTE NIVINOOW NONT LTESOT O TO
¥Z° 0901 SNOILDETH
98908-7%908# HEDIOANT 8T0Z/ST/0T
0662¢€ SEWIL € NI OL ¥Z2°090T
"090T 0662¢€ 8T0Z/TT/0T BTITOI6Z T2ZZ-12-10¥% H9Yd Z/T Q¥ NOLILVWMOJNI ¥ALOA D71 SMEN INIANIAZANT 9TESOT O IO
BE"S8T YALTHEHS TYWINY 0T 0f2 ONINOZ ® ONINNYIA
THHSINYIL
/SPPTHLOOY 0PZZZZHEDTOANT
TS8T 8T0Z/TT/0T BTITOTIBZ z0zz-28-T0% 0%Z22ZHANT THNS FTOIHEA
ELBEHIDOY GETTZZH# TDIOANT
T BE / 7 202Z-80-T0¥% Tand 8T/81/6
'9¢g / /7 202Z-80-T0% TENI 8T/8T/6
19§ /7 zZ0Z2Z-80-589 180d 81/92/6 810Z/ST/01T
B X1 / / Z0ZZ-80-589 T30 BT/%¥Z/6 8% STV
"68 8T0Z/TT/0T BITIOTLEZ Z0ZZ2-80-589 TInd 8T/81/6 *0D TIO NISLSNOH STESOT O TO
0T TE INAWNLOTIY F¥Id HIVLS
8T0Z/ST/0T
BT0Z I4HS 0T TE
“TE 8T0Z/TT/0T SITIOISE 0TZZ-16-50% TIIE ¥WAIYM S LSIA T0D YALYM QYALSIWOH PIESOT O TO
00°6LE  SHAIIAIO FATIVALSINIWAY
STTH# LODY
8T LddS/0d ATHLNOW 810Z/S1/0T
PH8ZE (8T VHIWALAES ° IYMTEYH 00" 6LE
"6LE P¥8ze 8T0Z2/1T/0T BITTOTSZ STZZ-ST-TO0¥ 3 ONIJOOYW ‘ONIEWATd ‘TYIIULOITH TONI FUYMAIVH NILSOD €IES0T O 10
9%° 286 UILTAHS TIWINY
¥8 EMOHIIDY
09Z6L '6SE6L ‘8STELXHE HOTOANI
-1 LZ6EZE !/ STTIZ-28-T0¥% NEFJOd¥YD dILIOH
LY LZBZE / 7/ STTZ-Z8-TO¥% XIWOIE SEILIOTS TWOE
‘0s LZGEE / 7/ STIZ-Z8-T0F XIWOI€ STLLLOY 'TWST
X ¥4 LT6TZE /7 STITZ-Z8-T0v  ¥MEWNOMAQ YNOUNVA ETLIOE TWO0O0T
"B86 LezeeTE /7 STTZ-T8-TO% SNOILIUNIDOVA dDHT ENTITHI OYASON 8T0Z/ST/0T
114 LZ6TE / /7 STTC-Z8-TO¥ SNOILYNIDOVA £ DELVIINI OVAOHON 9% " 286
‘gee LZTEZE 8T0Z/TT/0T 8TTIOTIEZ STIZ-ZB-TO0Y  SNOTLUNIDOUVA XO€ AWM S DVAOHON A74dNS AYUNINALIA ISHTJ ZIESOT O TO
OL PED INAWIOTIY HYId HIVIS
80E89FHIOOY TBZSTTI# FDIOANT 810Z/ST/0T
886Z¢ ‘NOTLIOHE QM€ ‘NOLIVOINIXE 0L PED
Yy # od [CAA{a] # 90TOAUT wa3T SUTT .RO..nu.m._“HumUQ SWeN [CAN (e d #VHU
9 rabeg 8TOZ ‘ST WEHOLOQ-8T0Z 'S JYHEOLOO QHININI SADEHD  ONILSTT XDEHD (09D@HD) €0:€%:L  8T/LT/O0T :93eqg



L L SV s davavad

1] !/ / L0ZEZ-09-20% avoy
XA / / L022~59-TO0% II
‘5§ / /7 LOZZ-T0-S09 Ma
Lz /7 LOZZT-80-589 INANTONOANT HIOD
‘65 / /7 L0ZZ-80-TO¥% zd
-1 / 7 LOZZT-S0-T10% NOISSTWHOD
-1 / / L0ZZ-ST-TO¥ EONUYNIINTIYH
"OTT / 7 L0ZZ-55-TO¥% FONYNII
"8ET / 7/ LOZZ-0T-TO¥ ATOYNYW 8T0Z/ST/0T
"P6T /7 L0ZZ-02-TO% - ciatel LO'E€T6T
'09¢ 8T0Z/ST/0T S8ITTOTLY L0ZZ-0%-0T9 8T/9T/L OL 8T/LI/90 UOSSASSY ONI YAILXEN PZESOT O TO
96°06 INFWINVAId Yoy XINOOD
8T02/ST/0T
8LSLHTITOANT 9606
‘06 8T0Z/TT/0T BITIOTLE ¥¥Z22-09-20% ¥EJ4THD QUVO¥ ¥Od MIVaATH NO¥I ® HAId XLIYINOW €ZESOT O TO
89°GE86E IDALOYd d¥D 98" 9S6CE 1D3aroad das
LZZOOTHIOOY
PEPVE-CEVIEISHIE
LSYPPE-BSPPE-98EHE~BBEVE-9FEDE
0ESHE-SEPPE-6SPPE-LBEVE #EDIOANT
T982€E INAWETIOY ZDITHd FLYLS WN
T982¢ (Z¥S) LT-G~-dYD
"GEQ6E 1982¢€ 8T0Z/TT/0T S8TTTOTGE 90¥%Z-29-20% SAIHD d¥¥ uZ/T 40 HOUNNOL
LZZOOTHIIOY LPIPE-609FEH HOTOANT
198ZF 6969T-LT~S08-0L#
] T1982¢ (98T) LT-5-48
"0966 T98Z¢€ 8T0Z/TT/0T S8TITTOLI8E 80%Z~-¥9-20% SATIHD 4AVY «Z/T J40 FOYNNOL
LZTZOOTHIOOY 696%€
ZT0GE-GE6FE-CEQPER HDOTOANT
8¥62¢E (98T) LT-S-d8 8T0Z/ST/0T
B¥6TE HSUN0D ESYE LOUWN T HOUYNNOL PG CELZL
196622 8¥62€ 8T0Z/TIT/0T 8TTTIOISE 80V2-%9-Z0¥% NOL/S9 6% ® SNOL €8EZ SIONAOYd HLANONOD AINYINOW ZZESOT O 10
09°LL JOSSHASSY ALNOOD
8T0Z/ST/0T
WN Z009EN0NETY EDONTITANOD TIVI 09°LL
TLL 8T0Z/TT/0T 8TITTOIZT S02Z-0%-0T9 HIVITITAIY JOSSASSY DWN OL THAVHL SNSEL ‘0dEONT TZESOT O TO
9% 8% HALTAHS TYWINY
TYWINY ALNOOD
HIONVAOLHIIOY 68890 THEDIOANT
8102 YALOLDO 8T0Z/ST/0T
J0 HINOW FHIL J0d XYL SHTYS 9% 8%
8% 8T0Z/TIT/0T BTITOTHE ZLTZ-T8-TOF ADIANES LANNHINT SSTTTATIM ALT SEOTIA¥ES LENVIELNI OHOT 0ZESOT O TO
00°5Z% JIVd AINNOD
LTT# EOIOANI 8T0Z/ST/0T
ST/0T OL ST/6 *HDIAMHS 40 HIVA 00°SZ¥
=44 8T0Z/TT/0T 8TTITOIEE ZLTZZ-ES-CTY SHILNA TYIAYLENDIS TREAYST  HONUNAJISHET 6TESOT O TO
TP 8SEY INIVW XITAWOD TYIDIANLD
sy # od FIVA # SoTOAUT wajl SUT] uwoTydraosag dweN qIva #I0
L 1obeg 8T0Z ‘9T WHHOIDO-B8TO0Z 'S WHHOLDO QHLNI¥A SADEHD  ONILSIT MDEHD (09D03HD) €0:€EP:L BI/LT/O0T :°3eqd



wwau

16T /7 LOZZ-0T-TO¥% P625-¥BE-505 ENIT XV UTOYNUMW
-1 8T0Z/TT/0T 8TTTOTLT LOZZ-0Z-T0¥% TITE ENIT XVd MIETD
gZ80-0552-B0E-SOSHLIOY 8T0Z/ST/0T
-81/82/6 HIVA TIIH# FOIOANT 9Z° £PE
96 8T0Z/TT/0T STITOTST LOZZ-09-20% ANTHOVIN XVd NOIIVNOJHOD ISAMD 0EESOT O TO
T0°S9%  INIVW XETAWOD T¥IDIAOL SL°8SE  SHDIJI0 FATIVHLSINIWAY
CTTLLIVOSPHIDIOANT
-3 24 8TOZ/ST/0T STTLTOTES 622Z-9T-T10% - 8LDNAoY¥d ¥EAVd
324 /7 £€02Z-91-TO¥% TYIDIANL V02 SIOW ANV SIVW 8T0Z/ST/0T
oag oL" €28
11 8T0Z/TIT/0T 8TTTOTH? €£02T-ST-T0% NIWJY ¥O0d SWIOJIND SdOW S5IVH A1ddNSs TTYEIAO TYTINIANNA 6ZESOT O TO
Z1°8LYY ¥IVd AINNOD
00°L8%- NOISSIWKWOD
ZT ¥L9T$ SNOILUNOA NO ddvV
00°0062¢ €EWYI 02 1OT BTOZT/ST/0T
HIYS ADOLSHAIT HOINNL Z1 BLYY
"BLDY 8T0Z/TT/0T BTITITOTOT 6¥2Z-€5-2T¥% ¥IVd AINNOD EONVHNOL 8T0Z IGNAT ‘ST1O 8ZESOT O 10
€0°9€T UHINED HOIVASIG-1T6
HOIWASIQ IPLOD9STH
IODV ESZES6SLTH HOTOANT 8T0Z/ST/0T
XYL €0°9€T
'9€T 8102/T1T/0T STIIOTED STZZT~08-1T6 dIEOLD0 HOIA¥HS QIINAAHOS *ONI NIYMO LZESOT O TO
00°008 JATHIAHS AINNOD
OTE€000-LT# TDIOANI
“8T0Z EONTUTINOD YSHN 8T0Z/ST/01
“YIORINY ‘YHAOOH ‘SAITIIHA 00°008
008 8102/TT/0T BITIOTZH ZTTT-05-0TV ‘OLNEWNOL ‘NVNOd ‘YIDWYD ‘WADOLS NOIIWIDOSSY SJIATUFHS WN 9ZESOT O TO
TE'PS9  INEWINVAEA AYOod AINAOD
BTOZ/ST/0T
WIOLHLOOY 69SE00ESTH FOIOANT ZE'PS9
“$S9 8T0Z/TIT/0T S8TTTIOTI® £022-09-20% SLOdS ENIT TTYD 3ENO ONI WALSXS TTYD ENO WN SZTESOT O 10
SLTLT XYL SWHE/SNOILUVDINNWWOD 22817 Ad INVED ONILISIA HWOH
9L 122 WHANSYHEL ALNNOD LT LT ONTHOLINOW XLINOWWOD 0z'LLZ . JJITHIHS XLNOOD
ZLTLZ ONISSHNAAY TVENT ZL LT FOANL AILVIOEd 9%° 5% INIWINYAEAd Y0¥ XINNOD
TLoLZ ADOTONHOAL NOILVWHOJINT ¥¥'SS 8TAd INVED TYDOT IMA 9T €8 ONINOZ ¥ ONINNYIAL
99T NOISSIWWOD ALNNOD AT SEDIAS0 FAILVILSINIWNAY 88°0TT INHWIIYAIA FONYNIA
SL 8ET WHOUNVA AINNOD TT 76T MAATD ALNAOD 9€°09¢€ ¥OSSHSSY ALNAOD
8T£0008ND#AT
8VETSO6¥ZSTH HDOTOANI
‘LT / /7 LOZZ-E8-%09 ISNEIFA TIAID
TTTT / /7 L0ZZ-S0-TO% NOISNALXH
-1 / L.0TZ-6%-629 0doL
"TZZ /7 L0ZZ-0€-TO0¥% UTINSYAIL
Lz / / L0ZZ~€L-0ZF JITIHTHS YOLINCH WWOD
CLLET /7 Lt02z-05-10% JATIIHS
A /! / L0TZ-L0-5L9 JOSSHASSY
urg # 0a TIYA  # °99TOAUT wa3r Ul uotidTanssg aweN HIYA #30
8 :abeg 8T0Z ‘9T YHAOLDO-8T0Z ‘S WAHOLDO QHINTYA SMOTHD  ONILSIT MITHD (09D3HD) €0:€¥:L  8T/LT/OT :o3Bq



(448144 SNOTILOETH
6P8PEEHLIOVY 6LLTLIOEECHIDTOANT
SS62¢ 'STEAYT AVTAY ‘SATITI
§S62Z¢ ONTONVH ¥AELLAT ¥ IYDa1 aYAWS 810Z/ST/0T
9S62Z¢€ YITAINOVH CIEH ANYH SHATAVILS ¥¥-8ce
"8CZ SS6Z¢E 810Z/ST/0T S8TITITOTZS 6TZZ-12-T0¥ dA4Yd TUDHT MOTTIXA IHOILVHOAULSY HOULNVATY SSENISNHE SATIVLS BEESOT O TO
9L°98T XYL ESTIDOXHE BYId %%/T
67876 £HLOOY
66VSTTTEEE/9LIEBVO6EEH FOIOANT
BEGZE YALNTYd INIHOVW LSEL
BEGCE LId ¥0d w6XuZ ¥TXu0Z ‘MOVIG
21T 8€6Z¢ / / 6TZZ-E26-TT¥ ‘ASYD IHOINNIEAO SNITION .9°ST 8T0Z/ST/0T
43 8E6TE / / 6TCZ-C6-TT¥ QYV0d NILITING MHOD ZX. € 94°98T
0¥ 8E6EZE 8T0Z/ST/0T B8TITOTTIS 6TZT-T6-TT¥ 1D/ZT SONIY ANAOY HIIM ¥AANIE T HOUINYAAY SSEANTISNY SITAYLS LEESOT O TO
0€°609 SNOILDJTE
67876 €HLDDY
LEPSTTITGEE/96PSTTITEECH TDOIOANT mﬁom\mﬁ\oﬂ
T66ZE Z-BTSZ60 #AWL 0€°609
“609 T66CE 8T02/TT/0T 8TTTOTOS 6TZZ-TT-10% AOVIE ¥ WOTOD IADATAULIYD MNI dH HDVLNUYAQY SSANISNE SHEIAVILS 9EES0T O TO
78°S9BT JITHITHS ALNOOD
L69TLE
~9CTORLOOY LEITLZ-9ZTH# HDIOANT
T6SZE (SLIX IOTD dOoOTE ‘SIINDYNNNOL 8T0Z/ST/0T
T6SZE 'SWELI IIM QI¥ LSYTd ‘STAVIL) 78 9981
‘9981 T6SZE 8T0Z/TT/0T BITTOTEY ZECZ-0S-0T¥ SHALI HADSHY 3 HDHUVHES WHWWAS ‘ONI ‘ESAOHANYM S.NYWSINO4S SEESOT O TO
T8 LOY ONINOZ % ODNINNYIA
TSNS92LZOT
-69508# IIDVY ¥60ELTTOT# HDOIOANI
BT/2Z/L - 81/€2/9 QOI¥EA 8T0Z/ST/0T
ONITIIE XWI ALNNOD XYL ALID T8 L0¥
“LOY 8T0Z/TT/0T STTIOTL8¥ £022-80-TO0% XYL HLULS STOVWI TYNOILIAQY JINIY ONI ‘¥SN HODIN FEESO0T O TO
69°80¢ JIETD AILNNOD
€SN59ZLZ0T 8T02/ST/0T
#IDOY ZSLOSTIOT# ADIOANI 69°80¢
"80¢€ 8T0Z/TT/0T 8TITOTLY £022-02-2T19 SEOVHWI ANV INFWAVd ESYE'T ONI ‘¥Sfl HODIY €EESOT O 10
Z1° 2% SHEDIJA0 BATIVIISINIWNAY 00" 009 d SSO¥D AVILAO TYLIAYD
S06ZE DNIQIING NIWAY LY J00d 8T0Z/ST/0T
444 S062Z¢€ / / 9TZZ-ST-TO0Y LSUMHLNOS NI SSYID HOVIdHEY Z1°¢2Z0T
009 S06TE 8TO0Z/TIT/0T BITTOTO¥ T19Z2-96-TZ9 - (0204 “ONI HIVMOIVH NOLNTN Z2EES0T O TO
00° 952 YILTIHS TIYNINY
8T02/ST/0T
6Z6CE SNIVIA TIENNTI 00°SS¢
174 626Z¢ 8T0Z/TT/0T BITTOTS¥ STZZ-Z8-10% 0T NT SLMISYD EOVIdHS L NIWIVM ‘' ZIWNTI TEESOT O TO
ury # od SIVa # a0TOAUT wa3l JUTT uotydraossqg SWEeN qLIYA #3D
6 1abeg 8T0Z ‘9T WHHOLDO-B8T0Z ‘S YHHOLDO ARINIEd SADFHED DNILSIT ADEHD (09DEHD) €0:€®H:L 8T/LT/0T :®1eQ



€6°020T

INFWLOTIV ZJIA ALYLS

8SESH#FIDIOANT
T aLezZe /7 TOZZ-T6-¢T¥ SHITIANS JdOHS
T 9L62¢ /7 TOZZ-T6-€1¥ H4d HILSYM SNOTIYZYH
9LeCE LIS aQvd Ivay
oL 2L6CE !/ 7/ TOZZ-T6-ET¥ DIWVIHED HENO FAILAVAY ZTE8AY oaw
oLeZE SYOLOY NANL aNY
LZT 9L6Z¢E / 7/ TOZZ-T6-€TP SAYd DSIAC YYTL 34 - HOEYT SUN0H
9L6TE 8TTTOTeES cad
0SEQH#IDIOANT
Zseze a4 8T02/ST/01
0% zs6ze /7 102Z-T6-€T EONVTYE aNY LINNOW £6°020T
08L [4-1:34 BT0Z/ST/0T STTTOTI8S TOZZ-T6~ET¥ SHITL WIAMI LTI0L/S92 1T ONIMOL TATHM NOOYM PVESOT O TO
00°09T% LNIWLOTIV dNId HLVIS
88000000&A#LDOY £6Z0F¥TSHADIOANT
9T8Z¢E SWYTITIIM "D
0zs 9T8ZE / / 99C2-16-80% ~ HSYENOD ¥AANOASHY LSYId-IWH
9T8ZE TAQUIMHOS Y ‘NMO¥E S *SNEAVH
09ST 9T8CE / 7/ 992Z-T6-S0% '€ - "SUNOD ATANOISTH LSUTJI-IWT
9T8ZE HIALSIAN S ® NUYWNHLLAM
0%0T ST8ZE / 7/ 9922-16-80% "d - FSANOD YIANOASHH LSUTI-LWI 8T0Z/ST/0T
9T8ZE XAIIY "W 3 HWNYH 0" 09T¥%
O%0T 9T8ZE 8T0Z/ST/0T BIITOTLS 99ZZ-T6-90% 1T - HSENOD YIANOASHY ILSHUTJI-LWNA (SWA) ODIXIW MAN JO ALISYIAINO E¥VESOT O TO
00°8S NOISSTHWWOD ALNNOD
STPET0608TOZHIDIOANT
QIY4dIHS ‘¥ ‘SIAYA 'Y 8T0Z/ST/0T
ADEHD aNAOWIOVE INIFWAOTINA -Tid 00°'8S
89 608Z¢ 8102/ST/0T 8TTIOT9S ZLZEZ-S0-TOV SLSIEL DNNA ANV SNDFHD ANQOUOMNIVE ONINIHNDS ANNOIANIDVE TYSAIATNN ZYESOT O TO
LT S8BT MIFTO XINOOD
STPTHIOOY LZ600LTHIDIOANT 8T02/ST/0T
XYL SIATIEOE SSOUD TOUTTIMW LZ°582
58z 1sLzE 8T0Z/ST/0T BITTOTSS 8122-02-¢T9 TIAVAL ANV NOILVTTYISNI ¥ANNYDS "ONI DICYTAHL TPESOT O TO
“ €8°ST2% AS0TONHOEL NOILYWIOANTI
8T02/ST/0T
SEPTHIOOY ¥ 0T : LPHIDTOANT £8°STZ¥
STZY 8T0Z/ST/0T 8TITOT®S €0CT-99-T0% XYL ‘ONI OIAVIdL 0bES0T O TO
€0°90¢T JALTAHS TYWINY
69896 £HID0Y
LEPTZHOGES
.wmwﬂmvommm.FMHmwmommm#mUHO>ZH
LS 826C¢ / / 6TTC-Z8-T0% TIY0d d@AIYH OILINOVIN
ST 8Z62Z¢ / 7/ 6T2Z-28~T0¥% HUNNYId SONYIO-Y-1¥
eT 8Z62Z¢E / / 6TCT-Z8-T0¥% SNIa
6¢ 8Z6ez¢t /7 6T2Z-28-T0% SAQ¥d ASHd HONVID-V-1IY
9% 8Z62¢ / /7 61T22-28-10% SYHANATYD TIYM EONVIO-¥-IV 8T0Z/ST/0T
ST 8Z62¢ / / 6TCZ-28-T0% SELON 1804 4N-d0d €0°90¢
LT 8Z62E 8T0Z/ST/0T BITTOTES 6TZZ-Z8-TO¥ SHJOTAANA HOVINVAQY SSINISNE SHATAVIS 6EESOT O TO
¥ # oa dI¥a  # @dToAuT we3I SUTT uotidranseq auey aIva #1D
0T :abeg 8TO0Z ‘9T ¥HEOLDO-BTIO0Z ‘S WRHOLDIO JIINTEd SADHEHD ONIISIT ADFEHD (09DEHD) E0:€EP: L 8T/LT/0T :93eq



LULL OV uoZ Firel

.8 / 7 LOZZ-09-2Z0% avoy
P 4 / /7 L0ZZ-T6-£TH NIWaY TIId
.8 / /7 L0ZZ-28-T0% ALLTIHS TUNINY
168T /7 LOZZ~0S-T0% AJTHIHES
/ / L0Z2-80-585% 23d
7T /7 L0ZZ-80-TO¥ bAT |
/ /7 L02Z-02-T0% MHITD
i8 /7 LOZZ-0T-TO¥ HAHOINYIN
/7 L0ZZ-ST-TO¥% HONUYNIINIYR 8T0Z/ST/0T
)9 / / L0ZZ~€8-%09 ESNIANA TIAID €9°L592
1z BT0Z/ST/0T STSTOTT L022-50-TO0¥ NOISSINWOD ONI ‘¥Sn FTI9OW-I 0S€S0T O TO
St SLT SALTIHS TYWINY 00° LS HOSSASSY ALNNOD 6L°08T NOISSTHWOD ALNNOD
g GLZTLTTISTBESOSHIIOY
JIEWALIES 40 HINOW FHI d0d TTIH
iLe / /7 L0ZZ2-28-TO%  ENOHd ATHINOW WHINID TYWINY DL
€668Z9€%
-¥8€-S0S#LODY B8T/0€E/6 OL BI/T0/6
.S /7 /7 L02Z-0%-TO0% INIT X¥d FIIIJI0 SUOSSASSY
%02 S88Z-L98-S0S WHINID
YOINIS ¥IYNIVINAOMW ‘€566 0TOS ,
-¥8€-S0S WALNED YOINHS VIONVISH
gE€9T STHPH-ZE8-506G 8T02/ST/0T
HEINED VOINAS XLIVINOW ¥Z ETS
18T 8T0Z/ST/0T 8TISTOTZ L022-50-T0% SWOINES ALNNOD FDNWIIOL NOTLVHO4¥0D LSAMO 6PESOT O TO
00°0€Z  INEWINYAAQ YO ALNNOD
LPP95S# HDIOANI 8T0Z/ST/0T
¥862¢ SWALS FATYA € 00 0€Z
1ET ¥862¢ 8TOZ/TT/0T STITOIT ¥%22-09-20% VIATIO JOILOW HE ZLL D71 ‘INIWAINDT SUAATH ¥ 8FPESOT O 1O
928§ INAFWLOTIY H¥Id EIVLS
TO 0T EHLIDOY 8T0Z/ST/0T
8T/%2/6 OL 8T/LT/80 dIAS ISIA 92°SS
H 8T0E/ST/0T 8TTTOTSS 0TZZ-16-B1¥ YAMES YEIUM SHONYHD XTHILNOW J0 FOVTIIA ‘QIVTIIM L¥ESOT O TO
B0 6%L INIWLOTTY HNId AIVLS
600%T-€2T80
-ZHIODY Z-£LS0-9896P9SHAITOANT
8T0Z/TE/OT OL 810Z/T/0T
YALSIWNA H¥A 8-T
0% /7 0TZZ-T6-E1¥ SEDUYHD ATHLNOW NIWAY HATd
€E00€E-0ETB6-8T
#LOOY T-£LS0-8%00598# HDIOANI
8T/TE/OT 8T0Z/ST/0T
Ol 8T/T0/0T WILSAWNA TAYX 8 %0°6%L
YBE 8T0Z/ST/0T S8TITIOTHS 0T2Z-T6-5S0% SHNIYHD XTHINONW GJAS I1SIA ‘ONT WN 40 INAWIOUNYN HISYM 9%E€S0T O TO
68°S8LOT NOISSIWWOD XINNQD
0E€88#EDIOANT
£6T 8T0Z/ST/0T 8TTITOTZY SLZZ-S0-TO¥% XYL QI¥ONVAY
ZE88#IDTIOANT
LLSOT 8T0Z/ST/0T STITTIOTIS SLZZ-S0-T0% SSANISNE TYEANAD 8T0Z/ST/0T
TE8BHIDIOANT 68°S8LOT
4 # od HI¥Ad  # 20TOAUI wajzl SuTY uotadraosaq SweN TLLYA #MD
1T :abeg BIOZ ‘9T YAGOLDO-8TOZ 'S ¥THOLIO QIINI¥A SADEHD  ONILSIT MDEHD (09DEHD) E0:€PW:L 8T/LT/0T :°3eqg



TYIOL / / 6B LLE9OT 6L
L9° 0% INFHINVARA FONYNII
€0°6 YTINSYEAL ALNOOD $Z°vI ONIHOLINOW ALINOQWWOD ST WL 8TAS INVHED TYOO0T IMA
SL'66 WALNAD HOIVASIA-TII6 ¥Z° LS ITId aNTM %Z° LS INTWINYAEA qyod AINOOD
06°LTZ INAWIOTTY HETJ ALVLIS 00°LS WEALTAHS TYWINY S%'968T JATHEHS ALNNOD
18" 9T ONINOZ 3 ONINNYI4 95°0 WHETD ALNNOD 0€°68 MADYNYH ALNOOD
95°0 SHDIAI0 FATLVIISININAY zZT° 09 XYL SWE/SNOIIVOINAWWOD 0s°8¢z NOISSIWWOD AINNOD
TEG9TLYTSHLOOY
/7 LOZZ-5S-TO¥ FONYNI S
!/ /7 LOZZT-0E-TO% UTHOSYIAL
/ LOZZ~€L-02F HOLINOW DITH
/7 L0ZZ-Z0~-509 IMa
/7 L0Z2-08-T16 HOIVASIA
# Od HIVAd # SDTOoAUT wa3r SuIg uot3ydrapsag auweN ALYA #3D
Tt  :9Beg 8T0Z ‘9T YALOIDO-8TOZ ‘S WIEOLDO UHAINTMA SMOEHD  ONTISIT MOEHD (09DHHD) €0:€%:L  8T/LT/OT :o3eQ



00"
00’
00"

00"
00"

00°
00~
00"’

00°
00°
00~

00"
00"

00°
00"
00°
00°

Q0
00"
00"
00~

00°
00°
00

00"
00"
00"
00~
00°
00"

0o
00"
00°
00"

co-

Bt S8L TANE TTOTHAA T0ZeZ-28-10%
9v°Z86 SETT44NS AOYWIYHA STTZ-28-T0%
Is°veo’‘e YALTAHS TYWINY IdTA+ *
ZL Lz SNOLIVOINNNNODETHL L0Z22-592-T0%
€8°S1Z’'¥ SLOVELNOD HONUYNHLNIVA €02T-599-TO0¥%
SSTEPZ’ ¥ NINIYY4IA XDOTONHOHEL NOILYVINOANT e £ (o 0
SS°TST SNOTIYDINONNODHETIL L022~5S-10%
S9°1IST INAWNIYYIET JONYNIL Ja Rt (e P
S9°€ELT'L SNOLLYDINNWWODITHL L0ZZ-0S9-TO¥
08°969°¢ VIVAHY/IONYNIINIVA HTOTHIA T0ZZ-05-10%
Sy 0Le'Y SATIAHS ALNNOD LA x
00°LS SNOILYDINNWAODITIL L0ZZ-0%-T0%
00°LS dOSSISSY ALNNOD LAHTx»
6L°0€T SNOTLYDINAWWODITIL LOZZ-0E-TOV
L8°8% IV /HINUNLINTYA ETDIHIA T0ZZ-0€-T0F
88°6LZ YTANSYHA™L XLNOD it (e )
vz 090'T ONISILUIANY/DNIHSITENd /ONIINTHd 1ZZz-1Z2-10%
P6°6%T'¢E SHITAANS EDIJAL0 €TCZ-TE-10%
8T 0TE'D SNOILOETH LdET#»
TZ°0ST SNOILYDINAWNODETHL L02Z-02-10%
1z o0sz A¥ITO AINONOD it e )
T9° ST SHI'TANS dFIYI 62Z22-9T-TOV
8%°9LS'T UIVARE/IONYNIINTIYIN ONIQTINE STZZ-9T-TO0¥%
vz Co6‘¢c SLOVYLNOD HONYNTLNIVW £02Z-9T-TO%
€E'P69°S HONUYNAINIYW XEIIWOD TYIDIAND LAdHd ¥+
ZT°TO08 AIVAE/ IONYNIINTYI ONIQIING STZZ-S1-TOV
00° 95 SNOILVDINNWWODETAL L02T-ST-TO¥
9L°08S'T SLOVELNOD HONYNILNIVA €02Z-ST-T0¥F
88 LEF'T NUNIINIVN SHOIJALO0 FATLVALSININAY LAHd* »
ZE 6TY SNOTLYOINANWODETIL L0ZZ-0T-TO¥
9% TO€E WIIQ AT /AOVITIW S02Z2-0T-10%
8L°0CL WEDYNYN ALNOOD LT »»
00°9LS ONISIIEAQY/DNIHSIIENd /ONIINTNEA TZ22-80-T0%
69°69 SNOTLYD INOWWODETEL L02Z-80-T0%
00°99¢ WATA ¥AL/ADVATIN S0ZZ-80-T0%
T8 LOY SLOVALNOD HONYNZINIVI €02Z-80-T0F%
BL 09 TINI HTOTHIA 202Z-80-T0%
82°08S5'T DNINOZ 2 ODNINNVIJ LAFdx +
68°58L'0T SHOIAYAS IYOHT SLZZ-S0-~TOV
00-85 SHOIAYHES TYNOISSHJIOEd ZLZZ~S0-TOV
1L 66 HSWUL/JYEMAS /IILYM 0TZZ~-S0-TO¥
8Z° 88 ANYJ0ud /SYD/ONTIYIH 602Z-S0-TOV
€L SLE SNOTIWYDINNWWNODETHL L0ZZ-S0-TOV
T9°LOP‘TT NOISSIWKWOD ALNNOD LAFq %+
TL'S90'8¢E NN TEIENED THIOL * +
6% LLE'IST *¢ TULOL ANVED #+
SLIQHID SLIgHEd
8T0Z ‘9T ¥IGOLDO-8T0Z ‘S YFHOLDO QILNIN™A SNITHD NOILAEIMILSIA (A0S & 204 8T/LT/0T :@3ed



[ I )

WL NULLOELOd ')

IYLOL »

00" 09°66L'€E INAWAINOE ALTJIVS 8%2Z-T6-60%
00" 09'66L°'€E INFWLOTTY HYId TIVLIS LATAx»
00" 09°66L‘E GIA ¥ ILDIYISIA TYLOLx #
00" 00°098’'T ONINIVAL 992ZZ-T6-80%
00" 09°66L'E INSWAINOHE ALFIVS 8%22-T6~80%
00" 96°6HT SHITAANS TYIIATW 0€2Z-T6-80%
00" SL'92 ANYd0dd/SYD/ONIIVHH 602Z-T6-80%
00" TE'9€S'S INHWLOTTY TIId &EIV.LS - (e 9
00" TE"9€S‘S adpA € IDI¥LSIA TYLOLx»
00" 09°66L'€E INIWINOE ALAIVS 8v2Z-16~L0V
00" LT 59 SNOIIWDINNWAODTTAL L0Z22-T16-L0%
00" LL P98'€E INAWLOTIY #NId ALYLS LAT0x
00" LL ®98‘C ada T IOTILSIA TYLOL* +
00" 00°0%0°‘T ONINIWAL 992ZZ-T6-90%
00" 09°626'S INAWATAOE XLIIIYS 8%2Z-T6-90¥
00° 06°0TT SHITdANS TYIIATN 0€2Z-T6~90%
00" 89°90T HSVYL/99MES /IIYM 0TZ2Z-T6-907
00° 2L° 8T ANVA0dd /SYD /ONIIVIH 60Z2Z-16~-90%
00 06°STZ’L INIWLOTIY FdId FLVLS LAAdx+
00" 06°sTZ’L adA Z IDI¥LSIA TEIOL++
00 00°098'T ONINIVIL 99ZZ-16-50%
00" 09°66L'¢€ INTNAINOH ALIIYS 8¥ZZ-T6~S0¥%
00° 8T SET SEIT4ANS TIYDIAIW 0EZZ-T6-50%
00" €6 TLE HSWAL/MAMAS /ITLYM 0TZEZ-T6-S0¥
00" 9€°59 ENVJOUd /SYD/ONIIVIEH 6022-16-50%
00" LO°ZE6'S LNEWLOTIV {14 ALVIS LdHAx »
00" LO"CE6'S ada s IOI¥ISIA TYLOLx «
00" 98°986'2¢ (98T)LT-5-d48 80bZ-%9-20%
00" 987956 °'Z¢ IDdro¥d das IdH0x
00 89°SEB‘6E (Z¥S) LT-S-4YD 90%2-29-20%
00" 89°6€8°'6€ IDALOEd dYD IAdTAx»
00" 96°02¢ YIVATA/AONYNTLNIYWN ANANTHOYW ¥¥22-09-20%
00" ST°602T SNOIIYDINAWNODETAL L022-09-20%
00" ZE P99 SLOYHINOD HEONYNTINTYW £022-09-20%
00" € ¥8T‘T INIFWLIVAId aVod ALNNOD = ¢ (a
00" L6 9L6 €L aNnd avod TILOL v«
00°* ZL LT SNOIILYDINNWWODETAL £4022-06-10%
00" ZL L Z9ans FIIWdodd - (s P9
00 9% 8% SHDIANES TYNOISSHAONd ZLZT-28~TO¥
['LiN £0°902 SIIT4INS TITIAO0 6122-28-10%
00" 00°552 YIVATE/TONUNLINIYW ONIQTIING STTZT-Z8-TO¥
00" EL BT ENYA0¥d /SYD /ONIIVIH 60Z2-28-T0¥
00- SY ZTEE SNOTLYDINNWHODHTAL L02Z-28-T0%
SLIQMID SLIg8d
8T02 ‘9T WIEOLDO-B8TO0Z ‘S URHOLIO QIININA SADTHD NOILIndgIdiLsIa TO*¥H:L  8T/LT/O0T :@3eQ



00"

00°

00"

00°
00"
00"
00"

00"

9€°09¢ SNOILEDINOWWNODITIL L0ZZ-0%-0TO
0Z°SST WAIQ ¥EL/IOVITIN S022-0%-0T9
00°ZT MIVAES /FONYNIINTIYIN HIDIHHAA TOZZ-0%-019
95°LTS YOSSHASSY ALNNOD Ji RS i (e T
99°LZS aNOd NOTL¥ATYA ALYAJONUG TYLOL# +
¥6°008 SEIIAANS HOTAI0 6122-0€-609
$6°008 ATAASVAIL ALNNOD LA+ »
¥6°008 4 S ¥HINSYHAL TYLOL » +
69769 SNOTLYDINOAWWODHTHL LOZZ-20-5089
69769 BTXd INWID TYDOT IMA iR i (« '3
69769 aNQS WPAO0¥d IMA TYLOL++
98°T89 INIWNGIN0T ALEAVS 8¥TZT-£8-%09
L8°LB SNOTIWD INQWNODHTHL L0ZZ-€B-%09
€L769L XYL SWHE/SNOIIYDINAWWOD LATd* »
£L°69L aNOd FSNEIFA TIATID TYLOLx »
99°Z8T’T INAWNAINOE ALAAYS 8%ZZ-90-009
99°T8T’'T LNIWIDYNYIN MSTI L7 (d Y
99°28T'T WYTEDO¥d ALAIYS TYLOL» +
L& T¥ SNOILYDINAWWODHTHEL LOZTZ-EL-0Z¥
L6 TV ONTJOLINOW ALINOWWOD fAsec (e £
L6 TV aNQd II'VD TELOL 4
09°66L'E LNANIINOT XLEIYS 8%ZC-16-8T¥
92°SS HSVUL/YaMIS /IELEM 0TIZZ-T6-81%
98°%58'¢ INFWLOTTY H¥Id HLYLS LAHTx »
98 %58 ‘€ ada 9 LOI™LSIA TLLOL + +
0L PED DNINTWUL 9922-T6-£T¥
TZ°80% HSVAL/YAMES /JLLYM 0TZZ-T6-€1P
06°LTC SNOILYDINOWWODATHL L02Z-T6-ET¥
€6°020°'T ATYITT/EONYNZLNIYIW FTOTHAA TOZC-T6-€TF
PL°TB0'Z LNAWLOTIV &dId ELWLS fi s (e £
vL°T80'2C NIWAY LNSWI¥YdAd H9Id TILOL # +
00°SZP SHOIAYES TTUYNOISSHAOUd TLZT-£5-2TP
Z1°8LY 'V YIVS ALNNOD IV SATYS TYWINY 6%ZZ-£S-21%
08°2Z0¢ ONTISTLIAAQY/ONTHSITENL /ONILINTId TCTZ-E€S-CTV
Z6°S0Z'S YIV¥d ALNNOD Ld30x»
z6°5S0T°'S YIVI ALNOOD TYIOL+»
€0°L69 SHITddNS FOIAL0 6T2C-C6-TTV
£0°L69 XYL FSIOXE H¥IJ 3%/T1 LAdEd» »
E0°L69 aNOd NOLLOALO¥Nd HIIA ALNOOD THLOL +
¥8°999°'¢ S3ITIANS JIHIL ¢CTT-09-0T¥
SLIAEEO SLIFGHAQ
8T0C ‘9T ¥AHOLDIO-8TO0Z ‘S MAFOLIO QIAINIH¥A SHITHD NOTITINHEINLSIA [AVER A 2NA 8T/LT/0T :®3eq



00"
00"
00°

00"

00"
00°
00°
00"
00~

00’

0o0°
00"

00°

WA LLAUEL AWV LI DDaavad

ZLEZZ-08-T16

Z6°St6 SHITA4NS FADILI0 6TZZ-08-1T6
€0°9ET AIVETE/TONYNIINIYN ONTATIAG STZZ-08-1T6
LY SE ANYIOUd /SYD/ONTIVHH 60ZZ-08-TT6
€T°0LT SNOILYOINAWNODETIL L0Z2-08-TT16
T&°9s¢ SLOVALNOD HONVYNEZLNIVA €0ZZ-08-T16
€T°289°T YALNED HOIVASIA-TITé6 LA x»
€T°2Z89°T ANOA TT6 - XONTDITWE TYLOLx»
8T 80¢ SHAITAANS /STYIYEIVA HOYTELAO LSZZ-68-%08
99°90% SEIT44NS FDIAI0 6TZZ-68-%08
PLPTL NOILYDNAE 9nua LAAAx »
VLOFTL WYID0dd NOILYDNAE SNuEa TYLOL++
2O TV IJ0ddNs WILIDIA €8BCZZ-8E-T6E9
20°T¥% NOILOLILSEY WIIDIA LATAx »
Z0°T¥® NOTILALILSE S.WILDIA AQ TYLOL+ +
08°L6T SASYET INAWATNOR ¥8ZZ-60-069
vZ° LS SNOTLYOINNWKODHETIHL L02Z-60-069
v0°552 LIId aNIM LAAA* +
¥0° 552 INYED FEONTIOIA JILSTWOT TELOL* +
8Z° 82 SNOXLYDINNWWODETHL L0ZZ-80-589
CE'69T TaNd TTIIHIA Z022-80-589
09°L6T DNINOZ ® OSNINNYId LdAQ++
09°L6T SEIL ILHA0D 234 TYLOL»+
68°EE€T ATVITI/EONYNIINIVN INIWIINOT 8TZZ-L0-SL9
ZLLe SNOTLYDINQWNODETEL LOZT-LO-SLY
T9 19T ONISSTIAAY ‘TWany LA »
T9 19T ONISSHMAAVY TVInNy TLLOLx ¥
00°000°'€ SEADIAYES TUNOISSHIOHEA ZLZZ-L9-SE9
00°000°E LTAL INVED HDILSAL TTINIAQL TIXD LAHx»
00°000'¢€ JNWRED FDILSNL STINIAND TYLOL » »
P¥°SS SNOILUYDINQWWODITHL LOZZ-6¥-629
¥%°59 BTAd LNVID ONILISIA HWOH L8« »
¥¥°9S LNVID ONILISIA SWOH TYLOLx#
0L°S99°‘¢2 LONYLSNODIY /NOTLOAWLSNOD dWos/0D €19Z-96-TZ9
00°009 SINFWIAOUAWI 3 SONITIING/0D TT92Z-96-129
0L°s9z’eg XL SIAIEDHY SSOUD AVILNO TYIILYD LT+
0L°992'¢ XL SLATHADHY SSO¥D AVILAO TYLIAYD TYLOLx»
00°ve HOVIOLS ANIHOYW ONIIOA 80ECZ-02-219
SZ°Z8¢€ AIVAE/EONYNILNIVH INIWITAOE 812ZZ-02-219
69°80¢ SLOVILNOD FONUNTLNIVA €022-02-219
P6°PIL AT ALNOOD IdTA« »
SLIAHID SLIdaEa

8T0Z ‘9T YALOLDO-8TOZT 'S WHAOLIO QILNINA SMDHEHRD

NOIJLNHEIYILSIA

20 Ph:L

8T/L1/0T :@3eq



00" 6% LLE'99T *» STULOL MANVE #«
00° 6% LLE'99T 0DV STIEM TOMNYE

SLIQEID SLIFHEA
810Z ‘9T ¥AAOLDO-8I0Z ‘S UALOLIO UIINIAJ SADTHD NOIZIZQN&EIFALSIA 20:FF:L 8T/LT/0T :@3eq



Agenda Item
- No. 1



Agenda Item
No. 2



Agenda Item
No. 3



Agenda Item
No. 4



State of New Mexico

DEPARTMENT OF HOMELAND SECURITY &
EMERGENCY MANAGEMENT

P.O.Box 27111
Santa Fe, NM 87502

SUB-RECIPIENT GRANT AGREEMENT

2018 Emergency Management Performance Grant (EMPG)
2018 Federal Grant No.: EMT-2018-EP-00006-S01 CFDA No.: 97.042

1. SUB-GRANT NO.

2, SUB-RECIPIENT NAME | 3. FIDUCIARY NAME

12a: PERFORMANCE PERIOD
START DATE

July 1, 2018

EMT-2018-EP-00006-501 T c T c

Torrance Coun ty orrance County orrance County
4. T ' ‘ .
B VSTA E DFA VENDOR 5. EIN NUMBER 6. DUNS NUMBER 7. CAGE.CODE
NUMBER

0000054405 85-6000257 085746517 SEID7
8. SUB- RECIPIENT PHYSICAL ADDRESS 9. SUB-RECIPIENT REMIT ADDRESS
P.O. Box 48 P.O. Box 48
Estancia, NM 87016 Estancia, NM 87016
 10. DHSEM CONTACT NAME: 11. CONTACT DESK PHONE: (505) 476-0627
Merrill Miller CONTACT EMAIL ADDRESS:
DHSEM.grants@state.nm.us

12b. PERFORMANCE PERIOD
_END DATE

June 30, 2019

13a. EMPG FEDERAL AWARD COST MATCH

13b. EMPG TOTAL SUB-RECIPIENT AWARD COST MATCH

$20,925.55 $20,925.55
14a. NAME OF PROJECT AWARD 14b. AMOUNT AWARDED
1 | Organization: Salary & Benefits (Only) $ 20,925.55
2 | Equipment: S 0.00
3 | Training: S 0.00
4 | Excercise: S 0.00
TOTAL AMOUNT OF PROJECTS | $ 20,925.55




15. RECITALS, GRANT REQUIREMENTS, ASSURANCES AND AGREEMENTS
RECITALS

WHEREAS, the New Mexico Department of Homeland Security and Emergency Management (DHSEM) has been
designated by the United States Department of Homeland Security (DHS) to serve as grantee, and is thereby
authorized to issue this agreement to the applicant, sub-recipient, and sub-grantee, Torrance County .

WHEREAS, funding has been obligated from the United States Department of Homeland Security (DHS) pursuant
to a request by the applicant, sub-recipient, and sub-grantee, Torrance County.

NOW, THEREFORE it is mutually understood and agreed between the grantee, DHSEM, and sub-grantee, Torrance
County as follows:

ARTICLE 1: CONTRACT DOCUMENTS

The following additional contract documents are fully incorporated into this agreement and thereby constitute
additional terms and conditions of this agreement:

This Agreement;

Attachment | Required Reimbursement Checklist

2018 Emergency Performance Grant Program Application

2018 Emergency Performance Grant Work Plan

2018 Emergency Performance Grant Program Notice of Funding Opportunity (DHS-18-GPD-042-06-01)
2018 DHSEM Emergency Performance Grant Program NOFO

ARTICLE 2: SCOPE OF WORK

As authorized by the Robert T. Stafford Disaster Relief and Emergency Assistance Act (the Stafford Act), as
amended (42 U.S.C Sections 5121 et. seq.), and Section 662 of the Post Katrina Emergency Reform Act of 2006, as
amended (6 U.S.C. Section 762), Torrance County shall use EMPG funds to assist in preparing for all-hazards.
Specifically, these funds shall be utilized by Torrance County to pay salary and benefits and/or projects for the
designated and approved staff previously identified in the EMPG grant application, and for POETE activities
approved by the DHSEM Secretary. Torrance County shall match the Federal Award $20,925.55, with a local
jurisdictional amount of $20,925.55, for a total project cost of $41,851.10. Ali work performed pursuant to this
agreement must comply with the approved EMPG work plan. All work must be completed within the
performance period, between July 1, 2018 and June 30, 2019. Torrance County shall not sub-grant any part of
this award to any other entity or organization. Within the first reporting quarter, all awards require confirmation
that expenditures in the budget category toward this project will be made. If not, DHSEM may execute a de-
obligation of Federal funds, without recourse by Torrance County.

ARTICLE 3: PROJECT IMPLEMENTATION

Approved projects must commence within the first reporting quarter. If a project cannot commence and
be operational within the first reporting quarter of the approved award date, the sub—grantee must
submit a written statement to DHSEM, signed by the sub-recipient signatory officials, justifying the delay

2018 Emergency Management Performance Grant {EMPG)
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ARTICLE 4: REPORTING REQUIREMENTS

The sub recipient, Torrance County shall submit timely quarterly Financial Progress Reports and a
quarterly Performance Progress Report to the DHSEM Grant Specialist. Use of outdated forms will not
be accepted. All Quarterly reports are due: October 30, January 30, April 30, and July 30 within the
period of performance beginning after the conclusion of the first quarter of grant activity. Requests for
payment will be processed if both quarterly reports are received timely. Final reports are due 45 days
after the end of Period of Performance. The Final Narrative Report will suffice as the Final Performance
Progress Report.

The applicant must immediately report in writing to the DHSEM Grant Specialist any alleged acts or
allegations of fraud or misappropriation of funds for work authorized under this Sub-Grant Agreement.
This requirement extends further to an obligation by the sub-recipient to report any legal action,
lawsuit, bankruptcy, or other action that may jeopardize the successful completion of any authorized
project.

ARTICLE 5: REIMBURSEMENTS

Submission of a request for reimbursement must be accompanied by both the Quarterly Financial
Progress and Performance Progress reports. Reimbursement shall be based upon authorized and
allowable expenditures consistent with the project narrative, grant guidelines, and the submission of
timely Financial and Performance Progress Reports. Payments may be withheld by DHSEM pending
correction of deficiencies. Reimbursement of expenditures shall be requested at least quarterly for
expenditures within the performance period.  Expenditures must be supported with source
documentation (e.g. copies of proof of payment, invoices, receipts, timesheets with name/wage/hours,
cost allocation, warrants, etc.). Grant staff will not process reimbursement if quarterly performance and
fiscal reports are not timely submitted.

CONTRACTS: All sole-source procurements, single vendor response to a competitive bid, and contracts
require DHSEM pre-approval prior to implementation. Requests for reimbursement for contractual
services must be accompanied by the relevant contract.
LOCAL MATCH: Local matching funds must clearly support the source, the amount, and the timing of all
matching contributions.
EQUIPMENT: Allowable equipment categories are listed on the web-based Authorized Equipment List
(AEL). Screenshots of the AEL number and description are required to be submitted along with the
Request for Approval.
TRAVEL: All reimbursable travel must be pre-approved by DHSEM 30 days prior to travel date.
PER DIEM: Reimbursements for local jurisdictions cannot exceed the rates of the New Mexico Mileage
and Per Diem Act.
TRAINING: Requires DHSEM pre—approval 30 days prior to registering or participating in training
opportunities.
EXERCISE: Requires submission of an After—Action Report/Improvement Plan within 60 days after
conduct of exercise.
FOOD AND BEVERAGES: Per National Preparedness Directorate (NPD) allowances, food and/or beverage
expenses provided by recipients are allowable costs if:

e The food and/or beverages are provided to participants at training sessions, meetings, or

conferences that are allowable activities under the NPD program guidelines; and

2018 Emergency Management Performance Grant {EMPG)
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* Expenses incurred for food and/or beverages, and provided at training sessions, meetings, or
conferences, satisfy the following tests:

o0 The cost of the food and/or beverages provided is considered to be reasonable;

o The food and/or beverages provided are subject of a work-related event and work
continues after meals are served;

o Participation by all participants is mandatory; and

o The food and/or beverages provided are not related directly to amusement and/or
social event. {Any event where alcohol is being served is considered a social event;
therefore, costs associated with the event are not allowed).

NON-REIMBURSABLE EXPENSES:

Training and related travel costs not pre-approved by DHSEM

Construction and renovation.

Indirect costs

Supplanting (using federal funds to purchase items previously budgeted for with state or local
funds).

Maintenance and/or wear and tear costs of general use vehicles and emergency response
apparatus.

Equipment purchased for an exercise cannot be used for permanent installation and/or
beyond the scope of an exercise.

Weapons and ammunition.

Entertainment and sporting events

Personal items such as laundry, personal hygiene items, magazines, in-room movies, personal
travel, personal phone calls.

Travel insurance, visa, and passport charges.

Lodging costs in excess of State per diem, as appropriate.

Food reimbursement when travel does not exceed 24 hours.

Alcoholic beverages.

Late fees, or interest charges.

Lobbying, political contributions, legislative liaison activities.

Organized fund-raising, including salaries of persons while engaged in these activities.

Land acquisition.

Expenditures not supported with appropriate documentation when submitted for
reimbursement. Only properly documented expenditures will be processed for payment.
Unsupported expenditures will be returned to the jurisdiction for resubmission.
Non-Personnel expenses not pre-approved by DHSEM via Request for Approval.

ARTICLE 6: PERFORMANCE MEASURES

Quarterly Progress Reports shall demonstrate performance and progress relative to acceptable
performance on applicable critical tasks in Exercises using approved scenarios:

1. Progress in achieving project timelines and milestones.

2. Percent measurable progress toward completion of project.

3. How funds have been expended during reporting period, and explaining expenditures
related to the project.

ARTICLE 7: SUB-RECIPIENT MONITORING POLICY

2018 Emergency Management Performance Grant (EMPG)
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Periodic monitoring is required to ensure that program goals, objectives, timelines, budgets and other
related program criteria are being met. DHSEM reserves the right to periodically monitor, review, and
conduct analysis of financial, programmatic, and administrative policies, procedures, and practices. This
monitoring may include review of accounting for receipts and expenditures, cash management,
maintaining adequate financial records, means of allocating and tracking costs, contracting,
procurement, records management, payroll, means of allocating staff costs, property and equipment
management system, progress of project activities, etc.. Monitoring may include desk and field audits.
Technical assistance is available from DHSEM staff,

ARTICLE 8: PROCUREMENT

When_procuring property and services under this agreement, the sub-recipient will follow 2 CFR

200.318 through 2 CFR 200.326. The sub-reci ient_must use its own documented procurement
procedures which reflect applicable State, local, and tribal laws and regulations, provided that the

rocurements conform to applicable Federal law and the standards identified in 2 CFR 200. As such
the sub-recipient must use one of the methods of procurement identified in 2 CFR 200.320. The sub-

recipient may request that its procurement system be reviewed by FEMA or DHSEM to determine

whether its system meets standards in order for its system to be compliant

Contractors that develop or draft specifications, requirements, Statements of Work, and/or Requests for
Proposals (RFP) for a proposed procurement shall be excluded from bidding or submitting a proposal to
compete for the award of such procurement. Local bidder’s preference is not allowed for federally
funded procurements. Procurement transactions shall be conducted to provide maximum open and free
competition. Each sole-source procurement, single vendor response to a competitive bid, and all
purchases require prior approval of DHSEM

2018 Emergency Management Performance Grant (EMPG)
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ARTICLE 9: CONTRACTS

Any contract entered into during this grant period shall comply with Local, State and Federal
government contracting regulations. Contracts for professional and consultant services must include
Local, State and Federal government required contract language, a project budget, and require pre-
approval by DHSEM prior to implementation. Contract deliverables must meet the intent of the grant
application and grant requirements. Justification is required for compensation for individual consultant
services, which must be reasonable and consistent with the amount paid for similar services in the
market place. Detailed invoices and time and effort reports are required for consultants.

ARTICLE 10: AUDIT REQUIREMENTS

As the Federal grant recipient, the State of New Mexico requires a sub-recipient expending $750,000.00
or more in Federal funds in the organization’s fiscal year to conduct an organization~wide audit in
accordance with 2 CFR 500 Subpart F. Torrance County will permit the State of New Mexico Grant and
Program officials and auditors to have access to the sub-recipient’s and third-party contractors’ records
and financial statements as necessary for the State of New Mexico to comply with 2 CFR 500 Subpart F.
Copies of audit findings must be submitted to DHSEM within 30 days after Torrance County receives its
audit report, or within a 9-month period of the grant closeout date, whichever is earlier, in accordance
with 2 AAC 45.010. Include the Federal agency name, program, grant number, and year; the CFDA title
and number; and the name of the pass-through agency.

ARTICLE 11: PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT MANGEMENT

The sub-recipient will follow the property standards articulated in 2 CFR 200.310 through 2 CFR 200.326.
The sub-recipient shall maintain an effective property management system; safeguards to prevent loss,
damage or theft; maintenance procedures to keep equipment in good condition; and disposition
procedures. A Property Inventory Report shall be submitted to DHSEM annually each January 30 with
the Financial Progress Report during the performance period, and continued submission is required
annually until final disposition of the equipment. The sub-recipient shall, when practical, prominently
display the following on any equipment purchased with award funds: Purchased with funds provided by
the U.S. Department of Homeland Security. No equipment purchased with these grant funds may be
assigned to other entities or organizations without the expressed approval in writing from DHSEM, prior
to the jurisdiction’s encumbrance or expenditure for that equipment.

ARTICLE 12: NEPA/EHP COMPLIANCE

The sub-recipient must provide information to DHSEM to assist with the legally-required environmental
planning and historic preservation (EHP) review and to ensure compliance with the applicable EHP laws
and Executive Orders (EO). These EHP requirements include but are not limited to National
Environmental Policy Act, National Historic Preservation Act, Endangered Species Act, E 11988
Floodplain Management, EO 11990 Protection of Wetlands, and EO 12898 Environmental Justice. The

recipient must comply with all Federal, State and Local EHP requirements and obtain applicable permits
and clearances.

Recipients shall not undertake any activity from the project that would result in ground disturbance,

facility modification, or relates to the use of sonar equipment without the prior approval of FEMA. These
2018 Emergency Management Performance Grant (EMPG)
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include but are not limited to communications towers, physical security enhancements involving ground
disturbance, new construction, and modifications to buildings that are 50 years old or older, and
exercises. Recipient must comply with all mitigation or treatment measures required for the project as
the result of FEMA’s EHP review. An EHP Screening Form will not need to be provided for those
exercises that are planned to take place at previously approved facilities, such as, fire and police
academies, search and rescue training facilities, and explosive testing centers. Any type of exercise that
requires any type of land, water, or vegetation disturbance or building of temporary structures must
undergo an EHP review.

Any change to an approved project description will require re-evaluation for compliance with EHP
requirements before the project can proceed. If ground disturbing activities occur during project
implementation, the recipient must ensure monitoring of ground disturbance and if any potential
archeological resources are discovered, the recipient will immediately cease construction in that area
and notify FEMA and the appropriate State Historic Preservation Office. Initiation of these activities prior
to completion of FEMA’s EHP review will result in a non-compliance finding and may result in ineligibility
of grant funding.

ARTICLE 13: PUBLICATIONS

Publications created with funding under this grant shall prominently contain the following statement:
This Document was prepared under a sub-grant from the U.S. Department of Homeland Security, and
the New Mexico Department of Homeland Security and Emergency Management. Points of view or
opinions expressed in this document are those of the authors and do not necessarily represent the
official position or policies of the U.S. Department of Homeland Security or the State of New Mexico.

ARTICLE 14: RECORDKEEPING

The sub-recipient will follow the record retention and access standards articulated in 2 CFR 200.333
through 2 CFR 200.337. The grant financial and administrative records shall be maintained for a period
of three (3) years following the date of the closure of the grant award, or audit if required. Time and
effort, personnel and payroll records for all individuals reimbursed under the award must be
maintained. Property and equipment records shall be maintained for a period of three (3) years
following the final disposition, replacement or transfer of the property and equipment.

ARTICLE 15: CHANGES TO AWARD

All change requests must be submitted either in writing or electronically to the designated DHSEM Grant
Specialist for review and possible approval. All change requests must be accompanied by a justification
narrative and a budget and spending plan. All change requests must be consistent with the scope of the
project and grant guidelines. Change requests will be considered only if reporting requirements are
current, and all other terms and conditions of this agreement have otherwise been met at the time of
the request. If approved by DHSEM, changes in the programmatic activities, purpose of the project, key
personnel specified on the grant award, contractual services for activities central to the purposes of the
award, requests for additional funding, change in project site, or release of special conditions, will result
in an amendment to this award.

ARTICLE 16: OTHER GENERAL PROVISIONS

2018 Emergency Management Performance Grant (EMPG)
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A. The performance period for this grant award is July 1, 2018 through June 30, 2019, Further, all
related grant activity must be completed between July 1, 2018 and June 30, 2019. Funds may not
be obligated outside of these time periods. An obligation occurs when funds are encumbered, as
with a purchase order and/or commitment of salaries and benefits. All obligated and
encumbered funds must be liquidated within 45 days of the end of the performance period

when the Final Progress and Financial Reports are due.

B. The 2018 SAFECOM Guidance, in coordination with stakeholders and Federal partners, and the
2014 National Emergency Communications Plan, targets funding priorities to address:

* Priority 1: Governance and Leadership

* Priority 2: Statewide Planning and Procedures for Emergency Communications
* Priority 3: Emergency Communications Training and Exercises

* Priority 4: Activities that Enhance Operational Coordination

* Priority 5: Standards-Based Technology and Equipment

C. Deployable / Shareable Assets - All assets supported in part or entirely with FY 2018 EMPG
funding must be readily deployable to support emergency or disaster operations per existing
Intrastate Mutual Aid System, (IMAS) and/or Emergency Management Assistance Compact
(EMAC) and other mutual aid agreements.

D. All assets supported in part of entirely with FY2018 EMPG funding that may not be physically
deployable but support national response capabilities, such as interoperable communications
systems and equipment, is considered shareable assets. Access to and use of these assets must
be made readily available upon the request of the New Mexico Department of Homeland
Security and Emergency Management.

E. The sub-recipient shall comply with the requirements and restrictions of the DHS Federal NOFO
and the FY2018 State Emergency Performance Grant Program Guidance, State Guidelines. By
signing this obligating award document, the sub-recipient certifies it has read, understood and
accepted these documents as binding.

F. The signatures of the signatory officials on this award certifies that all financial expenditures,
including all supporting documentation submitted for reimbursement, have been incurred by the
jurisdiction, and are eligible and allowable expenditures consistent with the grant guidelines for
this project. The sub-recipient shall follow the financial management requirements imposed on
them by DHSEM, which includes the requirements of U.S. Department of Homeland Security.

G. The signature of the signatory officials on this award attests to Torrance County understanding,
acceptance, and compliance with Lobbying; Debarment, Suspension and other responsibility
matters; Drug-free Workplace; Conflict of Interest, and Non-Supplanting certifications. Federal
funds will not be used to supplant State or local funds. Federal funds must be used to
supplement existing funds to augment program activities, and not replace those funds which
have been appropriated in the budget for the same purpose. Potential supplanting may be the
subject of application and pre-award, post-award monitoring, and audit.

2018 Emergency Management Performance Grant (EMPG)
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H. Torrance County shall ensure the accounting system used allows for separation of fund sources.
These grant funds cannot be commingled with funds from other federal, state or local agencies,
and each award is accounted for separately.

I Torrance County shall comply with Federal Civil Rights Laws and Regulations: Title VI of the Civil
Rights Act of 1964, Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, Title IX of the Education
Amendments of 1972, Age Discrimination Act of 1975, and Americans with Disabilities Act of
1991. Torrance County will take reasonable steps to ensure Limited English Proficient (LEP)
persons have meaningful access to its programs and activities. Executive Order 13347 Individuals
with Disabilities in Emergency Preparedness requires government to support safety and security
for individuals with disabilities in situations involving disasters, including earthquakes, tornadoes,
fires, floods, hurricanes, and acts of terrorism.

J.  Torrance County certifies that it has an Affirmative Action Plan/Equal Employment Opportunity
Plan (EEOP) (for USDHS/DO) grants). An EEOP is not required for recipients of less than
$25,000.00 or fewer than 50 employees.

K. Torrance County certifies that its employees are eligible to work in the U.S. as verified by Form |-
9, Immigration & Naturalization Service Employment Eligibility.

L. It is the responsibility of Torrance County as the recipient of these federal funds to fully
understand and comply with the requirements of:

* Assurances, Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements, OMB
Standard Form 4248 Assurances -Non-Construction Programs, OMB Standard Form 4240
Assurances - Construction Programs, 2 C.F.R. Part 200, 2 C.F.R. Part 3002

*  Whistleblower Protection Act

o 10 U.S.C Section 2409

o 41U.5.C. 4712

o 10 U.S.C. Section 2324

o 41 U.S. C. Sections 4304
o 41U.S.C. Sections 4310

* Use of DHS Seal, Logo and Flags - All recipients must obtain permission from their financial
assistance office, prior to using the DHS seal(s), logos, crests or reproductions of flags or
likenesses of DHS agency officials, including use of the United States Coast Guard seal, logo,
crests or reproductions of flags.

* USA Patriot Act of 2001, 18 U.S.C. Sections175 175¢

* Universal Identifier and System of Award Management (SAM), 2 C.F.R. Part 25, Appendix A

* Reporting of Matters Related to Recipient Integrity and Performance, 2 C.F.R. Part 200

* Rehabilitation Act of 1973, 29 U.S.C. Section 794

» Trafficking Victims Protection Act of 2000, Section 106(g) 22 U.S.C. section 7104, 2 CFR
Section 1 75.15

* Terrorist Financing

e SAFECOM

* Reporting Sub-Awards and Executive Compensation

* Procurement of Recovered Materials, Solid Waste Disposal Act, Resource Conservation
Recovery Act

¢ Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) 40 C. F.R. Part 247

2018 Emergency Management Performance Grant (EMPG)
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* Patents and Intellectual Property Rights
o Bayh-Dole Act. Pub. L. No. 96-517, as amended, and codified in 35 U.S.C. section 200
etseq., 37 C.F.R. Part 401, 37 C.F.R. Section 401.14

* DHS/FEMA EMPG Notice of Funding Opportunity Requirements - All of the instructions,
guidance, limitations, and other conditions set forth in the Notice of Funding Opportunity
(NOFO) for this program are incorporated here by reference in the terms and conditions of
your award. All recipients must comply with any such requirements set forth in the program
NOFO.

* Non-supplanting Requirement - All recipients who receive awards made under programs that
prohibit supplanting by law must ensure that Federal funds do not replace (supplant) funds
that have been budgeted for the same purpose through non-Federal sources.

* Lobbying Prohibitions, 31 U.S.C. Section 1352

* Limited English Proficiency (Civil Rights Act of 1964, Title VI), https://www.DHS.gov/guidance-
published-help-department-supported-organizations—provide-meaningfuI-access-people-
limited

* Hotel and Motel Fire Safety Act of 1990

* Federal Fire Prevention and Control Act of 1974, as amended, 15 U.S.C. Section 2225

® Fly America Act of 1974, 49 U.S.C. Section 41102, 49 U.S.C. Section 40118

* Comptrolier General Decision B-138942

* Best Practices for Collection and Use of Personally Identifiable Information (PN) - DHS defines
personally identifiable information (P11) as any information that permits the identity of an
individual to be directly or indirectly inferred, including any information that is linked or
linkable to that individual. All recipients who collect Pil are required to have a publically-
available privacy policy that describes standards on the usage and maintenance of Pl they
collect. Award recipients may also find as a useful resource the DHS Privacy Impact
Assessments: Privacy Guidance and Privacy template respectively.

* Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990, 42 U. S. C. Sections 12101, 12213

* Age Discrimination Act of 1975, Title 42 U.S. Code section 6101 et

¢ Activities Conducted Abroad - All recipients must ensure that project activities carried on
outside the United States are coordinated as necessary with appropriate government
authorities and that appropriate licenses, permits, or approvals are obtained.

* Acknowledgment of Federal Funding from DHS - All recipients must acknowledge their use of
federal funding when issuing statements, press releases, requests for proposals, bid
invitations, and other documents describing projects or programs funded in whole orin part
with Federal funds.

* Federal Leadership on Reducing Text Messaging while Driving

* Federal Debt Status

s False Claims Act and Program Fraud Civil Remedies, 31 U. S. C. Section 3729, 31 U. S.C.
Section 3801-3812

* Energy Policy and Conservation Act, 42 U.S.C. Section 6201

* Education Amendments of 1972 (Equal Opportunity in Education Act), 20 U.S.C. section 1681
et seq, 6 C.F.R. Part 17 and 44 C.F.R. Part 19

* Duplication of Benefits, 2 C.F. R. Part 200, Subpart E

* Drug-Free Workplace Regulations, 41 U.S. C. section 701 et seq, 2 C.F.R Part 3001

* Debarment and Suspension, Executive Orders, 12549 and 12689, and 2 C.F.R. Part 180

* Copyright, 17 U.S.C. sections 401 or 402
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¢ Civil Rights Act of 1968, Title VIII of the Civil Rights Act of 1968, 42 U.S.C. section 3601 et seq,
24 C.F.R. Part 100, 24 C.F.R Section 100.201
* Civil Rights Act of 1964 - Title Vi, 42 U.S.C. Section 2000d et seq, 6 C.F.R. Part 21, 44 C.F.R.

Part 7
*  DHS Specific Acknowledgements and Assurances

o} All recipients, sub-recipients, successors, transferees, and assignees must
acknowledge and agree to comply with applicable provisions governing DHS
access to records, accounts, documents, information, facilities, and staff.

) Recipients must cooperate with any compliance reviews or compliance
investigations conducted by DHS.

o Recipients must give DHS access to and the right to examine and copy, records,
accounts, and other documents and sources of information related to the award
and permit access to facilities, personnel, and other individuals and information as
may be necessary, as required by DHS regulations and other applicable laws or
program guidance.

o Recipients must submit timely, complete, and accurate reports to the appropriate
DHS officials and maintain appropriate backup documentation to support the
reports.

o Recipients must comply with all other special reporting, data collection, and
evaluation requirements, as prescribed by law or detailed in program guidance.

) If, during the past three years, the recipient has been accused of discrimination on

the grounds of race, color, national origin (including limited English proficiency),
sex, age, disability, religion, or familial status, the recipient must provide a list of
all such proceedings, pending or completed, including outcome and copies of
settiement agreements to the DHS financial assistance office and the DHS Office
of Civil Rights and Civil Liberties (CRCL) by e-mail at crcl@hg.DHS.gov or by mail at
U.S. Department of Homeland Security Office for Civil Rights and Civil Liberties
Building 410, Mail Stop #0190 Washington, D.C. 20528,

o In the event any court or administrative agency makes a finding of discrimination
on grounds of race, color, national origin (including limited English proficiency),
sex, age, disability, religion, or familial status against the recipient, or the recipient
settles a case or matter alleging such discrimination, recipients must forward a
copy of the complaint and findings to the DHS financial assistance office-and the
CRCL office by e-mail or mail at the addresses listed above.

0 The United States has the right to seek judicial enforcement of these obligations.

* Disposition of Equipment Acquired Under the Federal Award, 2 C.F.R. Section 200.313

¢ National Environmental Policy Act, National Environmental Policy Act (NEPA), Council on
Environmental Quality (CEQ) Regulations for Implementing the Procedural Provisions of NEPA

* Nondiscrimination in Matters Pertaining to Faith-based Organizations, 6 C. F. R. Part 19

ARTICLE 17: PENALTY FOR NON COMPLIANCE

For the reasons listed below, special conditions may be imposed, reimbursements may be partially or
wholly withheld, the award may be wholly or partly suspended or terminated, or future awards,
reimbursements and award modifications may be withheld. DHSEM may institute the following, but is
not limited to, withholding authority to proceed to the next phase of a project, requiring additional or
more detailed financial reports, additional project monitoring, and/or establish additional prior
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approvals. DHSEM shall notify the sub-recipient of its decision in writing stating the nature and the
reason for imposing the conditions/restrictions, the corrective action required and timeline to remove
them, and the method of requesting reconsideration of the imposed conditions/restrictions. The sub-
recipient must respond within 5 days of receipt of notification.

Unwillingness or inability to attain project goals

Unwillingness or inability to adhere to Special Conditions listed on Page 13

Failure or inability to adhere to grant guidelines and federal compliance requirements
Improper procedures regarding contracts and procurements

Inability to submit reliable and/or timely reports

Management systems which do not meet federal required management standards
Failure or inability to adhere to the terms and conditions of this agreement

ARTICLE 18: TERMINATION

For Cause: If performance is not occurring as agreed, the award may be reduced or terminated without
compensation for reduction or termination costs. DHSEM will provide notice of five (5) days to the sub-
recipient stating the reasons for the action, steps taken to correct the problems, and the
commencement date of the reduction or termination. DHSEM will reimburse the sub-recipient only for
acceptable work or deliverables, necessary and allowable costs incurred through the date of reduction
or termination. Final payment may be withheld at the discretion of DHSEM until completion of a final
DHSEM review. Any equipment purchased under a terminated grant may revert to DHSEM at the option
of DHSEM

For Convenience: This Agreement may be terminated without cause by either of the parties upon
written notice delivered to the other party at least 30 days prior to the intended date of termination. A
termination pursuant to this provision does not nullify a party’s obligations for performance or liabilities
for failure to perform already incurred prior to the date of termination. Any project may be terminated
upon convenience, in whole or in part, for the convenience of the Government. The U.S. Department of
Homeland Security (USDHS) and the DHSEM, by written notice, may terminate this grant, in whole or in
part, when it is in the Government’s interest. Aliowable costs obligated and/or incurred through the
date of termination shall be reimbursed. Any equipment purchased under a terminated grant may revert
to DHSEM at the option of DHSEM

2018 Emergency Management Performance Grant (EMPG)
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ARTICLE 19: SPECIAL CONDITIONS

*Grant funds cannot be expended until these conditions have been met.
1. EMPG Notice of Funding Opportunity Requirements - All of the instructions, guidance,

1o.

11.

12.

limitations, and other conditions set forth in the Notice of Funding Opportunity (NOFO) for this
program are incorporated here by reference in the terms and conditions of your award. All
recipients must comply with any such requirements set forth in the program NOFO.

The grant award amount is a funding allocation, and is not to be interpreted as expenditure
authorizations or approvals. Pre-approval from DHSEM’s Local Preparedness Program, Training
and Exercise Program, and Administrative Service Bureau (ASB) is required for all purchases
regardless of any application review.

All awarded projects must be planned for, conducted, budgeted and expended within the
designated performance period. Furthermore, at least 25% of the grant award must be
expended in the first quarter for each project; some exceptions and/or extenuating
circumstances may apply.

All sub-recipients must complete a National Incident Management System (NIMS) Assessment
on or before September 30 of each year. All funded beneficiaries, to include but not limited to,
first response agencies and special teams must also complete a NIMS Assessment. Continuing
working on NIMS implementation objectives throughout the performance period of the grant
and thereafter.

All sub-recipients must complete and submit a Threat Hazard ldentification Risk Assessment
(THIRA) every 2 years on or before May 30 of each year dependent on last revision date,

All sub-recipients must complete and/or revise their local and/or regional Tactical interoperable
Communication Plan (TiCP) every year.

All sub-recipients must have a fully promulgated All Hazards Emergency Operations Plan (EOP).
All Whole Community Preparedness sub-recipients must have a coordinating body to serve as
their Citizen Corps Whole Community Council, with membership that includes, but is not limited
to: representatives from emergency management, homeland security, law enforcement, fire
service, EMS, public health, hospitals, HCCs, or their designee, elected officials, the private
sector especially privately owned critical infrastructure, private nonprofits, nongovernmental
organizations including faith-based, community-based, and voluntary organizations and
advocacy groups.

All EMPG funded personnel shall participate in three exercises as a controller, evaluator,
facilitator, player, or planning team member within the 12 month performance period of this
award; performance progress for each funded position will be measured on each quarterly
report. All AAR/IP and/or AAR/IP input forms must be sent to the DHSEM Exercise Officer no
later than 60 days after the exercise.

All EMPG performance activities will be monitored by the Local Preparedness Program on a
quarterly basis or as needed to ensure sub-recipients are conducting progressive activities to
ensure project completion within the specified performance period.

Quarterly financial and Progress reports are due on April 30, July 30, October 30, January 30
within the Period of Performance. Final reports are due 45 days after the end of Period of
Performance.

All equipment must be purchased and deployed in accordance set forth in the FY 2018 EMPG
NOFO. All assets supported in part or entirely with FY 2018 EMPG funding must be readily
deployable to support emergency or disaster operations per existing EMAC/IMAS agreements.

2018 Emergency Management Performance Grant {EMPG)
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13.

14.

15.

16.

17.

18l

19,

20.

21.

22,

23.

A DHSEM Approved Request for Approval is required prior to any non-personnel
purchases/expenditures.

All requests must be reviewed and approved by the Local Preparedness Program. All requests
must meet the original scope of the project. All approved revisions shall result in a subgrant
amendment.

If a revision of the project(s) scope of work is requested, it must be pre-approved by the Local
Preparedness Program before the jurisdiction can proceed with the Request for Approval (RFA)
process. [f the revision is approved, the Local Preparedness Program may request additional
documentation to proceed with recommendation to DHSEM Leadership for final approval.

The beneficiary of this award is solely responsible for all expenditures that are incurred outside
of the award performance period.

All expenditures that are incurred above and beyond the amount of this sub-grant agreement
are the sole responsibility of the sub-recipient of this award.

The FEMA approved National Environmental Protection Agency-Environmental Historic
Preservation (NEPA/EHP) screening form must be submitted prior to any ground disturbance,
modification to buildings, etc.

Procurement from Minority Owned and Women Owned Business is encouraged, and must be
tracked and reported to DHSEM on the quarterly reports.

Annual external audit reports must be submitted to DHSEM within 30 days of receipt by sub-
recipients.

All Contracts for goods and services, to include the project scope of work, must be reviewed and
approved the LPP and ASB before execution, to include signing of contract between parties.
Upon completion of all awarded projects, any remaining funds will be de-obligated and reverted
back to DHSEM

No extensions to this grant will be allowed.
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State of New Mexico

DEPARTMENT OF HOMELAND SECURITY & EMERGENCY MANAGEMENT
P.O. Box 27111

Santa Fe, NM 87502

The acceptance of a grant from the United States and the State of New Mexico creates a legal duty and
obligation on the part of the sub-grantee Torrance County to use the funds or property made available
in accordance with the conditions of the grant as administered by and through the New Mexico
Department of Homeland Security and Emergency Management.

SUB-RECIPIENT GRANT AGREEMENT

Signature of Acceptance

SUB RECIPIENT SIGNATURES
SIGNATURE VQF‘EMERG,ENCY;‘*‘MANAGEMENfPROGRAM’ MANAGER

PRINTED NAME:  WAg,y 0w P\ AJCOND B
(OFFICIAL SIGNATURE: —\N{ A—  DaTE: \oiplig - J
!
|
|

 CONTACTNUMBER: | |S55) W5 - 0FGe | EMAILADDRESS: \scerodbememus

S|GNATuRg,gf,J_uq_ﬂisnlt:‘rlou"jgjellsfﬂngiucu_m:omcsn

T O -
_OFFICIALSIGNATURE: é é - ‘Ete_:/_iy{:/ - 4{

CONTACTNUMBER: (505 SUd—" (12 | EMALADDRESS: | abipried bommss

SIGNATURE OF JURISDICTION SIGNATORY OFFICIAL
PRINTED NAME: "\, o\ Yo Gouwr\ound
OFFICIAL SIGNATURE: , /uﬂf BATE: LG -5

CONTACT NUMBER: \ ©08) suy-ee E-MAIL ADDRESS: | VD garand & term. oS J

A e
OFFICIAL SIGNATURE:
Print Name: Sarah J. Peterson

=3

OFFICIAL SIGNATURE:
Print Name: M. Jay Mitchell, Cabinet Secretary

*Please print two (2) originals, sign both and mail to: Grants Management Unit, P.O. Box 27111, Santa Fe, NM 87502
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ATTACHMENT |
Required Reimbursement Checklist

Please Note: DHSEM reserves the right to update this check list throughout the life of the grant to ensure
compliance with applicable federal and state rules and regulations. Please only check the categories that apply to
the reimbursement you are currently requesting.

EQUIPMENT
Have all invoices been included?
Has AEL # been identified for each purchase?
If service/warranty expenses are approved and listed, are they only for the performance period of the
grant?
Has proof of payment been included? (e.g. canceled check, Electronic Funds Transfer (EFT) confirmation,
or P-Card back up documentation which will inciude receipt with vendor, copy of credit card statement
showing expense charged, and payment to credit card Company for that statement)
EHP screening form if needed — has copy of it and approval from DHS/FEMA been included?

CONSULTANTS/CONTRACTORS
Does the amount billed by consultant add up correctly?
Has all appropriate documentation to denote hours worked been properly signed?
Have copies of all planning materials and work product (e.g. meeting documents, copies of plans) been
included? (If a meeting was held by recipient or contractor/consultant of recipient, an agenda and signup
sheet with meeting date must be included).
Has the invoice from consultant/contractor been included?
Has proof of payment been included? (e.g. canceled check, Electronic Funds Transfer (EFT) confirmation,
or P-Card back up documentation which will include receipt with vendor, copy of credit card statement
showing expense charged, and payment to credit card Company for that statement).

SALARY POSITIONS {Note: this applies to positions bilied under M&A)
Have the following been provided: signed time sheet by employee and supervisor and proof that
employee was paid for time worked (statement of earnings, copy of payroll check or payroll register)?
Has a time period summary sheet been included for total claimed amount?
Has a general ledger payroll report been included for total claimed amount? Ensure this report includes
both employee and employer payroll information (i.e. benefits/contributions).
Does the back-up documentation include a copy of the check stub per employee for the time period
covered?
Does the back-up documentation provided match the time period for which reimbursement is being
requested?

TRAINING
Is the course DHS/FEMA approved? Is there a course or catalog number? If not, has DHSEM approved the
non-DHS training request form? Is supporting documentation included your reimbursement request?
Have sign-in sheets, rosters and agenda been provided?
If billing for overtime and/or backfill, has a spreadsheet been provided that lists attendee names,
department, # of hours spent at training, hourly rate and total amount paid to each attendee? Have print
outs from entity’s financial system been provided as proof attendees were paid? For backfill, has a clear
delineation/cross reference been provided showing who was backfilling who?
Have the names on the sign-in sheets been cross-referenced with the names of the individuals for whom
training reimbursement costs are being sought?
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Has any expenditures occurred in support of the training (e.g., printing costs, costs related to
administering the training, planning, scheduling, facilities, materials and supplies, reproduction of
materials, and equipment)? If so, receipts and proof of payment must be submitted. (e.g. system
generated ledger, canceled check, Electronic Funds Transfer (EFT) confirmation, or P-Card back up
documentation which will include receipt with vendor, copy of credit card statement showing expense
charged, and payment to credit card Company for that statement).

MATCHING FUNDS
Contributions are from Non Federal funding sources.
Contributions are from cash or in-kind contributions which may include training investments.
Contributions are not from salary, overtime or other operational costs unrelated to training.

#Hith
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PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT

THIS AGREEMENT is made and entered into this 1% Day of July 2018 by and between
the County of Torrance, hereinafter referred to as “County” and Ware Resources, hereinafter
referred to as the “Contractor.”

WHEREAS, the County has entered into an agreement with the State of New Mexico
Children, Youth and Families Department to provide funding for a continuum of graduate sanction
and alternative detention services to juvenile offences.

WHEREAS, the terms of said agreement require compliance with all applicable Federal
and State laws, rules and regulations, and

WHEREAS, The County desires to utilize the expertise of the Contractor.

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the premises and mutual obligations herein, the
parties hereto do mutually agree as follows:

ARTICLE 1 SCOPE OF CONTRACTOR SERVICES

1.1 The Contractor shall serve as a facilitator for the Gender Specific Boys Council Program
that serves teenage youth who are at risk of becoming involved in the Juvenile Justice System and
have been identified by a parent, counselor, social worker, and/or courts to be at such risk or who
could benefit from the program. The program shall utilize the Boys Council model that is
recognized as a “promising practice” and serves to empower at-risk teenage boys and girls by
improving their self-esteem and teaching them communication and decision-making skills. The
Contractor shall provide the following services and meet the following requirements:

1.1.1  Each Council session shall run for eight (8) to twelve (12) weeks for one and a half (1.5)
hours per week.

1.1.2  Submit the FY19 Data Collection Form no later than the 5% day of the following month, a
summary report upon completion of the program, including performance outcomes and the
number of youth to complete the program successfully.

1.1.3 Submit a weekly attendance form for each Council to the Program Coordinator by 5:00
p.m. the following day after the Council is conducted.

1.1.4 Print and file each participant’s monthly log by the 5* day of the following month.

1.1.5 Provide other data and information as may be requested or required by CYFD and/or the
Program Coordinator.

1.1.6 Inclusion and reference the CYFD and EVYFC logo in any correspondence and media
communications.
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1.1.7  Upon successful completion of the program, issue a certificate to each participant and
obtain an evaluation form from each participant.

1.1.8 Conduct retention calls to the parents of each participant on a weekly basis to build a
relationship with the parent as well as to discuss the progress of their participating child.

1.1.9 Collect the following information for each participant:
1.1.9.1 Initials;

1.1.9.2 Date of Birth;

1.1.9.3 Age;

1.1.9.4 Gender;

1.1.9.5 Ethnicity;

1.1.9.6 Population served;

1.1.9.7 Geographic location;

1.1.9.8 Referral source;

1.1.9.9 Days/Times program is held;
1.1.9.10 Program attendance; and
1.1.9.11 Program participation.

ARTICLE 2 PERFORMANCE MEASURES
2.1  Number and demographics of families referred to the program.

2.2 Number of youths who attend all Council hours as required.

2.3 Number of youth who successfully graduate from the program

2.4  Update the Master List on a monthly basis.

ARTICLE 3 ABILITY

3.1 Work is performed as a contract and the Contractor is required to provide the necessary
equipment needed to perform the job such as use of their own vehicle, and time spend traveling,
which is not reimbursable. There will be a need for use of computers and internet will be provided
by the program. However, materials such as office supplies will be provided by the County.

3.2 Thereis fieldwork required in conducting community relations activities, in accompanying
students of field trips and to carry other the essential functions of this Contract and the Contractor

shall be able to work non-traditional working hours and have a flexible schedule.

33 The Contractor will be required to obtain all program materials, supplies, meals,
drinks, etc. as part of the fee for service contract.

3.4  The Contractor will submit all purchase receipts for the month with their invoice and
timesheet by the S5th day of the following month to the program coordinator.
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ARTICLE 4 TIME OF PERFORMANCE
4.1 This Agreement will commence on July 1, 2018 and will continue through May 31, 2019,
or until contracted services are completed, contingent on the availability of funds.

4.2  Both County and Contractor reserve the right to terminate this Agreement in writing for no
cause by giving thirty (30) days’ notice to the other party. By such termination, neither party may
nullify obligations already incurred for performance or failure to perform prior to the date of
termination.

4.3  The County reserves the right to immediately terminate the Agreement for cause.

ARTICLE 5§ COMPENSATION

5.1  The Contractor will be paid on a monthly basis afier submitting an invoice for the services
provided in the previous month and such invoice and deliverables have been approved by the State
of New Mexico Children, Youth and Families Department. All billable hours must fall within the
scope of work as identified in Article 1 Scope of Contractor Services and invoices must be
submitted to the Program Coordinator on or before the 5 day of each month following delivery
of the services.

5.2  The New Mexico Gross Receipts Tax levied on the amounts payable under this Agreement
shall be paid by the Contractor.

5.3  The total amount of funds to be paid under this Agreement shall not exceed $5.400.00
(83150.00 per session x 36 classes) as agreed upon in the 2018-2019 Children. Youth and
Families Department Juvenile Justice Advisory Committee Grant. Upon review by the Sixth
Judicial District Court Program Manager, the County shall pay the Contractor for services
rendered.

5.4  The Contractor will be responsible for providing incentives for good attendance,
participation, etc.

5.5  The Contractor is responsible for tracking the hours and compensation limit under this
Agreement, and without advance written permission for the County Manager, the Contractor
shall not bill for or be paid for hours or compensation in excess of the $5,400.00 cap placed on
this Agreement.

ARTICLE 6 STATUS OF CONTRACTOR

6.1 The Contractor, and any employees and agents, are independent contractors performing
services for the County and are not employees of the County. The Contractor, employees, and
agents will not receive leave, retirement, insurance, bonding, use of County vehicles, or any other
benefits afforded to employees of the County as a result of this Agreement.

ARTICLE 7 TAXES

7.1  Contractor shall be responsible for the payment of all income taxes, gross receipts taxes
and other deductions by law for any compensation received from the County.
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ARTICLE 8 INDEMNITY

8.1 Contractor agrees to defend, indemnify and hold harmless Torrance County, and its
officials, agents and employees, from and against any and all claims, actions, suits or proceedings,
including damages, costs, interests, attorneys fees and other liabilities of any kind brought against
the County or the Contractor for or on account of any matter arising from the services performed
by and acts of omissions of the Contractor under this Agreement. The indemnity required herein
shall not be limited by reason of the specification of any particular insurance coverage in this
Agreement.

ARTICLE 9 EQUAL OPPORTUNITY RIGHTS

9.1 In performing the services required hereunder and allowing participation in or receiving
benefits of the program, the Contractor shall not discriminate against any person on the basis of
race, color, religion, sex, national origin or ancestry, age, physical handicap, disability, medical
condition, veteran status, spousal affiliation, sexual preference or orientation, or any other
unlawful criterion, except where a bona fide occupational qualification applies.

9.2 The Contractor agrees to abide by all Federal and State laws, rules, regulations, executive
order pertaining to equal employment opportunities.

9.3  Ifthe Contractor is found to not be in compliance with the requirements in this Article, The
Contractor shall immediately take appropriate steps to correct the identified deficiencies.

ARTICLE 10 RECORDS AND AUDITS

10.1  Records shall be maintained by the Contractor in accordance with applicable law and
requirements prescribed by Torrance County with respect to all matters covered by this
Agreement. Except as otherwise authorized by Torrance County, such records shall be maintained
for a period of three (3) years after receipt of final payment under this Agreement. Copies and
originals of pertinent documents shall be provided to Torrance County as directed by Torrance
County.

102 Ataminimum, the Contractor shall maintain detailed records which indicate the date, time
and nature of services rendered, in addition to the Performance Measures required by Article 2.

10.3  Therecords shall be subject to inspection by the County, it designees and the State Auditor.

10.4  The County shall have the right to audit billing both before and after payment and payment
under this Agreement shall not act as a waiver of the County’s right to recover from the Contractor
excessive, illegal or ineligible payment made or obtained by fraudulent or erroneous statements or
acts.

ARTICLE 11 PRODUCT SERVICES, COPYRIGHT

11.1  No materials produced in whole or in part under this Agreement shall be subject to an

application or claim of copyright by or on behalf of the Contractor and shall become the property

of the County and shall be delivered by the Contractor to the County no later than the termination

or expiration date of this Agreement. Torrance County shall have unrestricted authority to publish,

disclose, distribute and otherwise use, in whole or in part, any reports, data or other materials
Page 4 of 6



prepared under this Agreement. Torrance County and the Contractor acknowledge that the above
is not meant to affect the attorney/client privilege unless waived by Torrance County.

ARTICLE 12 CONFLICT OF INTEREST

12.1 The Contractor warrants that he/she presently has no interest and will not acquire any
interest, direct or indirect, which would conflict in any manner or degree with the performance
under this Agreement.

ARTICLE 13 ASSIGNMENT

13.1  The Contractor will not assign or transfer any interest in this Agreement nor assign any
claims for money due or to become due under this Agreement without prior written approval by
the County.

ARTICLE 14 AMENDMENT
14.1 This Agreement shall not be altered, changed or amended except by a written document
signed by the parties hereto.

ARTICLE 15 SUBCONTRACTING

15.1 This Agreement is based on the personal skill and reliability of the Contractor. The
Contractor may not subcontract any portion of the services to be performed under this Agreement
without the prior written approval of the County. The County reserves no right to direct, supervise
or control the manner or method of performance of services by any such subcontractors, servants,
employees and agents of the Contractor.

ARTICLE 16 APPROPRIATIONS

16.1 The terms of this Agreement are contingent upon sufficient appropriations and
authorizations made either by the County or the appropriate State agency or department for the
compensation for services rendered under this Agreement. If sufficient appropriations or
authorizations are not made, the County may terminate this Agreement by sending written notice
to the Contractor. The County's decision as to whether sufficient appropriations are available will
be accepted by the Contractor as final.

ARTICLE 17 TERMINATION

17.1  This Agreement may be terminated by either of the parties hereto upon written notice
delivered to the other party at least thirty (30) days before the intended date of termination. By
such termination, neither party may nullify obligations already incurred for performance or
failure to perform prior to the date of termination.

ARTICLE 18 RELEASE

18.1 The Contractor upon final payment of the compensation due under this Agreement,
releases the County, it's officers and employees, from all claims, liabilities and obligations
whether contractual, tort or any other type of claim arising from or under this Agreement. The
Contractor agrees not to bind the County to any obligations not assumed herein unless the
Contractor has expressed written authority from the County.

ARTICLE 19 CONFIDENTIALITY
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19.1  Any information given to or developed by the Contractor in the performance of this
Agreement will be kept confidential and will not be made available to any individual,
organization, or other entity by the Contractor without prior written approval of the County.

ARTICLE 20 SCOPE OF CONTRACT

20.1 This Agreement incorporates all of the agreements, covenants and understandings
between the parties concerning the subject matter of this contract, and all such agreements,
covenants, and understandings have been merged into this written contract. No prior agreement
covenant, or understanding, oral or written, of the parties or their agents shall be valid or
enforced unless embodied in this Agreement.

]

ARTICLE 21 PROCUREMENT

21.1  The Procurement Code, Sections 13-1-28 through 13-1-199 NMSA 1978, imposes civil
and criminal penalties for its violation. In addition, the New Mexico Criminal statutes impose
felony penalties for illegal bribes, gratuities and kickbacks.

ARTICLE 22 APPLICABLE LAW
22.1 This contract will be governed by the laws of the State of New Mexico.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, Contractor and the County do hereby execute this
Agreement as of the date first written above.

By
Belinda Garland, Date
County Manager

By
Ware Resources, Sid Ware Date
Contractor
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October 11, 2018

N\ &1

ARCHITECTS - PUANNERS: AIK

Re: Torrance County Animal Shelter Addition

Noah J. Sedilo
Chief Procurement Officer
Torrance County:

Dear Mr. Sedillo,

After reviewing the bid results for this project and the associated documents
provided as part of the bid, NCA Architects feels comfortable recommending
acceptance of the low bid contractor, Vigil Contracting Services, Inc. with a bid
amount of $52,000.00 plus NMGRT.

Should you have any questions, please don't hesitate o contact me.
Sincerely,
Dave Puritz

Project Manager
NCA Architects

1306 Ric Grande Bivd. NW | Albuguergue, Nii 87104 | v 505-255-6400 | f 506-258-6954 | www ned-grehitects. com
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TORRANCE COUNTY RESOLUTION# 2018- 47

Amended Fourth Quarter Report for FY17/18

WHEREAS, the Governing Body in and for the County of Torrance, has reviewed the Fourth Quarter Report as

amended for Fiscal Year 2017-2018, and;

WHEREAS, said amended Fourth Quarter Report was completed using adjusted Torrance County figures and
balances and compiled into the Department of Finance and Administration's approved forms by the Torrance County

Finance Department, and;

WHEREAS, the amended Fourth Quarter Repoit is herto attached, and;

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, that the Board of County Commissioners, Torrance County hereby finds the
amended Fourth Quarter Report to be accurate and true and respectfully requests approval from the Local Government

Division of the Department of Finance and Administration.

DONE at Estancia, New Mexico, Torrance County this 24th day of October.

Attest:

Linda Jaramillo
Torrance County Clerk

Vote Record

James W. Frost yes
Julia DuCharme yes
Javier E. Sanchez yes

no
no
no

abstain
abstain
abstain

absent
absent
absent

Torrance County Board of Commissioners

James W. Frost, District 1

Julia DuCharme, District 2

Javier E. Sanchez District 3




COUNTY: TORRANCE UHH%.HQHZH OF FINANCE AND ADMINISTRATION
LOCAL GOVERNMENT DIVISION IHEREBY CERTIFY THAT THE CONTENTS IN Tji1S REPORT ARE TRUE AND CORRECT TO THE BEST OF
Period Ending: 06/30/2018 P MY KNOWLEDGE g THIS REPQRT DEPICTS ALL FUNDS:
SUBMIT TO LOCAL GOVERNMENT DIVISION NO LATER THAN 30 DAYS . 7
Prepared By: Amanda Tenorio AFTER THE CLOSE OF EACH QUARTER. P\ ottt & — 'u\ AT \\ Q(\ %. - \ M\\
“7 7 Signature Date T
YEAR-TO-DATE TRANSACTIONS
BEGINNING QTR ENDING CASH REQUIRED
FUND CASH BALANCE| REVENUES TRANSFERS | EXPENDITURES | ADJUSTMENTS | CASH BALANCE | INVESTMENTS + RESERVES AVAILABLE
Fund NAME CURRENT FY TO DATE TO DATE TO DATE (1)+H2)-(3)+4)+H(5) INVESTMENTS CASH
# (1) 2 (3) 4) (5) (6) )] (3) % 8-
101 |GENERAL FUND (GF) $2,143,804 6,221,276 (1,051,240) 5,160,701 0 $2,153,139 0 $2,153,139 1,290,175 $862,964
201 |CORRECTION $0 27,271 0 27,271 0 $0 0 $0 $0
202 |[ENVIRONMENTAL GRT $0 155,793 0 155,793 0 $0 0 $0 $0
203 |County Property Valuation $218,928 102,657 44,141 196,960 0 $168,766 0 $168,766 $168,766
204 |COUNTY ROAD $247 543 1,299,040 95,000 958,200 0 $683,382 0 $683,382 79,850 $603,532
206 |EMS $100,590 44 819 0 13,059 0 $132,350 0 $132,350 $132,350
207 |ENHANCED 911 $226,397 652,916 213,089 797,218 0 $295,183 0 $295,183 $295,183
208 |Farm & Range Improvement $256 1,833 31,500 31,500 0 $2,089 0 $2,089 $2,089
209 |FIRE PROTECTION FUND $258,220 590,189 0 385,470 0 $462,939 0 $462,939 $462,939
211 |LEPF $3,781 27,800 0 26,878 0 $4.703 0 $4,703 $4,703
214 |LODGERS'TAX $0 0 0 0 0 50 1] $0 $0
217 |RECREATION $0 0 0 0 0 $0 0 $0 $0
218 |INTERGOVERNMENTAL GRANTY $133,855 440,102 338,469 444 983 0 $467.442 0 $467 442 $467,442
219 |SENIOR CITIZEN $781 0 10,000 4,167 0 $6,614 0 $6,614 $6,614
220 |COUNTY INDIGENT FUND - $311,795 408,426 0 396,099 0 $324,122 0 $324,122 $324,122
221 |COUNTY HOSPITAL FUND $0 0 0 0 0 $0 0 $0 $0
222 |COUNTY FIRE PROTECTION $215,187 306,697 (11,243) 88,674 0 $421,966 0 $421,966 $421,966
223 |DWIPROGRAM $50,799 150,368 36,000 147,657 0 $89,510 0 $89,510 $89,510
225 |Clerk Recording & Filing $9,269 23,651 0 15,634 0 $17,285 0 $17,285 $17,285
226 |JAIL - DETENTION FUND $450,762 389,203 1,175,295 1,805,639 0 $209,621 0 $209,621 $209,621
299 |OTHER $775,526 1,332,332 (820,288) 718,761 0 $568,809 0 $568,809 $568,809
300 |CAPITAL PROJECT FUNDS $1,732,236 1,055,744 33,360 1,417,198 0 $1,404,142 0 $1,404,142 $1,404,142
401 |G. O. BONDS $387.310 347,568 0 384,170 0 $350,707 0 $350,707 $350,707
402 |REVENUE BONDS $0 1] 0 0 0 $0 0 $0 $0
403 |DEBT SERVICE OTHER $379,446 275,137 (94.0082) 270,376 0 $290,125 0 $290,125 $290,125
500 |ENTERPRISE FUNDS g i :
Water Fund $0 0 0 0 0 $0 0 $0 $0
Solid Waste £0 0 0 0 0 $0 0 $0 $0
Waste Water $0 0 0 0 0 $0 0 $0 $0
Airport $0 0 0 0 0 $0 0 $0 $0
Ambulance $0 0 0 0 0 $0 0 30 $0
Cemetery $0 0 0 0 0 $0 0 $0 $0
Housing $0 0 0 0 0 $0 0 $0 $0
Parking $0 ] 0 0 0 $0 0 $0 $0
Other Enterprise (enter fund $0 0 0 0 0 $0 0 $0 $0
Other Enterprise (enter fund $0 0 0 0 1] $0 0 $0 $0
Other Enterprise (enter fund $0 0 0 0 0 $0 0 $0 $0
it Other Enterprise (enter fund $0 0 0 0 0 $0 0 $0 $0
600 |INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS $0 0 0 0 0 $0 0 $0 $0
_700_|TRUST AND AGENCY FUNDS %0 0 0 0 of $0 0 $o [ $0
GRAND TOTAL $7,646,486 $13,852,820 ($0) $13,446,40 $0 $8,052,898 $0 $8,052,898 $1,370,025 $6,682,872
FORM MODIFIED 12/05/08 LAST UPDATE:  10/18/18 2:44 PM
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COUNTY: TORRANCE
Period Ending: 06/30/2018

GENERAL FUND - COUNTY

COMPARATIVE STATEMENT OF BUDGETED AMOUNTS ACTUALS Variance With Adjusted Budget
REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES Approved Budget Adjusted Y-T-D ENCUMBRAN Positive (Negative)
Budget Adjustments Budget CES Y-T-D $ %
REVENUES
Taxes: )
Property Tax - Current Year 4,105,101 30 $4,105,101 $4,163,830 $58,729 | 101.43%
Property Tax - Delinquent 300,000 $0 $300,000 $296,396 ($3,604) 98.80%
Property Tax - Penalty & Interest 144,000 $0 $144,000 $158.979 $14,979 | 110.40%
Oil and Gas - Equipment 0 $0 $0 $0 $0 n/a
Oil and Gas - Production 0 $0 30 $0 $0 n/a
Franchise Fees 0 $0 $0 $0 $0 n/a
Gross receipts - Local Option 320,000 $0 $320,000 $424.497 $104,497 | 132.66%
Gross Receipts - Infrastructure 0 $0 $0 $0 $0 n/a
Gross Receipts - Environment 0 $0 $0 $0 $0 n/a
Gross Receipts - Hold Harmless 0 $0 $0 $0 $0 n/a
Gross Receipts - Other Dedication 0 $0 $0 $0 $0 n/a
PILT $250,000 $0 $250,000 $425,806 $175,806 | 170.32%
Intergovernmental - State Shared:
Gross receipts $360,000 $0 $360,000 $216,725 ($143,275)]  60.20%
Cigarette Tax $0 $0 $0 $0 $o n/a
Gas Tax $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 n/a
Motor Vehicle $50,000 $0 $50,000 $57,549 $7,549 | 115.10%
Other $0 $0 $0 $o $0 n/a
Grants - Federal $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 n/a
Grants - State $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 nfa
Grants - Local $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 n/a
Legislative Appropriations $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 n/a
Small Counties Assistance $200,000 $0 $200,000 $278,000 $78,000 | 139.00%
Licenses and Permits $13,300 $0 $13,300 $20,326 $7,026 | 152.82%
Charges for Services $128,200 $3,080 $131,280 $158,262 $26,982 | 120.55%
Fines and Forfeits $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 n/a
Interest on Investments $1,200 $0 $1,200 $1,033 ($167)] 86.10%
Miscellaneous $8,200 $0 $8,200 $19,874 $11,674 | 242.37%
TOTAL GENERAL FUND REVENUES $5,880,001 $3,080 |  $5.883,081 |  $6221,276 $338,195 | 105.75%
EXPENDITURES
Executive-Legislative 1,149,903 $12,883 $1,162,786 $1,163,474 $0 ($688)| 100.06%
Judicial 30,858 $0 $30,858 $30,499 $0 $359 | 98.84%
Elections 369,309 $0 $369,309 $358,779 $0 $10,530 | 97.15%
Finance & Administration 1,567,548 ($13,300) $1,554,248 $1,478.,030 $0 $76,218 | 95.10%
Public Safety 1,501,880 50 $1,501,880 $1,467,386 $0 $34,494 | 97.70%
Highways & Streets 0 $0 $0 30 $0 $0 n/a
Senior Citizens 0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 n/a
Sanitation 0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 n/a
Health and Welfare 0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 n/a
Culture and Recreation 0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 n/a
Economic Development & Housing 0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 n/a
Other - Miscellaneous 703,757 $0 $703,757 $662,534 $0 $41,223 | 94.14%
TOTAL GENERAL FUND EXPENDITURES $5,323,255 (3417 $5,322,838 $5,160,701 $0 $162,137 | 96.95%
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES
Transfers In $152,236 $83 $152,319 $152,320 $0 | 100.00%
Transfers (Out) ($1,200,460) ($3,100)]  ($1,203,560)| ($1,203,560) $0 | 100.00%
TOTAL - OTHER FINANCING SOURCES ($1,048,224) ($3.017]  ($1,051,241} ($1,051,240) $0 | 100.00%
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expenditures; $9.335
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COUNTY: TORRANCE
Period Ending: 06/30/2018

SPECIAL REVENUES - COUNTY FUNDS - QUARTERLY REPORT

BUDGET ACTUALS |
SPECIAL REVENUES - RESOURCES Approved Resolutions Adjusted Year to Date Encumbrances Budget Budget
Fund Budget Adj. Budget Budget Total (expend line only) Balance Variance%
RTS'VENTJE'S’HW:!' -
Correction Fees 201 0 0 27271 27,271 n/a
Miscellaneous 201 0 0 0 n/a
TOTAL Revenues 4] 27,271 27271 n/a
EXPENDITURES 201 27,271 (27,271) n/a
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES
Transfers In 201 0 /a
Transfers (Out) 201 0 /a
TOTAL - OTHER FINANCING SOURCES 0 n/a
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expen| 201 0
| ENVIRONMENTAL 202
REVENUES
GRT - Environmental 202 185,000 155,793 (29,207) 84.21%
Miscellaneous 202 0 0 0 0 0 n/a
TOTAL Revenues 90,000 95,000 185,000 155,793 {(29,207) 84.21%
EXPENDITURES 202 90,000 95,000 185,000 155,793 0 29,207 84.21%
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES
Transfers In 202 0 0 n/al
Transfers (Out) 202 0 0
TOTAL - OTHER FINANCING SOURCES 0 0

10f§

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expen 202 [iiiiiHHHI fisnmnnanani 00 0
__PROPERTY VALUATION 263
REVENUES
Administrative Fee 203 101,000 0 101,000 94,040 (6,960) 93.11%
Miscellaneous 203 0 0 0 8,616 8,616 n/a
TOTAL Revenues 101,000 0 101,000 102,657 i 1,657 101.64%
EXPENDITURES 203 363,166 0 363,166 196,960 0 166,206 54.23%
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES :
Transfers In 203 44,141 0 44,141 44,141 0 100.00%
Transfers (Out) 203 0 0 0 0 | 0| n/a
TOTAL - OTHER FINANCING SOURCES 44141 0] 44,141 44,141 . 0 100.00%
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expen| 203
| EMS 206
REVENUES
State EMS Grant 206 0 15,080 15,080 15,080 0 100.00%
Miscellaneous 206 29,000 0 29,000 29,739 739 102.55%
TOTAL Revenues 29,000 15,080 44,080 44,819 739 101.68%
EXPENDITURES 206 128,590 0 128,590 13,059 0 115,531 10.16%
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES
Transfers In 206 0 0 0 0 n/a
Transfers (Out) 206 0 0 0 0 n/a
TOTAL - OTHER FINANCING SOURCES 0 0 0 0 n/a,
Excess {deficiency) of revenues over expen 206 31,760
_Egnl 87
REVENUES
State-E-911 Enhancement 207 0 4] 0 0 /a,
Network & Data Base Grant 207 0 0 0 0 n/a
Miscellaneous 207 615,150 37,697 652,847 652,916 69 100.01%
TOTAL Revenues 615,150 37,697 652,847 652,916 69 100.01%
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COUNTY: TORRANCE
Period Ending: 06/30/2018

SPECIAL REVENUES - COUNTY FUNDS - QUARTERLY REPORT

20of 5

BUDGET ACTUALS
SPECIAL REVENUES - RESOURCES Approved Resolutions Adjusted Year to Date Encumbrances Budget Budget
Fund Budget Adj. Budpet Budget Total Balance Variance%
EXPENDITURES 207 915,810 37,697 953,507 797,218 156,289 83.61%
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES
Transfers In 207 260,000 260,000 260,000 0 100.00%
Transfers (Out) 207 (46,911) (46,911) (46,911) (0) 100.00%
TOTAL - OTHER FINANCING SOURCES 213,089 213,089 213,089 (0) 100.00%
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expen 207 68,786
| FARM & RANGE 208
REVENUES
Federal - Taylor Grazing 208 1,500 0 1,500 1,833 333 122.23%
Miscellaneous 208 0 0 0 0 0 n/a
TOTAL Revenues 1,500 0 1,500 1,833 333 122.23%
EXPENDITURES 208 31,500 0 31,500 31,500 0 100.00%
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES
Transfers In 208 31,500 0] 31,500 31,500 0 100.00%
Transfers (Out) 208 0 0 0 0 0 n/a
TOTAL - OTHER FINANCING SOURCES 31,500 31,500 31,500 0 100 00%
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expen 208 : i 1.833 |
| COUNTY FIRE PROTECTION 09 |
REVENUES
State - Fire Marshall Allotment 209 589,894 0 589,894 590189 i 295 100 05%
Miscellaneous 209 0 0 0 0 0 n/a
TOTAL Revenues 589,894 0 589,894 390,189 295 100 05%
EXPENDITURES 209 786,660 0 786,660 385,470 0 401,190 49.00%
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES
Transfers In 209 0 0 0 n/a
Transfers (Out) 209 0 0 0 0 n/a
TOTAL - OTHER FINANCING SOURCES 0 0 0 0 nfa
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expen 209 204,719
_LAW ENFORCEMENT PROTECTION | 211
REVENUES
State-Law Enforcement Protection 211 26,600 1,200 27,800 27,800 0 100.00%
Miscellaneous 211 0 0 0 0 n/a
TOTAL Revenues 26,600 1,200 27,800 27,800 0 100.00%
EXPENDITURES 211 30,980 4,102 86.76%
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES
Transfers In 211 n/a
Transfers (Out) 211
TOTAL - OTHER FINANCING SOURCES
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expen 211
__LODGERS’ TAX 21
REVENUES
Lodgers' Tax 214
Miscellaneous 214
TOTAL Revenues
EXPENDITURES 214
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES
Transfers In 214 |
Transfers (Out) 214
TOTAL - OTHER FINANCING SOURCES
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COUNTY: TORRANCE
Period Ending: 06/30/2018

SPECIAL REVENUES - COUNTY FUNDS - QUARTERLY REPORT

3of5

| BUDGET ACTUALS
SPECIAL REVENUES - RESOURCES i Approved Resolutions | Adjusted Year to Date Encumbrances Budget Budget
Fund Budget Adj. Budget Budget Total {expend line only) Balance Variance%
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expen 214
| RECREATION 217
REVENUES
Cigarette Tax - (1 cent) 217 0
Miscellaneous 217 0
TOTAL Revenues 0
EXPENDITURES 217 0 0
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES
Transfers In 217 0| 0
Transfers (Out) 217 0
TOTAL - OTHER FINANCING SOURCES 0 0
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expen| 217 |: 0
| INTERGOVERNMENTAL GRANTS 218
REVENUES
State Grants 218 | 287,528 47,253 334,781 242,561 (92,220) 72.45%
Federal Grants 218 339,652 16.386 356.038 153.961 (202,076) 43.24%
Miscellaneous 218 32,000 0 32,000 43,579 |iii 11,579 136.18%
TOTAL Revenues 659,180 63,639 722,819 440,102 | (282,717) 60.89%
EXPENDITURES 218 785,280 0 785,280 444,983 340,297 56.67%
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES
Transfers In 218 67,151 271,401 338,552 338,552 0 100.00%
Transfers (Out) 218 0 {83) (83) (83) 0 100.00%
TOTAL - OTHER FINANCING SOURCES 67,151 271,318 338,469 338,469 0 100.00%
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expen 218 333,588
|_SENIOR CITIZENS 219
REVENUES
State Grants 219 0 0 0 0 n/a
Federal Grants 219 0 0 0 0 n/a
Miscellaneous 219 0 0 0 0 n/a
TOTAL Revenues 0 0 0 0 n/a
EXPENDITURES 219 10,000 0 4,167 0 5,833 41.67%
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES
Transfers In 219 10,000 10,000 0 100.00%
Transfers (Out) 219 0 0 0 n/a
TOTAL - OTHER FINANCING SOURCES 10,000 10,000 0 100.00%
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expen| 219 5,833
INDIGENT 20
REVENUES
GRT - County Indigent 220 200,000 200,000 254,698 54,698 127.35%
Miscellaneous 220 175,000 175,000 153,728 (21,272) 87.84%
TOTAL Revenues 375,000 375,000 408,426 33,426 108.91%
EXPENDITURES 220 686,000 0 686,000 396,099 0 289,901 57.74%
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES
Transfers In 220 0 n/a
Transfers (Qut) 200 0 0 n/a
TOTAL - OTHER FINANCING SOURCES 0 0 0 n/a
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expen| 220
_HOSPITAL 221
REVENUES
| GRT - Speciel/Local Hospital 2| ol o) ol
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COUNTY: TORRANCE
Period Ending: 06/30/2018

SPECIAL REVENUES - COUNTY FUNDS - QUARTERLY REPORT

40f5

| BUDGET | ACTUALS
HSPECIAL REVENUES - RESOURCES Approved Resolutions Adjusted Year to Date Encumbrances Budget Budget
Fund Budget Adj. Budget Budget Total (expend line only} Balance Variance%
GRT - Hospital Emergency 21 0 0 0 Ji i 0 n/a
GRT - County Health Care 221 0 0 0 0 n/a
Miscellaneous 221 0 0 0 0 n/a
TOTAL Revenues 0 0 0 0 n/a
EXPENDITURES 221 0 0 0 0 n/a
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES
Transfers In 221 0 n/a
Transfers {Out) 221 0 n/a,
TOTAL - OTHER FINANCING SOURCES 0 n/a
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expen 221 0
|_COUNTY FIRE PROTECTION 22
REVENUES
GRT - Fire Excise Tax (1/4 or 1/8 cent) 222 100,000 185,000 285,000 233,134 (51,866) 81.80%
Miscellaneous 222 10,000 0 10,000 73,563 63,563 735.63%
TOTAL Revenues 110,000 185,000 295,000 306,697 11,697 103.97%
EXPENDITURES 222 313,944 185,000 498,944 88.674 0 410,270 17.77%
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES i
Transfers In 222 0 0 n/a
Transfers (Out) 222 (11,243) {11.243) (0) 100.00%
TOTAL - OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (11,243) (11.243) (0) 100.00%
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expen 222 : 206,779 | B
bwi 223
REVENUES
State - Formula Distribution (DFA) 223 70,000 75,318 75,317 (1) 100.00%
State - Local Grant (DFA) 223 70,000 15,185 85,185 68,559 (16,626) 80.48%
State Other 223 6,520 0 6,520 3.774 (2,746) 57.88%
Federal Grants 223 0 0 0 0 0 n/a
Miscellaneous 223 6,275 0 6,275 2718 (3,557) 43.31%
TOTAL Revenues 152,795 20,503 173,298 150,368 | i (22,930) 86.77%
EXPENDITURES 223 199,697 0 199,697 147,657 0 52,040 73.94%
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES
Transfers In 223 36,000 36,000 36,000 0 100.00%
Transfers {Out) 223 0 0 [4] 0 n/a
TOTAL - OTHER FINANCING SOURCES 36,000 36,000 36,000 0 100.00%
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expen 223 38,711
| CLERKS RECORDING AND FILING FU| 225
REVENUES
Clerk Equipment Fees 225 23,651 3,651 118.26%
Miscellaneous 225 0 0 n/a
TOTAL Revenues 23,651 3,651 118.26%
EXPENDITURES 225 15,634 | 13,566 53.54%
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES '
Transfers In 225 0 0 n/a
Transfers (Out) 225 0 0 n/a
TOTAL - OTHER FINANCING SOURCES 0 0 n/a
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expen 225 8,017
|_JAIL - DETENTION 226
REVENUES
GRT - Counly Correctional Dedication 226 230,000 230,000 297421 67421 129.31%
Care of Prisoners 226 22,000 22,000 38,330 |: 16,330 174.23%
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COUNTY: TORRANCE
Period Ending: 06/30/2018

SPECIAL REVENUES - COUNTY FUNDS - QUARTERLY REPORT

BUDGET | ACTUALS
SPECIAL REVENUES - RESOURCES Approved Resolutions Adjusted Year to Date Encumbrances Budget Budget
Fund Budget Adj. Budget Budget Total {expend line only) Balance Variance%
Work Release 226 0 [ 0 0] 0 n/a
State - Care of Prisoners 226 30,000 0 30,000 31,382 1,382 104.61%
Federal - Care of Prisoners 226 0 0 0 0 0 n/a
Miscellaneous 226 73,000 0 73,000 22,069 (50,931) 30.23%
TOTAL Revenues 355,000 | 0 355,000 389,203 34,203 109.63%
EXPENDITURES 226 1,295,518 255,295 1,550,813 1,805,639 (254,826) 116.43%
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES
Transfers In 226 520,000 655,295 1,175,295 1,175,295 0 100.00%
Transfers (Out) 226 0 0 0 0 0 n/a
TOTAL - OTHER FINANCING SOURCES 520,000 655,295 1,175,295 1,175,295 0 100.00%
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expen| 226 : (241,141)
OTHER - SPECIAL 299
REVENUES 299 1,520,147 500,000 2,020,147 1,332,332 (687,815) 65.95%
EXPENDITURES 299 2,022,484 245,205 2,267,689 718,761 1,548,928 31.70%
TOTAL -OTHER FINANCING SOURCES 299 172,668 (992,956) (8201, 288) (820,288)}::::: 0 100.00%
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over exper! 299 (206,717)}!

Sofs
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COUNTY: TORRANCE
Period Ending: 06/30/2018

ROAD FUND - COUNTY

COMPARATIVE STATEMENT OF BUDGETED AMOUNTS ACTUALS Variance With Adjusted Buc
REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES Approved Budget Adjusted Y-T-D ENCUMBRAN Positive (Negative)
Budget Adjustments Budget CES Y-T-D $ %
REVENUES
Taxes:
Gross receipts - County $265,000 $0 $265,000 $282,998 $17,998 | 106.79°
Gross Receipts - Infrastructure $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 n/a
Gross Receipts - Hold Harmless $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 n/a
Gross Receipts - Other Dedication $0 $o0 $0 30 $0 n/a
Intergovernmental-State Shared:
Gas Tax $181,600 $0 $181,600 $191,227 $9,627 | 105.309
Motor Vehicle Registration $378,000 $0 $378,000 $376,570 ($1,430)] 99.62%
Grants - Federal $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 n/a
Grants - State $311,000 $0 $311,000 $311,029 $29 | 100.01¢
Grants - Local $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 n/a
Federal - Bankhead Jones $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 n/a
Federal - Forest Reserve $9,200 $0 $9,200 $110,213 $101,013 | 1197.97"
Legislative Appropriations $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 n/a
Interest Income $500 $0 $500 $174 ($326) 34.80%
Investment Income $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 n/a
Miscellaneous $12,229 $0 $12,229 $26,828 $14,599 | 219.38¢
TOTAL ROAD FUND REVENUES $1,157,529 $0 $1,157,529 $1,299,040 $141,511 | 112.23¢
EXPENDITURES
Current:
General Government $987.255 $7,072 $994,327 $784,667 $0 $209,660 | 78.91%
Public Works $315,029 $0 $315,029 $163,210 $0 $151,819 | 51.81%
Capital Qutlay $70,000 $0 $70,000 $10,323 $0 $59,677 | 14.75%
Debt Service:
Principal $0 30 $0 $0 $0 $0 n/a
Interest $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 n/a
TOTAL ROAD FUND EXPENDITURES $1,372,284 $7,072 $1,379,356 $958,200 $0 $421,156 | 69.47%
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES
Transfers In $95,000 $0 $95,000 $95,000 $0 | 100.00%
Transfers (Out) $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 n/a
TOTAL - OTHER FINANCING SOURCES $95,000 $0 $95,000 $95,000 $0 | 100.00%
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expenditis $435,839
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COUNTY: TORRANCE CAPITAL PROJECTS
Period Ending: 06/30/2018
COMPARATIVE STATEMENT OF BUDGETED AMOUNTS ACTUALS Variance With Adjusted Budg
REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES Approved Budget Adjusted Y-T-D ENCUMBRAN Positive (Negative)
Budget Adjustments Budget CESY-T-D |§ %
REVENUES
GRT- Dedication $355,000 $310,000 $665,000 $580,000 ($85,000) 87.229%
GRT- Hold Harmless $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 n
GRT- Infrastructure $80,000 $105,000 $185,000 $155,808 ($29,192) 84.229
Bond Proceeds $0 $1,005,187 $1,005,187 $6,285 ($998,902) 0.63%
Local Grants 30 $0 $0 $0 $0 n
CDBG funding $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 n
State Grants $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 n,
Federal Grants (other) $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 n
Legislative Appropriations $55,208 $33,960 $89,168 $35,123 ($54,045) 39.39%
Investment Income $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 n
Miscellaneous $0 $278,513 $278,513 $278,529 $16 100.01%
TOTAL CAPITAL PROJECTS REVENUES $490,208 $1,732,660 $2,222,868 $1,055,744 ($1,167,124) 47.49%
EXPENDITURES
Parks/Recreation $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 n
Housing $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 m
Equipment & Buildings $903,676 $726,473 $1,630,149 $951,747 $0 $678,402 58.38%
Facilities $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 Y
Transit $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 Y
Utilities $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 v
Airports $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 v
Infrastructure $223,550 $1,005,187 $1,228,737 $465,451 $0 $763,285 37.88%
Debt Service Payments (P&I)-GO Bonds $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 w
Debt Service Payments (P&I)-Rev. Bonds $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 v
Other $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 n/
TOTAL CAPITAL PROJECTS EXPENDITURES $1,127,226 $1,731,660 $2,858,886 $1,417,198 $0 $1,441,687 49.57%
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES
Transfers In $0 $33,360 $33,360 $33,360 $0 100.00%
Transfers (Out) $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 n/
TOTAL - OTHER FINANCING SOURCES $0 $33 360. $33 3_60_ $33,360 $0 100.00%
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over ex_pendituresé i ($328,094)
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COUNTY: TORRANCE
Period Ending: 06/30/2018

DEBT SERVICE

COMPARATIVE STATEMENT OF BUDGETED AMOUNTS ACTUALS Variance With Adjusted Bu
REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES Approved Budget Adjusted Y-T-D ENCUMBRAN Positive (Negative)
Budget Adjustments Budget CESY-T-D |$ %
GENERAL OBLIGATION BONDS [FUND 401]
REVENUES:
General Obligation - (Property tax) $383,901 $45,000 $428,901 $347.568 ($81,333) 81.0
Investment Income $0 $0 $0 $0 $0
Other - Misc $0 $0 $0 $0 $0
TOTAL REVENUES $383,901 $45,000 $428,901 $347,568 ($81,333) 81.0.
EXPENDITURES
General Obligation - Principal $354,994 $45,000 $399,994 $345,000 $0 $54,994 86.2:
General Obligation - Interest $28,907 $0 $28,907 $39,036 $0 ($10,129) 135.0:
Other Costs (Fiscal Agent Fees/Other Fees/Misc) $0 $0 $0 $134 $0 ($134)
TOTAL EXPENDITURES $383,901 $45,000 $428,901 $384,170 $0 $44,731 89.5'
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES
Transfers In $0 $0 $0 $0 $0
Transfers (Out) $0 $0 $0 30 $0
TOTAL - OTHER FINANCING SOURCES $0 $0 $0 $0 $0
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expenditures [40F:i ($36,603)
REVENUE BONDS [FUND 402]
REVENUES:
Bond Proceeds $0 $0 $o $0
Revenue Bonds - GRT $0 $0 $0 $0
Investment Income $0 $0 $0 30
Revenue Bonds - Other $0 $0 $0 $0
REVENUE BOND REVENUE - TOTAL $0 $0 $0 $0
EXPENDITURES
Revenue Bonds - Principal $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0
Revenue Bonds - Interest $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0
Other Revenue Bond Payments $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0
Other Costs (Fiscal Agent Fees/Other Fees/Misc) $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0
TOTAL DEBT SERVICE FUND EXPENDITURES $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES
Transfers [n
Transfers (Out)
TOTAL - OTHER FINANCING SOURCES
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expenditures [402
OTHER DEBT SERVICE [FUND 403]
REVENUES: .
Investment Income $0 $0 $0 $0 $0
Loan Revenue $285.104 $0 $285,104 $275,137 ($9.967) 96.50
OTHER DEBT SERVICE REVENUE - TOTAL $285,104 $0 $285,104 $275,137 (39,967) 96.50
EXPENDITURES
NMFA Loan Payments $285,104 $0 $285,104 $270,376 $0 $14,728 94.83
Board of Finance Loan Payments $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0
Other Debt Service - Misc $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0
TOTAL DEBT SERVICE FUND EXPENDITURES $285,104 $0 $285,104 $270,376 $0 $14,728 94.83
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES |
Transfers In $0 $0 $0 $0 |: $0
Transfers (Out) ($94,082) $0 ($94,082) ($94,082)|: $0 100.00
TOTAL - OTHER FINANCING SOURCES ($94,082) $0 (394,082) ($94,082)|: $0 100.00
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expenditures [403} A ‘ ' .

Page 1 of 1
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TORRANCE COUNTY RESOLUTION# 2018-4 ¢

Budget Adjustment

WHEREAS, the Torrance County Commission in regular session on Wednesday, October 24th 2018 did propose to
authorize a budget adjustment in the FY 2018-19 Budget, and

WHEREAS, budget adjustments require authorization from the Department of Finance and Administration, and

WHEREAS, we request authorization for the following budget adjustment:
(See Attachment)

NOW THEREFORE, we respectfully request approval for the attached budget adjustment in the FY 2018-19 budget from the
Department of Finance and Administration.

DONE at Estancia, New Mexico, Torrance County this 24th day of October 2018.

Torrance County Board of Commissioners

Attest: James W. Frost, District 1

Julia DuCharme, District 2

Linda Jaramillo
Torrance County Cierk

Javier E. Sanchez District 3

Vote Record

James W. Frost yes no abstain absent
Julia DuCharme yes no abstain absent
Javier E. Sanchez yes no abstain absent

DFA Fund No. Revenue/Expenditures
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TORRANCE COUNTY RESOLUTION# 2018-¢ 9

Line Item Transfers

WHERAS, line item transfers within the same fund require authorization from the Torrance County
Commission,and

WHEREAS, the attached line item transfers within the same fund are hereby authorized:

(See Schedule A)
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED by the Torrance County Commission

DONE at Estancia, New Mexico, Torrance County this 24th day of October 2018.

Torrance County Board of Commissioners

Attest: James W. Frost, District 1

Julia DuCharme, District 2

Linda Jaramillo
Torrance County Clerk

Javier E. Sanchez District 3

Vote Record

James W. Frost yes no abstain absent
Julia DuCharme yes no abstain absent
Javier E. Sanchez yes no abstain absent




Torrance County

Resolution 2018-
Line Item Transfer
Schedule A
Funding Source: Transfer From: Transfer To: Total
Department | Source Line item Description Line ltem Description Amount

Civil Defense  |Grant fund 604 83 2 617 |CO/Equip 604 83 2 205 Imileage/per diem $ 5,600.00
Civil Defense  |Grant fund 604 83 2 617 |CO/Equip 604 83 2 219 Joffice supplies $ 4,000.00
Civil Defense |Grant fund 604 83 2 617 |CO/Equip 604 83 2 207 ltelecommunications $ 5,500.00
Clerk eneral 401 21 2 221 |printing/pubitsh 401 21 2 219 |office supplies $ 5,000.00
Clerk general 401 21 2 221 |printing/pubilsh 401 21 2 204 |building rent $ 400.00
Clerk general 401 21 2 221 |printing/pubilsh 401 20 2 206 |postage 3 400.00
Clerk general 401 20 2 266 |training 401 20 2 107 Jrisk management fees | $ 40.00
EMS EMS tax fund 415 83 2 201 Jvehicle maint/rep 415 83 2 102 |full time salaries $ 40,000.00
EMS |EMS tax fund 415 83 2 202 |fuel 415 83 2 102 [full time salaries $ 12,000.00
EMS EMS tax fund 415 83 2 202  |fuel 415 83 2 64 |FICA Matching $ 3,224.00
EMS EMS tax fund 415 83 2 230 |medical supplies 415 83 2 67 |retiree health matching | $ 1,040.00
EMS EMS tax fund 415 83 2 230 |medical supplies 415 83 2 65 ]healthinsur. Matching $ 19,246.00
EMS EMS tax fund 415 83 2 248 |safety equip. 415 83 2 65 |healthinsur. Matching | $ 17,641.24
EMS EMS tax fund 415 83 2 248 |safety equip. 415 83 2 106 lworker's comp fee $ 20.00
EMS EMS tax fund 415 83 2 248 |safety equip. 415 83 2 63 |PERA Matching $ 5,538.00
EMS EMS tax fund 415 83 2 248 |safety equip 415 83 2 64 |FICA Matching $ 754.00
VFD dist. 4 fire allotment 409 91 2 248 |safety equip. 409 91 2 272 |professional services $ 1,650.00
VFD dist. 6 fire allotment 418 91 2 248 |safety equip. 418 91 2 272 _Hmaﬁmmmmo:m_ services $ 1,400.00
DV Program Grant fund 690 g 2 205 |mileage/per diem 690 9 2 272 |professional services $ 51.68

TOTAL $ 123,504.93

TURA SR s ays

B ——— T e S s,

|



Requesting Department:

TORRANCE COUNTY

Line ltem

Transfer Form

Civil Defense

My department hereby requests that the following line item transfer(s) be made to the budget:

Transfer From: Transfer To: $
Line Item Line Item Line Item Line ltem Amount of
Number Description Number Description Transfer
604-83-2617 CO/Equipment 604-83-2205 Mileage/Per Diem 3 5,600.00
604-83-2217 CO/Equipment 604-83-2219 Office Supplies $ 4,000.00
604-83-2217 CO/Equipment 604-83-2207 Telecommunications | $ 5,500.00

Reason for Transfer: In order to cover expenditures planned during this fiscal year

P

L~ ~ [

age=

m_m:.mﬁcﬂw.a&

w

Date 10-16-18

xmm. Q6/12 =



TORRANCE COUNTY
Line Item Transfer Form

Requesting Department: Clerk

My department hereby requests that the following line item transfer(s) be made to the budget:

Transfer From: Transfer To: $
Line ltem Line Item Line Item Line ltem Amount of
Number Description Number Description Transfer
401-21-2221 _-uﬂsz:m\_ucc_mm:mzm\>a<m&m5m 401-21-2219 Office Supplies $ 5,000.00
401-21-2221 Printing/Publishing/Advertising [401-21-2204 Building Rent $ 400.00
401-21-2221 Printing/Publishing/Advertising (401-20-2206 Postage $ 400.00
401-20-2266 Training 401-20-2107 Risk Management Fee| $ 40.00

In need of supplies for more efficiency at our polling places, for delivery of supplies to presiding judges and for delviery of voting

machines which include delivery of signage for the polls. Rent for polling 2 polling places. Postage in minus. Risk

management fee in minus.

10/17/2018
Rev. 06/12




Requesting Department:

TORRANCE COUNTY
Line Item Transfer Form

Communications/EMS Tax Fund

My department hereby requests that the following line item transfer(s) be made to the budget:

Transfer From: Transfer To: $
Line Item Line Item Line ltem Line Item Amount of
Number Description Number Description Transfer
415-83-2201 Vehicle Maintenance/Repair  |415-83-2102 Full Time Salaries $ 40,000.00
415-83-2202 Vehicle Fuel 415-83-2102 Full Time Salaries $ 12,000.00
415-83-2202 Vehicle Fuel 415-83-2064 FICA Matching $ 3,224.00
415-83-2230 Medical Supplies 415-83-2067 Retiree Health Matching | $ 1,040.00
415-83-2230 Medical Supplies 415-83-2065 Health ins. Matching | $ 19,246.00
415-83-2248 Safety Equipment 415-83-2065 Health Ins. Matching | $ 17,641.24
415-83-2248 Safety Equipment 415-83-2106 Worker's Comp Fee $ 20.00
415-83-2248 Safety Equipment 415-83-2063 PERA Matching $ 5,538.00
415-83-2248 Safety Equipment 415-83-2064 FICA Matching $ 754.00
Reason for Transfer:
! w@w /
,TS& X @CCL\ (T. ih;\/«_:rﬁi 10, e . 201%
Signature C g > Date

(

Rev. 06/12




TORRANCE COUNTY
Line Item Transfer Form

Requesting Department: Districts 4 & 6 VFD

My department hereby requests that the following line item transfer(s) be made to the budget:

Transfer From: Transfer To: $
Line Item Line Item Line Item Line ltem Amount of
Number Description Number Description Transfer
409-91-2248 Safety Equipment 409-91-2272 Professional Svcs. $ 1,650.00
418-91-2248 Safety Equipment 418-91-2272 Professional Svcs. $ 1,400.00

Reason for Transfer:
Additional funds needed in professional services

iégg @nc,?/ — Ln\f.w:%?r?% [0.02.13

Signature Q\ Q - Date

Rev. 06/12



TORRANCE COUNTY
Line Item Transfer Form

1

E@Q;mma:g imﬁngm:ﬁ i\nlbh b ~ b Q %\h& Wﬂ%

My department hereby requests that the following line item transfer(s) be made to the budget:

Transfer From: Transfer To: . $
Line ltem Line ltem A Line ltem Line Item Amount of
Number Description Number Description Transfer
(e49D-09 -2205 mdeage /PN Do 1690-09-2277 Fm&%%%b C F5 1 09

Reason for Transfer:

I ‘

Rev. 06/12
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TORRANCE COUNTY RESOLUTION# 2018- 50

Budget Increase

WHERAS, the Torrance County Commission in regular session on Wednesday, October 24th 2018 did propose
to authorize a budget increase in the FY 2018-2019 Budget, and

WHEREAS, budget increases require authorization from the Department of Finance and Administration, and

WHEREAS, we request authorization for the following budget increase: (See Attachment A)

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, we respectfully request approval for the attached budget increase
in the FY 2018-19 budget from Department of Finance and Administration .

DONE at Estancia, New Mexico, Torrance County this 24th day of October 2018.

Torrance County Board of Commissioners

Attest: James W. Frost, District 1

Julia DuCharme, District 2

Linda Jaramillo
Torrance County Clerk

Javier E. Sanchez District 3

Vote Record

James W. Frost yes no abstain absent
Julia DuCharme yes no abstain absent
Javier E. Sanchez yes no abstain absent

i DFA Approval i




Torrance County

Resolution 2018-50

Budget Increase

Schedule A
October 24th 2018

Funding Source: Revenue Expenditure

Department Source Line item Description Amount Line ltem Description Amount
DV Victim's Restitution Grant 691 0 1400 |Donations S 2,000.00 691 38| 2 | 266 |vehicle maint/repair $ 2,000.00
DV Victim's Restitution Grant 691 0 1400 |Donations $ 250.00 691 38| 2 | 269 |membership dues $ 250.00
DV Victim's Restitution Grant 691 0 1400 |Donations $ 2,000.00 691 38| 2 | 283 |Victim Support $ 2,000.00
DV Victim's Restitution Grant 691 0 1400 |Donations $ 1,000.00 391 (38| 2 | 266 |Training $ 1,000.00
TOTAL $ 5,250.00 $ 5,250.00




TORRANCE COUNTY
Budget Increase Request Form

Requesting Department: DV Victim's Restitution

My department hereby requests that the following budget increase be made to the budget:

Revenue Increase: Expenditure Increase: $
Line Item Line Item Line Item Line ltem Amount of
Number Description Number Description Increase
699-00-4645  [DVFY19 T VAT EE&E&E\M #2000 ,00
/400 b9l- 38~ 22095 | iMsudersbin Do F.!.;FR. 7 S0.00

(e~ 392-722393 ?Z2,000.00

(9]~ 28-2266 | DNaining #/,000.00

mgﬁ_\\&\m&a /015 )1 g

Signature Date

Rev. 11/12
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TORRANCE COUNTY RESOLUTION# 2018- 5
Budget Procedure

WHEREAS, the Governing Body in and for the County of Torrance; State of New Mexico met in regular session
on Wednesday, October 24th 2018; and

WHEREAS, the County's operating budget is adopted by the County Commission each fiscal year, and

WHEREAS, in the operating budget is a schedule of cash transfers between funds for fiscal support, contractual
services, grant matching and debt service, and,

WHEREAS, the Finance Department is requesting a budget procedure allowing the Finance Director to approve
smaller periodic cash transfers on an as needed basis (not to exceed the total operating budget scheduled
transfer amount) in order to keep funds from having a deficit balance; and

WHEREAS, the County Treasurer will be the second approval of the smaller periodic cash transfers request to
ensure adequate funds are available for the transfers; and

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT HEREBY RESOLVED that the Board of County Commissioners, Torrance County,
State of New Mexico hereby authorizes this budget procedure in regards to cash transfers, allowing smailer
periodic cash transfers to occur with the approval of both the Finance Director and the County Treasurer.

RESOLVED: In Regular Board Session this 24th day of October 2018.

Torrance County Board of Commissioners

Attest: James W. Frost, District 1

Julia DuCharme, District 2

Linda Jaramillo
Torrance County Clerk

Javier E. Sanchez District 3

Vote Record

James W. Frost yes no abstain absent
Julia DuCharme yes no abstain absent
Javier E. Sanchez yes no abstain absent
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Order Form

EMERGENCY
REPORTING"

ER Contact Details

Prepared by Greg Anderson

Email greg@emergencyreporting.com

Customer Contact Details

Account Name Torrance County Fire Department

Contact Name Lester Gary

Phone (505) 384-1067

Email Igary@torrancecountyfire.com

Ship To 757 Salt Missions Trail
Mclintosh, NM 87035

County Torrance

Department Type  Volunteer

Order Summary

Product Product Code Quantity

Fire & EMS Package 7.00
Google Maps 7.00
Summary
Bill To Name Torrance County Fire Department
Bill To Torrance County Fire Department Admin
PO Box 449
Mcintosh, NM 87032
# Years 5

Payment Schedule Yearly

Initial invoice will be issued upon receipt of the order form. If this
represents a problem for the accounting department please contact
your sales rep.

Sales Price
$2,176.00
$357.49

Phone

Fax

Quote Number
Created Date
Expiration Date

Customer Type

Discount

(801) 935-1822
(866) 929-6157

00016955
10/17/2018
10/31/2018
Existing

Year 1 Total

15.00

Total Price Line ltem Description

$12,947.20 | Annual Subscription

Emergency Reporting

2200 Rimiand Dr., Suite 305
Bellingham, WA 98226
www.emergencyreporting.com
Phone: 866.773.7678

Fax: 866.929.6157

$2,502.43 | Annual

Yearly Subscription $15,449.63

Fees
Annual CAD Link

Maintenance Fees

Annual Vision Fee

Annual Safety
Analytics Fee

One-Time Setup
Fees

Annual Interface
Fee

Data Import Fee
Training Fees

Custom
Development

Year 1 Cost
Year 2 Cost
Year 3 Cost
Year 4 Cost

$0.00

$0.00
$0.00

$0.00

$0.00

$0.00
$0.00
$0.00

$15,449.63
$15,449.63
$15,449.63
$15,449.63

PLEASE FAX SIGNED ORDER TO 1-866-929-6157 OR SCAN / E-Mail to orders@emergencyreporting.com




Data Import & Contact Information - *Required to Process Order

FDID:

57031

*is the organization tax exempt? yes|[ ] no[ ]
If "Yes", please include a copy with your order form.

*Do you have NFIRS data to be imported? yes[ ]
- This is included in your setup fee.

nof ]

There is a $500 charge (as a group) to import any of the
non-NFIRS data listed below. If you wish to import any non-NFIRS
data and the "import fee" is not a line item on this order form, please
contact your sales rep to have the order form updated. Your order
cannot be processed until this fee is added to the above products
"line item" list. ER doesn’t import training records at this time.

Other Imports (Check all that apply - imported for a fee)
[ 1 Equipment

[ 1 Occupancy

[ ] Hydranis

[ ] Flow Test

[ ] Personnel

[ ] Apparatus

Terms & Conditions

Year 5 Cost $15,449.63

EMS ID:

131130

The ER Support team will configure your account to export NFIRS
data to the state fire marshal’s office, provided the office receives
NFIRS data. As a courtesy, ER will also send a copy of the email to
your department. Please enter the department email to receive these
email in the space provided above.

*Dept. NFIRS Email Recipient:

- Please check one.

For Occupancy Module configuration would you like your setup
to be based on NFPA[ JorlICC[ ]?

* This is for setting up Categories and Subcategories.

*Account Setup Contact Name:

*Phone#:

*e-mail:

Emergency Reporting, a trade name of Reporting Systems, Inc. ("RSI"), and the above named account ("AGENCY") are entering into an
agreement as of the signature date.

Fire & EMS Solution Terms & Conditions

RSl shall perform the following services:

1. Collect emergency response data via a website accessible at https:fisecure.emergencyreporting.com.

2. Maintain collected data to standards set by FEMA's National Fire Incident Reporting System (NFIRS) and/or the National Emergency
Medical Services Information System (NEMSIS), version 3.3.4 or 3.4.0 as supported by your state.

3. Provide EMS export services for states that are officiaily supported by RSI for EMS exports. Due to the number of states that have
modified the NEMSIS standard, NEMSIS 3 is not a supported EMS Export type in many cases. State EMS reporting is not supported

unless the state is specifically listed on our website.

4. Provide ongoing changes and bug fixes, at no additional charge, to remain in compliance with NFIRS & NEMSIS 3,

5. For supported states and exports (NFIRS, state specific EMS, or other export types) provide email or direct HTTPS downioad to the
necessary recipients. If possible, RS will configure direct submission to the state; if the state prohibits third party submissions, RSI will
provide Agency with the applicable data for state reporting requirements.
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- Ensure appropriate security, privacy, and encryption of data transmitted to and from the website, in compliance with RSI's internal

polices, federal HIPAA regulations and industry practices regarding security.
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. Guarantee uptime of 99.9%, as calculated on an annual basis.

The Agency shall be responsibie for the following:

-

. Provide access to the website by current browser technology as stated in the RSI Users Policies Manual.
. Provide data backup to guard against data loss in the event of catastrophic system failure.

. Maintain an active user list of accounts that are authorized to access the website.

2. Pay all outstanding charges in a timely fashion. Non-timely payment may result in deactivation of service (deactivation will occur with
warning to the AGENCY; AGENCY data will be accessible when charges are brought current).
3. Maintain active Internet Service Provider (ISP) services to access the website. ISP charges are not included in this agreement. ISP

failures are not the responsibility of RSI.

4. Enter emergency response data and all other data into the website per system instructions, support recommendations, and in
accordance to the RSI User Policy Manual available on the support page from within Emergency Reporting’s website.
5. Use supported web browsers as listed in the RSI User Policy Manual.

PLEASE FAX SIGNED ORDER TO 1-866-929-6157 OR SCAN / E-Mail to orders@emergencyreporting.com



Additional CAD Link Terms & Conditions
RS shall perform the following services:

1. Web Service CAD Links - Receive CAD interface data to the following address:
https://secure.emergencyreporting.com/WS/V1.0/Dispatch/CaliCenter.php. RS! reserves the right to reject or ignore invalid data.

2. For Flat File Parser (FFP) installations, RS! shall provide an installed piece of software that processes files as output from CAD and
submits the data to RSI. FFP configurations shall conform to sample and specified data as output from CAD; any changes to this
format may result in change order fees.

3. Provide ongoing changes and bug fixes, at no additional charge, to keep the CAD Interface address specified above operational.

4. Supply mapping (alias) tools, submission tracking, and general processing tools to assist in the management of CAD supplied data to
RSI standards.

5. Ensure appropriate security, privacy, and encryption of data transmitted to and from the website, in compliance with RSI's internal
polices, federal HIPPA regulations and industry practices regarding security.

The Agency shall be responsible for the following:

1. Provide clean, valid data for processing, either via text file (for Fiat File Parser installations) or web services (for web services direct
installations)

2. For FFP Installations, the Agency shall provide a nondedicated computer to install the FFP on. The computer shall have access to
CAD supplied text files, as well as outbound HTTPS access to the address specified above. The operating system shall be x86 or x64,
and shall be any edition of Windows Server 2008 or 2003, and shall have the .net Framework 2.0 or higher installed.

3. Agency shall provide technical staff to assist with installation, debugging, networking, and general troubleshooting of CAD link
technology and infrastructure.

4. Additional charges from your CAD vendor may apply and should be discussed with that vendor.

Governing Law. The AGENCY agrees that the rights of user and RSI shall be governed by the Laws of the State of Washington, without
regard to any conflicts of law, rules or provisions. Sole and exclusive jurisdiction for any action or proceeding arising out of or related to this
agreement shall be in an appropriate State or Federal Court located in WA State.

Data Ownership. All data transmitted to the website remains the property of the AGENCY. Retransmission of this data to the necessary state
reporting authorities is authorized. Modifying, deleting or other modifications of submitted incident data by RSl is prohibited. Scientific research
that is based on broad data trends is authorized, but no AGENCY specific data is to be made visible to any third parties.

Statute of Limitation. The AGENCY agrees that any cause of action you may have against RSI must be commenced within (8) six months
after the claim arises.

Pricing. The AGENCY agrees to the prices set forth in this agreement. RS reserves the right to modify AGENCY pricing at the contract
renewal date, and will provide 30 day advance written notice of its intent to do so.

Billing Cycle Start Date. The AGENCY agrees that the billing cycle start date will become affective on the 1st of the following month in which
the signed order form is received by RSI.

Copyright. The AGENCY recognizes that the RS| website is protected under U.S. copyright and trademark law, international conventions and
other applicable law. The AGENCY agrees to not license, sell, publish, decompile, reverse engineer, or otherwise deconstruct any portion of
RSI's technology.

RSl uses computer technology to collect data, and no such technology is 100% reliable at all times. System failures may occur without
warning. Although all efforts will be made to prevent such failures, the AGENCY recognizes that these failures are outside the control of RSI,
and agrees to hold RS, its principals, employees, and agents harmless. If any court holds any portion of this Agreement to be unenforceable,
then the remainder of this Agreement shall survive.

Order Agreement

Select Billing Frequency:

Print Name If no billing cycle is selected, the account will automatically be billed
yearly.

Title
Monthly [ ] Yearly[ ]

Phone #
Would you like to receive a copy of your invoice:

Signature Electronically [ ] Mail{ ]

Date * If electronically please include an email address:

E:

Please complete the signed order and fax to: 866.929.6157 OR
scan and email to: orders@emergencyreporting.com

PLEASE FAX SIGNED ORDER TO 1-866-929-6157 OR SCAN / E-Mail to orders@emergencyreporting.com



